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VILLAGE BOARD WORK SESSION MEETI NG
Tuesday, June 12, 2018- 7:30p.m .
AGENDA
1.

Call to Order

2.

Pledge of Allegiance

3.

Roll Call

4.

Public Participation (agenda and non-agenda related)

s.

Adminjstration Committee Items
A.

6.

Discussion - Prevailing Wage Rate - Motion: To adopt "An Ordinance
Ascertaining Prevailing Wage Rates for Construction Work in Cook
County".

Building &

~oning

Committee Items

A.

Discussion & Action - Zoning Application No. 2018-05, 303 E. 31st Street Zoning Variation - Motion: To Approve an Ordinance Granting a Certain
Variation for 303 E. 31st Street (Public Hearing No. 2018-05).

B.

Discussion & Action - Zoning Application No. 2018-04, Rezoning of Certain
Properties Along La Grange Road - Map Amendment Request - Potential
Motions:

Option 1 then Motion: To Remand the Application for a Map Amendment to Rezone
Certain Properties Along La Grange Road (Public Hearing No. 2018-04) back to the
Planning & Zoning Commission for the purpose of considering rezoning only those
properties in the Map Amendment Application which are currently two-family
dwellings to the R-2 Two Family Residence District.
Option 2 then Motion (1): To Deny a Zoning Application for a Map Amendment to
Rezone Certain Properties Along La Grange Road (Public Hearing No. 2018-04) and
Motion (2): To Direct Village Staff to Proceed with an Application for a Map
Amendment to Rezone those properties along La Grange Road that are currently
Two-Family Properties to R-2 Two Family Residence District.

VILLAGE WORK SESSION MEETING
June 12, 2018 - 7:30 p.m.
AGENDA ( continued - Page 2)

Op·tion 3 then Motion: To Direct Village Staff to prepare an Ordinance Approving an
Application for a Map Amendment to Rezone Certain Properties Along La Grange
Road (Public Hearing No. 2018-04).

7.

Engineering & Capital Proj ects Committee Items
A.

8.

Finance Committee Items
A.

9.

Discussion - Utility Bill Printing - Motion: To approve Sebis Direct to
provide utility bill print and mailing services and authorize the Village
Manager to sign an agreement.

Commercial Revitalizat ion Committee Items
A.

10.

Discussion - 2018 Patching Program - Various Areas in Village Motion: To accept the lowest responsible bid from TBD in the amount
of $TBD plus a TBD percent contingency, for completion of asphalt
overlay patching.

Action - 1015/1017 E. 3tst Street - Reinstatement of Redevelopment
Agreement - Motion: To Adopt an Ordinance of the Village of La Grange
Park, Cook County, Illinois, Approving the Reinstatement of a
Redevelopment Agreement for the Redevelopment of 1015 and 1017 E.
31st Street.

Other Reports
A.

Village Manager

B.

Village President
(1) Discussion & Action - Commission Appointments - 2018 Correction to TS&E Committee - Motion: To rescind the May 8,
2018 appointment of Brian Usek to the Traffic, Safety and
Engineering Committee (as it was made in error) and to appoint
Matt Huffman to same for a term to expire in May 2020.

C.

Village Clerk

The Village of La Grange Park is subject to the reqt.mements of the Americans wlth Disabilities Act of 1990 Individuals with disabilities who
plan to attend this meetmg and requ1re certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meetmg, or who
have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities. are requested to contact Emily Rodman. Assistant Village Manager,
at 708-354-0225 x108 promptly to allow the Vlllage of La Grange Park to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. Website
http:/Jwww.lagrangepark.org

VILLAGE WORK SESSION MEETING
June 12, 2018 - 7:30 p.m.
AGENDA (continued - page 3)
11.

New Business

12.

Executive Session - Motion to move into Executive Session for the purpose
of discussing the following:
(1) Collective Bargaining in accordance with 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)

13.

Adjourn

Items of Interest
Village Board Meeting: June 26, 2018
Work Session Meeting: July 10, 2018

The Village of La Grange Park is subject to the requirements ofthe Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who
plan to attend th1s meeting a nd require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who
have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Emily Rodman. Assistant Village Manager,
at 708-354-0225 x1 08 promptly to allow the Village of La Grange Park to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. Website
http://www.lagrangepark.org

Rules for Public Comment
Village Board Work Session Meetings
Village Board Meetings
1. Please step up to the microphone before speaking, and announce your name
and address before beginning your comments.
2. After announcing your name and address for the record, you will be allowed
to speak for three (3) minutes.
3. You may not use profane or obscene language and you may not threaten any
person with bodily harm, or engage in conduct which amounts to a threat of
physical harm.
4. (a) Agenda-related comments: The Village President reserves the right to
disallow comments that are repetitive of comments previously made during
the meeting, or comments that do not relate to agenda items.
(b) Non-agenda-related comments: The Village President reserves the right
to disallow comments that are repetitive of comments previously made
during the meeting, or comments that do not relate to Village business,
Village services or Village governance.
5. The Village of La Grange Park complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990. If you require accommodations in order to observe
or participate in the meeting, please contact Assistant Village Manager
Emily Rodman at (708) 354-0225 between 9:00 and 5:00 before the meeting
so that the Village can make reasonable accommodations for you.

www.lagrangepark.org

Administration Committee D ivider
Robert Lautner, Chairman
Michael Sheehan
James Kucera

Village Board Agenda Memo
TO:
FROM:
SUBJECT:
DATE:

President & Board of Trustees
Emily Rodman, Assistant Village Manager ~
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager~
Prevailing Wage Rate
June 12, 2018

Background
Pursuant to state law (820 ILCS 130/9), every june, municipalities are required to adopt an
ordinance ascertaining prevailing wages that must be paid to contractors that install public
works pursuant to public contracts on an annual basis. The establishment of prevailing
wages to be paid refers only to contractors hired by the Village for applicable projects as
defined in the statute. This action has nothing to do with wages that the Village of La Grange
Park pays to any of its employees.
The Illinois Department of Labor (IDOL) typically publishes the new prevailing wage rates
in June. IDOL is currently in the process of conducting their wage survey. Since the new rates
are not available, the Village must adopt the 2017 (as amended) prevailing wage rates for
the upcoming year until such as time as new rates are made available. Once published by
IDOL, the Village will need to adopt another ordinance approving the updated prevailing
wages.

Motion/Action Requested
This item is for discussion only. If there is consensus, this item will be placed on the June 26,
2018 agenda for approval.

Motion to adopt '~n Ordinance Ascertaining Prevailing Wage Rates for Construction
Work in Cook County"
Staff Recommendation
State statutes require that municipalities adopt such an ordinance.
DOCUMENTATION:
• 820 ILCS 130/9
• An Ordinance Ascertaining Prevailing Wage Rates for Construction Work in Cook County

820 ILCS 130/9) (from Ch. 48, par. 39s-9)
(Text of Section from P.A. 100-2)
Sec. 9. To effectuate the purpose and policy of this Act each public body shall, during the
month of June of each calendar year, investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages
as defined in this Act and publicly post or keep available for inspection by any interested
party in the main office of such public body its determination of such prevailing rate of
wage and shall promptly file, no later than July 15 of each year, a certified copy thereof in
the office of the Illinois Department of Labor.

ORDINANCE NO.
ORDINANCE ASCERTAINING THE PREVAILING WAGE RATES
FOR CONSTRUCTION WORK IN COOK COUNTY

WHEREAS, the State of IlJinois has enact~d "An Act regulating wages of laborers, mechanics
and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any public body
or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for public works," approved June
26, 1941, codified as amended, 820 ILCS 130/1 et seq.
WHEREAS, the aforesaid Act requires that the municipality of the Village of La Grange Park
investigate and ascertain the prevailing wage rate of wages as defined in said Act for
laborers, mechanics and other workers in the locality of Cook County employed in
performing construction of public works, for said Village.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLLAGE OF
LA GRANGE PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I. To the extent and as required by "An Act regulating wages of laborers,
mechanics, and other workers employed in any public works by State, county, city or any
public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for public works,"
approved June 26, 1941, as amended, the general prevailing rate of wages in this locality for
laborers, mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of public works coming
under the jurisdiction of the Village is hereby ascertained to be the same as the prevailing
rate of wages for construction work in Cook County as determined by the Department of
Labor of the State of Illinois as of June 2017 and revised in August 2017, September 2017,
April 2018 and May 2018. The definition of any terms appearing in this Ordinance which are
also used in aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said Act.
SECTION 11. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general prevailing
rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public works
construction of the Village to the extent required by the aforesaid Act.
SECIJON Ill. The Village Clerk shall publicly post or keep available for inspection this
determination of such prevailing rate of wage.
SECTION IV. The Village Clerk shall mail a copy of this determination to any employer, and
to any association of employers and to any person or association of employees who have
filed their names and addresses requesting copies of any determination stating the particular
rates and the particular class of workers whose wages will be affected by such rates.
SECTION V. The Village Clerk shall promptly file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the
Secretary of State of Illinois.
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from after its passage, approval and
publication as provided by law, effective June 26, 2018.

ADOPTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of La Grange Park,
Cook County, Illinois, this 26th day of June, 2018.

James L. Discipio, Village President
Village of La Grange Park
ATTEST: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Amanda G. Seidel
Village Clerk

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT:

Village Clerk

Prevailing Wage rates
for Cook County
effective Sept. 1. 2017
Trade Title

Region

Type

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN

All

ALL

ASBESTOS ABT-MEC
BOILERMAKER
BRICK MASON

ALL
ALL
ALL

CARPENTER
CEMENT MASON
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER
COMM. ELECT.

Class

Base
Wage

Foreman
Wage

BLD

41 .20
37.46

42.20
39.96

BLD
BLD

48.49
45.38

52.86
49.92

ALL
ALL

ALL
ALL

46.35
44.25

48.35
46.25

All
All

BLD
BLD

J8

~!

43.10

45.90

ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP

All

ALL

50.50

55.50

ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN

All
All

All
All

39.39
50.50

55.50
55.50

ELECTRICIAN
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR
FENCE ERECTOR

ALL
ALL

All
BLD

ALL

ALL

47.40
51.94
39.58

GLAZIER

ALL

BLD

HT/FROST INSULATOR
IRON WORKER
LABORER
LATHER
MACHINIST
MARBLE FINISHERS
MARBLE MASON
MATERIAL TESTER I
MATERIALS TESTER II

ALL
ALL
ALL
All

BLD
All
ALL
ALL

ALL
ALL

BLD
ALL

ALL
ALL
All
All

BLD
All

33.95
44.63
31.20

33.95
49.09
31.20

ALL
ALL

36.20
46.35

MILLWRIGHT

M-F
OT
1.5

1.5
2

1.5
1.5
2
1.5
1.5
1.5

OSA

OSH

1.5
1.5
2
1.5

2
2
2
2

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

50.40
58.43
41.58

1.5
1.5
1.5
2
1.5

42.45

43.95

50.50
47.33
41.20
46.35

53.00
49.33
41 .95
48.35

0.50

0.00
0.00

0.72
0.90

16.68
18.87
17.16

2

065

11

2
2
2

8.88
11.69

13.22
16.69

9.12
11.69
14.33
14.43

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1.00
0.00
0.00

0.90

2
2

16.69
16.10

2
2

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

2
2.

1.5
1.5

36.20

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

48.35

1.5

1.5

Training

0.00

2
1.5

2

Vacation

12.32
11.06
19.61

1.5

1.5

Pension

14.65
11.62
6.97
10.45
11.79
14.00

2
2

2
1.5
1.5
1.5

H/W

2
2
2

13.40
14.04
12.12
14.15
14.65

14.96
13.90
20.14
12.96
22.39
12.32
18.87

0.00
1.00
4.16

0.85
3.12
2.43
3.12
1 18

0.90

0.00

0.40

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.94
0.72
0.35
0.50
0.63

12.32

2

14.65
14.65

0.00
1.85
0.00
0.00
0.00

12.32

0.00

0.59
0.50
0.50

2

11.79

18.87

0.00

0.63

2
2
2
2

11 .79
7.05
10.45
10.45

13.02

0.63
0.92

8.95
1S.52
16.28

0.47

OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL

BLD

ALL

BLD

2

OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING

ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER

ALL
ALL
ALL
ALL

BLD
BLD
BLD

3

4

BLD

6

OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL

BLD

OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL

FLT

50.10

54.10

2

2

48.80
46.25
44.50
53.85

54.10

2

2

54.10
54.10
54.10

2
2

2
2
2

54.10
54.10

2

2

7

51.10
53.10

2

2

1

55.90

55.90

1.5

1.5

5

2

2
2

18.80

2
2
2
2
2
2

18.80
18.80
18.80

18.05
18.05

18.80

18.80
18.80
18.05

14.35
14.35
14.35
14.35
14.35
14.35
14.35
13.60
13.60
13.60
13.60
13.60
13.60

OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL

FLT

2

54.40

55.90

1.5

1.5

OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL

FLT

3

48.40

55.90

1.5

OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER

FLT
FLT

4
5

40.25
57.40

55.90
55.90

1.5
1.5

2
2
2

1.5

2

18.05
18.05

OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL
ALL
ALL

1.5
1.5

FLT

6

38.00

55.90

1.5

2

18.05

OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER

ALL
ALL

HWY

48.30

52.30
52.30

ALL

2
2
2

18.80
18.80
18.80
18.80
18.80
18.80
18.80
13.90

14.35
14.35

OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING

47.75
45.70
44.30
43.10
51.30
49.30
46.75

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
1.5

11.56
2.60
11.79
14.00
14.34
9.08
11.03
4.85

ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER

ORNAMNTL IRON
WORKER
PAINTER
PAINTER SIGNS
PILEDRIVER
PIPEFITIER
PLASTERER
PLUMBER
ROOFER
SHEETMETAL WORKER
SIGN HANGER

ALL
ALL
ALL
ALL

HWY
HWY
HWY
HWY
HWY

2
3
4
5
6

HWY

7

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL
ALL
ALL

BLD
ALL

ALL
ALL
ALL
ALL
ALL

BLD
BLD
BLD

BLD
BlD
BLD

52.30
52.30
52.30
52.30
52.30
49.25

45.55
37.45

51.24
42.05

46.35
47.50
42.75
49.25
42.30
43.50
31.31

48.35
50.50
45.31

52.20
45.30
45.98
33.81

1.5
1.5

1.5

1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
2

1.5
2

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

2
2
2
2

2
1.5
2

2
2
2
2
2

2
2

2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
1.90

1.90
1.90
1.90
1.90

1.30
1.30

1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30

14.35
19.79

1.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
0.00

0.75

11.44
3.18

0.00
0.00

1.87
0.00

18.87

0.00

0.63

17.85
15.71
13.35
12.14
23.43
3.28

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.89
1.28

0.00
0.00

0.78
0.00

14.35
14.35
14.35
14.35

1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30

1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30

0.58

SPRINKLER FITIER

ALL

BLD

STEEL ERECTOR

ALL

ALL

47.20
42.07

49.20
44.07

1.5
2

1.5

2

2

2

1.5
1.5
1.5

2
2

STONEMASON

ALL

BLD

TERRAZZO FINISHER

ALL

BLD

45.38
40.54

49.92
40.54

1.5
1.5

TERRAZZO MASON

ALL

BLD

44.38

47.88

1.5

TILE MASON

ALL

BLD

36.25

1.5
1.5
1.5

33.50
35.60

TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR

ALL

HWY

TRUCK DRIVER

E

ALL

TRUCK DRIVER

E

ALL
ALL

35.85
36.05

1.5

E

2
3

36.25

TRUCK DRIVER

36.25

1.5

TRUCK DRIVER

E

ALL

4

TRUCK DRIVER

ALL

36.25
35.98
36.13
36.33

TUCKPOINTER

ALL

BLD

36.25
36.53
36.53
36.53
36.53
46.42

1.5
1.5

TRUCK DRIVER

w
w
w
w

TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER

ALL

2

ALL

3
4

ALL

36.53
45.42

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

2

12.25
13.45

11.55
19.59

10.45
10.65
10.65

16.68
12.76
14.15

2
6.00
8.56

7.25
11.50

2
2

8.56
8.56

11.50
11 .50

2
2

8 .56
8 .25
8 .25
8.25
8.25
8.32

11 .50
10.14
10.14
10.14
10.14
15.42

2
2

2

0.55
0.35
0.90

0.00
0.00

0.73
0.82

0.00

2
2

2

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.50
0.15
0.15
0.1 5
0.15

0.00
0.00

0.15
0.15

0.00
0.00

0.15
0.15

0.00

0.80

legend
M-F OT Unless otherwise noted, OT pay is required for any hour greater than 8 worked each day, Mon through Fri. The number listed is the
multiple of the base wage.
OSA Overtime pay required for every hour worked on Saturdays
OSH Overtime pay required for every hour worked on Sundays and Holidays
H/W Health/Welfare benefit

Explanations COOK COUNTY
The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day, Fourth
of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and Veterans Day in some classifications/counties. Generally, any of these holidays which
fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the appropriate overtime
rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given local may alter certain days of celebration . If in doubt, please check with IDOL.
TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST)- That part of the county West of Barrington Road.

EXPLANATION OF CLASSES
ASBESTOS- GENERAL- removal of asbestos material/mold and hazardous materials from any place in a building, including mechanical systems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed. This includes the removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from
ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished at the time or at some dose future date. ASBESTOS- MECHANICALremoval of asbestos material from mechanical systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical systems are to remain.
CERAMIC TILE FINISHER
The grouting, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of tile, whether for interior or exterior purposes, all burned, glazed or unglazed products; all
composition materials, granite tiles, warning detectable tiles, cement tiles, epoxy composite materials, pavers, glass, mosaics, fiberglass, and all
substitute materials, for tile made in tile-like units; all mixtures in tile like form of cement, metals, and other materials that are for and intended
for use as a finished floor surface, stair treads, promenade roofs, walks, walls, ceilings, swimming pools, and all other places where tile is to form
a finished interior or exterior. The mixing of all setting mortars including but not limited to thin-set mortars, epoxies, wall mud, and any other
sand and cement mixtures or adhesives when used in the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materials. The
handling and unloading of all sand, cement, lime, tile, fixtures, equipment, adhesives, or any other materials to be used in the preparation,
installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materials. Ceramic Tile Finishers shall fill all joints and voids regardless of method on all
tile work, particularly and especially after installation of said tile work. Application of any and all protective coverings to all types of tile
installations including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products, tapes, and all polyethylene coverings, plywood, masonite,
cardboard, and any new type of products that may be used to protect tile installations, Blastrac equipment, and all floor scarifying equipment
used in preparing floors to receive tile. The clean up and removal of all waste and materials. All demolition of existing tile floors and walls to be
re-tiled.
COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICIAN
Installation, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and service of radio, television, recording, voice sound vision production and
reproduction, telephone and telephone interconnect, facsimile, data apparatus, coaxial, fibre optic and wireless equipment, appliances and
systems used for the transmission and reception of signals of any nature, business, domestic, commercial, education, entertainment, and
residential purposes, including but not limited to, communication and telephone, electronic and sound equipment, fibre optic and data
communication systems, and the performance of any task directly related to such installation or service whether at new or existing sites, such
tasks to include the placing of wire and cable and electrical power conduit or other raceway work within the equipment room and pulling wire
and/or cable through conduit and the installation of any incidental conduit, such that the employees covered hereby can complete any job in
full.
MARBLE FINISHER

loading and unloading trucks, distribution of all materials (all stone, sand, etc.), stocking of floors w ith material, performing all rigging for heavy
work, the handling of all material that may be needed for the installation of such materials, building of scaffolding, polishing if needed, patching,
waxing of material if damaged, pointing up, caulking, grouting and cleaning of marble, holding water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw
for setters cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparation of material, drilling of holes for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plaster for installation of material, mixing up thin set for the installation of material, mixing up of sand to cement
for the installation of material and such other work as may be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handling of all material in the erection
or installation of interior marble, slate, travertine, art marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone, granite and other stones (meaning as to
stone any foreign or domestic materials as are specified and used in building interiors and exteriors and customarily known as stone in the
trade), carrara, sanionyx, vitrolite and similar opaque glass and the laying of all marble tile, terrazzo tile, slate tile and precast tile, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other materials that may be used as substitutes for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interior and
exterior which are installed in a similar manner.
MATERIAL TESTER 1: Hand coring and drilling for testing of materials; field inspection of uncured concrete and asphalt.
MATERIAL TESTER II: Field inspection of welds, structural steel, fireproofing, masonry, soil, facade, reinforcing steel, formwork, cured concrete,
and concrete and asphalt batch plants; adjusting proportions of bituminous mixtures.
OPERATING ENGINEER- BUILDING
Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Batch Plant; Benoto (requires Two Engineers); Boiler
and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix Plant; Combination Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and Throttle Valve;
Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 27E cu. ft; Concrete Paver
27E cu. ft. and Under: Concrete Placer; Concrete Placing Boom; Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, All; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (GCI and similar Type); Creter Crane; Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.; Derricks, All; Derricks, Traveling; Formless Curb
and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grouting Machines; Heavy Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover; High lift Shovels or Front
Endloader 2-1/4 yd. and over; Hoists, Elevators, outside type rack and pinion and similar machines; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Hoists,
Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and similar equipment); locomotives, All; Motor Patrol;
lubrication Technician; Manipulators; Pile Drivers and Skid Rig; Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes:
Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type Pumps; Gypsum Bulker and Pump; Raised and Blind Hole Drill; Rota Mill Grinder; Scoops- Tractor Drawn; Slip-Form
Paver; Straddle Buggies; Operation of Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom; Trenching Machines.
Class 2. Boilers; Broom, All Power Propelled; Bulldozers; Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Portable; Forklift Trucks; Highlift Shovels
or Front End loaders under 2-1/4 yd.; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, Inside Elevators; Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machine; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum;

Laser Screed; Rock Drill (Self-Propelled); Rock Drill (Truck Mounted); Rollers, All; Steam Generators; Tractors, All; Tractor Drawn Vibratory Roller;
Winch Trucks with "A" Frame.
Class 3. Air Compressor; Combination Small Equipment Operator; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hoists, Inside Elevators (remodeling or
renovation work); Hydraulic Power Units (Pile Driving, Extracting, and Drilling); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300ft.); Low Boys;
Pumps, Well Points; Welding Machines (2 through 5); Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.
Class 4. Bobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; Oilers; and Brick Forklift.
Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman.
Class 6. Gradall.
Class 7. Mechanics; Welders.
OPERATING ENGINEERS- HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION
Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Heater and Planer Combination; Asphalt Heater Scarfire; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other similar
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Ballast Regulator; Belt loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix Plant;
Combination Backhoe Front End loader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted);
Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E cu. ft.; Concrete Placer; Concrete Tube Float; Cranes, all attachments; Cranes, Tower Cranes of all
types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.; Derricks, All; Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges; Elevators, Outside type Rack &
Pinion and Similar Machines; Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grader, Motor Grader, Motor Patrol, Auto Patrol, Form
Grader, Pull Grader, Subgrader; Guard Rail Post Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Heavy Duty Self-Propelled Transporter
or Prime Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes; Backhoes with shear attachments up to 40' of boom reach; Lubrication Technician; Manipulators; Mucking
Machine; Pile Drivers and Skid Rig; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock Drill -Crawler or Skid Rig; Rock Drill -Truck Mounted;
Rock/Track Tamper; Rota Mill Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; Snow Melters; Soil Test Drill Rig (Truck Mounted); Straddle Buggies; Hydraulic
Telescoping Form {Tunnel); Operation of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader (wit h attached pusher- two
engineers); Tractor with Boom; Tractaire with Attachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine; Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete Pump with
Boom; Raised or Blind Hole Drills (Tunnel Shaft); Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5 ft. in diameter and over tunnel, etc;
Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines under 5 ft. in diameter; Wheel Excavator; Widener (APSCO).
Class 2. Batch Plant; Bituminous Mixer; Boiler and Throttle Valve; Bulldozers; Car Loader Trailing Conveyors; Combination Backhoe Front
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or with attachments); Compressor and Throttle Valve; Compressor, Common
Receiver (3); Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Concrete Grinding Machine; Concrete Mixer or Paver 75 Series t o and including 27 cu. ft.;

Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine, Belting Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw; Conveyor Muck Cars
(Haglund or Similar Type); Drills, All; Finishing Machine- Concrete; Highlift Shovels or Front End loader; Hoist- Sewer Dragging Machine;
Hydraulic Boom Trucks (All Attachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro Excavating (excluding hose work); laser Screed; All locomotives, Dinky; Off-Road
Hauling Units (including articulating) Non Self-loading Ejection Dump; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes -Screw Type Pumps, Gypsum Bulker and
Pump; Roller, Asphalt; Rotary Snow Plows; Rototiller, Seaman, etc., self-propelled; Self-Propelled Compactor; Spreader- Chip- Stone, etc.;
Scraper- Single/Twin Engine/Push and Pull; Scraper- Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors pulling attachments, Sheeps Foot,
Disc, Compactor, etc.; Tug Boats.
Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, All Power Propelled; Cement Supply Tender; Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.; Forklift Trucks; Grouting Machine; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, All
Elevators; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Jeep Diggers; low Boys; Pipe Jacking Machines; Post-Hole Digger; Power Saw, Concrete Power Driven; Pug
Mills; Rollers, other than Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; Steam Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats;
Tamper-Form-Motor Driven.
Class 4. Air Compressor; Combination -Small Equipment Operator; Directional Boring Machine; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pile Driving, Extracting, or Drilling); light Plants, All (1 through 5); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300ft.); Pumps,
Well Points; Vacuum Trucks (excluding hose work); Welding Machines (2 through 5); Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.
Class 5. SkidSteer loader (all); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.
Class 6. Field Mechanics and Field Welders
Class 7. Dowell Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall and machines of like nature.
OPERATING ENGINEER- FLOATING
Class 1. Craft Foreman; Master Mechanic; Diver/Wet Tender; Engineer; Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge).
Class 2. Crane/Backhoe Operator; Boat Operator with towing endorsement; Mechanic/Welder; Assistant Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge); leverman
(Hydraulic Dredge); Diver Tender.
Class 3. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman, Maintenance of Crane (over 50 ton capacity) or Backhoe (115,000 lbs. or more); Tug/launch
Operator; loader/Dozer and like equipment on Barge, Breakwater Wall, Slip/Dock, or Scow, Deck Machinery, etc.
Class 4. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman/Fireman (4 Equipment Units or More); Off Road Trucks; Deck Hand, Tug Engineer, Crane
Maintenance (SO Ton Capacity and Under) or Backhoe Weighing (115,000 pounds or less); Assistant Tug Operator.

Class 5. Friction or Lattice Boom Cranes.
Class 6. ROV Pilot, ROV Tender
TERRAZZO FINISHER
The handling of sand, cement; marble chips, and all other materials that may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grinding, grouting, cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mosaic, and Terrazzo work, floors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or machine, and in
addition, assisting and aiding Marble, Masonic, and Terrazzo Mechanics.
TRAFFIC SAFETY
Work associated with barricades, horses and drums used to reduce lane usage on highway work, the installation and removal of temporary lane
markings, and the installation and removal of temporary road signs.
TRUCK DRIVER- BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION- EAST & WEST
Class 1. Two or three Axle Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for transportation purposes; Air Compressors and Welding Machines, including
those pulled by cars, pick-up trucks and tractors; Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck Washers; Carry-alls; Fork
Lifts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanics Helpers and Greasers; Oil Distributors 2-man operation; Pavement Breakers; Pole Trailer, up to 40 feet;
Power Mower Tractors; Self-propelled Chip Spreader; Skipman; Slurry Trucks, 2-man operation; Slurry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man;
Teamsters; Unskilled Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights, barricades, and portable toilets on the job site.
Class 2. Four axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards; Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
Turnatrailers when pulling other than self-loading equipment or similar equipment under 16 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yards; Ready-mix
Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Axles.
Class 3. Five axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 yards and over; Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or.
turnapulls when pulling other than self-loading equipment or similar equipment over 16 cubic yards; Explosives and/or Fission Material Trucks;
Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes while in transit; Oil Distributors, 1-man operation; Pole Trailer, over 40 feet; Pole and Expandable
Trailers hauling material over 50 feet long; Slurry trucks, 1-man operation; Winch trucks, 3 axles or more; Mechanic--Truck Welder and Truck
Painter.
Class 4. Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehicles, such as mounted crane trucks with hoist and accessories; Foreman; Master Mechanic; Selfloading equipment like P.B. and trucks with scoops on the front.
Other Classifications of Work:

For definitions of classifications not otherwise set out, the Department generally has on file such definitions which are available. If a task to be
performed is not subject to one of the classifications of pay set out, the Department will upon being contacted state which neighboring county
has such a classification and provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference in this document. If no neighboring county rate
applies to the task, the Department shall undertake a special determination, such special determination being then deemed to have existed
under this determination. If a project requires these, or any classification not listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 for wage rates or
clarifications.
LANDSCAPING
Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborer, operating engineer and truck driver. The work performed by landscape
plantsman and landscape laborer is covered by the existing classification of laborer. The work performed by landscape operators (regardless of
equipment used or its size) is covered by the classifications of operating engineer. The work performed by landscape truck drivers (regardless of
size of truck driven) is covered by the classifications of truck driver.
MATERIAL TESTER & MATERIAL TESTER/INSPECTOR I AND II
Notwithstanding the difference in the classification title, the classification entitled "Material Tester I" involves the same job duties as the
classification entitled "Material Tester/Inspector 1". Likewise, the classification entitled "Material Tester II" involves the same job duties as the
classification entitled "Material Tester/Inspector II".

Building & Zoning Committee Divider
Jamie Zaura, Chairwoman
Scott Mesick
James Kucera

Village Board Agenda Mem o
Date: June 12, 2018
To:

President & Board of Trustees

From: Emily Rodman, Assistant Village Manager .p(1CJ
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager~
RE:

Zoning Application No. 2018-05,303 E. 31st Street- Zoning Variation

GENERAL BACKGROUND
On April 17, 2018, the Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider
Zoning Application No. 2018-05 filed by Dan Hollowed. The application requests a variation
from Section 153.193(D)(2)(a)1 of the Zoning Code to permit a four foot open fence to
extend approximately 25' south of the front building line of the home and continue east
(approximately 36.5') to meet the existing fence on the neighboring property.
The Planning and Zoning Commission accepted testimony and evidence into the record. Upon
conclusion of the testimony and discussion, the Planning and Zoning Commission determined
that the application met the standards for a variation and recommended that the Village Board
grant the above noted variation

MOTION/ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for both discussion and action.
Motion to Approve an Ordinance Granting a Certain Variation for 303 E. 31st Street (Public
Hearing No. 2018-05)

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning and Zoning Commission on a vote of 6 "AYES" and 0 "NAYS" has recommended
that the zoning application be approved.
DOCUMENTATION
• Ordinance Amending the La Grange Park Zoning Code as Amended/Findings of Fact
• Transcript of the public hearing for Zoning Application No. 2018-05
• Zoning application (previously distributed)

ORDINANCE NO. 1088
ORDINANCE GRANTING A CERTAIN
VARIATION FOR 303 E. 31st STREET
(PUBLIC HEARING NO. 2018-05)
WHEREAS, on or about February 16, 2018, Dan Hollowed filed an application for a
variation ("Application") to permit the installation of a fence in front yard on property
commonly referred to as 303 E. 31st Street; and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission of the
Village of La Grange Park, Illinois, on April 17, 2018, pursuant to notice and publication as
required by law; and
WHEREAS, upon conclusion of the public hearing the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommended the Village Board of Trustees grant the variation to allow construction of a
four foot open fence in a front yard as requested in the Application, based upon certain
Findings of Fact, true and correct copies of which are attached to this Ordinance; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange Park has reviewed the
Application, public notice and Findings of Fact, and have publicly discussed this application
at a Village Board Meeting on June 12, 2018, and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village
of La Grange Park, Cook County, Illinois as follows:
SECTION 1:

That a variation from Section 153.193(D)(2)(a)1 of the Zoning Code to permit
a four foot open fence to extend approximately 25' south of the front building
line of the home and continue east (approximately 36.5') to meet the existing
fence on the neighboring property, is hereby granted, subject to the condition
that the Applicant obtain all necessary permits for the existing pergolas
located on the subject property, prior to issuance of a building permit to
construct the fence. If the necessary permits are not obtained, then the
pergolas must be removed prior to issuance of a building permit to construct
the fence.

SECTION 2:

The property that is the subject of the variation granted in Section 1 of this
Ordinance is commonly known as 303 E. 31st Street and is legally described
as follows:
LOTS 150 AND 151 IN TALMAN AND THIELE'S WEST 31ST STREET
SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTHEAST%. OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH,
RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, AND ALSO THE
WEST 5 FEET OF LOT 100 IN ROBINHOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISlON OF THE
SOUTHWEAST 14 OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

SECTION 3:

That all necessary permits may be issued by the Village of La Grange Park,
subject to further compliance with this Ordinance and all other applicable
Village Ordinances and Codes.

SECTION 4:

That this Ordinance shall become effective and shall be in full force and effect
from and after its passage in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Village of La Grange Park,
Cook County, Illinois, this 12th day of June, 2018.

James L. Discipio, Village President
Village of La Grange Park

ATTEST:_ _ _ __ _ _ __ _
Amanda Seidel, Village Clerk
Village of La Grange Park

Vote taken by the Board of Trustees on passage of the above ordinance:
AYES:

NOS:

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT:

Village Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORMVILLAGE A1TORNEY- 5/30/ 18

FINDINGS OF FACT
VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
303 E. 31ST STREET
CASE NO. 2018-05

WHEREAS, Dan HoJ1owed, referred to as the "Applicant," on or about February 20,
2018, fi1ed an Application for a Variation to seek approval to install a fence in the front yard
on property known as 303 E. 31st Street ("Subject Property"); and
WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting a variation to allow the construction of a
four foot wrought iron style fence in the front yard, and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission
of the Village of La Grange Park, Illinois, on April 17, 2018, pursuant to notice and
publication as required by law; and
WHEREAS, the public hearing was opened at 7:00 p.m. on April 17, 2018, and
pursuant to a unanimous vote of the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 17, 2018,
the public hearing was concluded; and
WHEREAS, based upon documentary evidence and testimony presented by the
AppJicants and members of the public, the Planning and Zoning Commission makes the
following Summary of Facts, and pursuant to Section 153.057(F) of the La Grange Park
·
Zoning Code, makes the following Findings of Fact:
SUMMARY OF FACTS
The Subject Property is zoned R-1 Single Family. The Subject Property is improved
with a single-family home, attached two car garage and patio. The home is oriented
toward Community Drive.
The Applicant is requesting to install a four foot open fence with brick columns in
the front yard. The proposed fence would extend approximately 25' south of the
front building line of the home, the full extent of the front yard setback, and would
continue east to the Subject Property line (approximately 36.5') to meet the existing
fence on the neighboring Subject Property. Section 153.193(D)(2)(a)l Zoning Code
prohibits fences in front yards from extending beyond the front building line and
thus the Applicant's request requires a zoning variation.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The strict application of the terms of this Zoning Code will result in undue
hardship unless the specific relief requested is granted.
The location of the Subject Property along a State road, the orientation of the home
toward a local road (Community Drive) and the placement of the home on the
Subject Property, result in there being limited usable yard space. The interior yard

of the home (which functions as the rear yard) is less than 11' from the east
Property line, providing minimal recreational or usable space. The rear yard of the
home (which functions as a side yard) is smaller than the front yard and is improved
with a patio and pergola. The patio and pergola would not have been permitted in
the front yard per the Zoning Code and could not be constructed in the side yard due
to setback requirements for patios. Consequently, the front yard of the Subject
Property is the primary recreational space available. Due to the proximity of the
yard to 31st Street and the resulting safety concerns, this yard is not usable for
children and pets without a fence to prevent access to the street. If the variation to
allow construction of a fence is not granted, the Applicant is essentially unable to
use to the front yard for recreation, the primary yard space on the Subject Property.
2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances inherent to the Subject
Property and not from the personal situation of the owner.
The Subject Property is located along a major arterial roadway. 31st Street is a four
lane road under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Department of Transportation (lOOT).
Since lOOT controls the right·of-way, the Village has little ability to mitigate the
impacts of this roadway on neighboring residents and Subject Property owners. Only a
small fraction of the single·family homes in the Village are located along major arterial
roadways and even fewer of those are oriented in the manner of the Subject Property.
The Subject Property is orientated toward Community Drive and the west side of the
Subject Property functions as the front yard (although is considered a corner side yard
by the Zoning Code) and the east side of Subject Property functions as the rear yard
(considered the interior side yard by the Zoning Code). While the green space along
31st Street functions as a side yard for the home, it is in fact the front yard of the
Subject Property as defined by the Zoning Code. The home is located closer to the east
Subject Property line than the west, resulting in a rear yard that is less than 11' deep.
The majority of the green space on the Subject Property is located in the front yard.
However, due to its adjacency to 31st Street, this space is not a safe location for
children or pets or use.
The location of the Subject Property along a major arterial, the orientation of the home
to a local roadway, and the placement of the home on the Subject Property such that
the front yard is the deepest yard on the Subject Property, while the rear yard is quite
narrow, are factors which in combination, are unique to this particular Subject
Property.
3. The variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
The Applicant is requesting to install a four foot open wrought iron style fence with
brick columns (in place of posts) which would match the existing fence located on the
north side of the home. The proposed fence would preserve visibility from the street
into the Subject Property and aesthetically matches the style of the existing home. The
proposed fence would not alter the character of the neighborhood.

•

Regarding the request for the variation outlined above, the Planning and Zoning
Commission voted as fol1ows:

AYES:

Domagalski, Studwell, Bartholomai, Lee, Boyd, Lampert

NAYS:

None

ABSENT:

None

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 15th day of May, 2018.

VILLAGE OF LA GRA~ PARK

PLANr AN~Nr~ :~ION

By:

(

)~
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BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

In Re the Matter of:
Application for Consideration of

No. 2018-05

a Zoning Variation for
303 E. 31st Street .

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS
April 17, 2018
7:00 p.m.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony taken
at the public hearing of the above-entitled cause,
before the VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS, held at the LaGrange Park Village Hall,
447 North Catherine, LaGrange Park, Illinois .

Reported by:

Pamela L. Cosentino, CSR

License No.:

084-003601

303 E. 31st Street
April 17, 2018
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1
2

3
4

A p p E A R A N C E S;
MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.
MS.
MR.

ERIC BOYD, Chairman
CHRISTOPHER STUDWELL, Member
WILLIAM LAMPERT, Member
J I M LEE, Member
CAROLINE DOMAGALSKI, Member
ROBERT BARTHOLOMAI, Member

5
6

ALSO PRESENT;
7

8
9

10
11
12

MS.
MS.
MS.
MS.
MR.

EMILY RODMAN, Assistant Village Manager
CATHLEEN M. KEATING, Village Attorney
AMANDA G. SEIDEL, Village Clerk
JULIA CEDILLO, Village Manager
DEAN MAGGOS, Director or Building & Fire

PRESENT FOR THE PETITIONER:
MR. DANIEL HOLLOWED, Applicant
MRS. JUDITH HOLLOWED, Applicant

13

14

*

*

*

15
16

17
18
19

20

21
22
23

24

County Court Reporters , Inc.
630.653.1622

303 E. 31st Street
April 17, 2018
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

"Notice is hereby given on

2

April 17, 2018, a public hearing will be held

3

before the Planning & Zoning Commission of

4

LaGrange Park, Illinois, in the Village Hall at

5

447 North Catherine Avenue, at 7:00p.m. or

6

soon thereafter, for the purpose of considering an

7

application for a zoning variation on a property

8

zoned as R-1 Residential District located at

9

303 East 31st Street, LaGrange Park, Illinois,"

10
11
12
13
14
15

with the following legal description:
1

"The petitioner is requesting a variation to allow
for the construction of a fence in a front yard."
This is actually part of the record, so I
won't read anymore, and the court reporter has a copy.
So the next thing I'll ask is for the Village

16

attorney to explain a little bit about public hearings

17

and procedure and what we're going to be doing tonight.

18

COMMISSIONER KEATING:

At the beginning of the

19

public hearing, we're going to have two public hearings

20

tonight, one for 303 East 31st Street, and then a

21

second public hearing for the rezoning of parcels along

22

LaGrange Road.

23
24

At the beginning of each of those public
hearings, Chairman Boyd will ask if anyone who thinks

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

303 E. 31st Street
April 17, 2018
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1

that they might possibly want to testify for or against

2

the petition, please stand up, the court reporter will

3

swear you in.

Then the petitioner wi l l make a

4

presentation .

After that, the staff may have some

5

comments .

6

to speak about the petition.

7

limit on your comments on both of these petitions.

8

just so I make it clear, when we ask for the people who

9

want to testify in the first hearing, just the people

10

who want to testify about 303 East 31st Street are to

11

stand up .

12

After that, we'll hear from people who want
There's a three-minute
But

Once the petitioner and anybody else in the

13

audience has spoken on either of these matters, the

14

Planning & Zoning Commission will have questions, maybe

15

of the petitioner or of the staff.

16

within the public hearing.

17

This is all still

Following that, the chairman will ask for a

18

motion to close the public hearing.

19

court reporter will leave, there's no further

20

transcript of testimony, and the Planning & Zoning

21

Committee will then debate the merits of the

22

application and take a vote.

23

24

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

At that point, the

Very good .

So we have the variation public hearing

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630 . 653 .1 622

303 E. 31st Street
April 17, 2018
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1

first.

And I'm going to ask everyone who was going to

2

present testimony for that variation proceeding for

3

303 East 31st Street to stand and be sworn in.

4

(Dan Hollowed, Judith Hollowed,

5

Dean Maggos and Emily Rodman

6

duly sworn.)

7

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

For most of you, this is going to

8

be an exercise in watching how a public hearing

9

proceeds.

10

So sit back and listen.

l t should go fairly

quickly.

11

You'll notice that the court reporter is

12

writing everything down.

13

say words.

14

heads, that doesn't get recorded in the transcript.

15

And the same thing will happen in the next public

16

hearing regarding the text amendment for LaGrange Road.

17
18

"Uh-huhs" and "uh-uhs" or shakings of

So I'll ask that the petitioner,
Mr. Hollowed, stand up and present your case.

19

MR. HOLLOWED:

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21
22
23
24

So the petitioner needs to

Good evening.
State your name and address for the

reporter.
MR. HOLLOWED:
Hollowed.

My name is Dan, this 1s Judy

We're the owners of 303 East 31st Street .
Our home is unique as it's on a corner, so

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

303 E . 31st Street
April 17, 2018
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1

from a zoning standpoint, the front of the house is on

2

31st Street.

3

Community Drive, however, as are our entryways.

4

real functional front yard of the home is along

5

Community, not along 31st Street.

6

The home is actually orientated toward

The back of the house is on the east side of

7

the home, but we don't use it very much.

8

than 15 feet wide.

9

for us.

10

So the

It's less

So there's not really much there

The only real usable grass area on the

11

property is along 31st Street.

Generally, we stayed

12

away from that over the years.

We've had enough close

13

calls with balls and kids going onto the Parkway toward

14

31st that we don't go out there very much.

15

We also have cars that turn off of 31st,

16

taking a left onto Community; sometimes those are at a

17

fairly high rate of speed.

18

happened, there's enough tire tracks along LaGrange

19

Road that it's not inconceivable that we could get a

20

car on the property some day, and that's always been a

21

concern for us.

Although it's never

22

As you'll notice from the photos that we've

23

included with the application, we take a lot of pride

24

in the p r operty.

We've invested heavily in it over the

County Court Reporters, Inc .
630.653.1622

I
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1

27 years we've been here.

2

a four-foot high wrought iron fence along 31st Street

3

with stones columns similar to what we have on the

4

north side of the home.

5

four-foot high wooden fence.

6
7

And then along 31st Street, a

We appreciate your consideration to the
application, and we'd take any questions at this time .

8

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

9

to that presentation?

10

Our plan would be to put up

MS. RODMAN:

Staff, do you have anything to add

Yes.

I think the applicant did touch

11

on the three standards indirectly, but I will just go

12

through them quickly for the record.

13

standards that the Planning

14

considers when evaluating a variation request.

15

first is unique circumstance.

16

that while being a corner lot is not a unique

17

circumstance in the Village, this property is located

18

along a major arterial, a major roadway, 31st Street,

19

which is, of course, under the jurisdiction of IDOT .

20

That means the Village has very limited control 1n

21

terms of how we can mitigate the impact of that roadway

22

on the adjacent homeowners.

23

fraction of our single-family homeowners that live

24

along these major roadways and even a fewer number who

&

There are three

Zoning Commission
The

As the staff memo notes,

And there are only a small
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1

are on a corner lot along a major roadway with a home

2

that is oriented towards the rear of -- or placed

3

towards the rear of the property.

4

So because of the orientation of the home

5

and its location on the property, the front yard of

6

the home, which is the green space that is along

7

3 1 st Street, essentially functions as the rear yard of

8

the home and the primary recreation space or green

9

space for the property.

And because it is so close t o

10

a major roadway, it's not really suitable for children

11

or pets, as the applicant indicated.

12

And, therefore, staff also finds that this

13

does present a hardship for the applicant in terms of

14

limiting their ability to use their property in a

15

manner that others are typically able to use their

16

property.

17

circumstance.

18

So that was actually a hardship and unique

And then with regard to the essential

19

character of the locality, the proposed four-foot open

20

fence is in character with fences we see elsewhere in

21

the community.

22

visibility from the roadway into the property.

23

would not block visibility for vehicles on Community

24

D ~ ive

It would still provide excellent

or on 31st Street making turns.

It

So we think it

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

is consistent with other improvements we see in the

2

neighborhood.
And, as a result, staff does find the

3

petition meets the standards for a variation, and we

4

5
6
7

1

recommend that the Planning & Zoning Commission
recommend approval.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I notice that nobody from the

8

audience stood up and was sworn in for this public

9

hearing, but if anyone wants to speak now on behalf of

10

the petition or have any comments at all, please stand

11

and we'll swear you in and we'll take some comments.

12

MR. KRIHO:

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

14

I'd like to ask a question .
You've got to be sworn in first.

So let's have the court reporter swear you in.

15

(John Kriho duly sworn.)

16

MR. KRIHO:

17

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

18

MR. KRIHO:

19

Just a question.

20

John Kriho, K-r-i-h-o.
And where do you live, please?

35 West Jackson Avenue.
So you guys have been in the

property for 27 years did you say?

21

MR. HOLLOWED:

22

MR. KRIHO:

Yes.

What's prompting the desire to now add

23

a fence?

That was the only question that I have.

24

Because you don't seem like you got a bunch of little

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

ones.

Or maybe you do.

2

MRS. HOLLOWED:

3

MR. KRIHO:

4
5

We have a ten-year-old.

A ten-year-old.

Fair enough.

I can

see the need for it then.
MRS. HOLLOWED:

And we do have older ones that

6

we're anticipating marriage and grandkids, and not

7

living in the community.

8

and whatnot and always had them on the front of

9

Community Drive where, to me, it's more of a concern

And we've always had parties

10

when cars are whipping around, you know, that front

11

area.

12

the side that's gated so if they're playing ring toss

13

or any games, you know, we're not running into a street

14

grabbing things.

15

step that we --

16

17
18

Where, if I can put a party or activities off to

It ' s just something that -- another

MR. HOLLOWED:

Our dollars are limited, so we do

things in time.
MRS. HOLLOWED:

We always have things on mind and

19

thought that that was just something we could work

20

around until we needed it.

21

MR. KRIHO:

22

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

23
24

Very good.
I'll ask our Board if they have any

questions.
Mr. Bartholomai, would you begin?
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1
2

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

I have no questions,

Mr . Chairman .

3

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Ms. Domagalski?

4

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I note that we have a

5

letter in our packet from one of your neighbors and

6

they're indicating that they're in support of your

7

application.

8
9

I'm just wondering if there's any other
neighbors that you've spoken to about your proposed

10

fence, particularly the people that would be

11

immediately adjacent that have the existing fence

12

that's on 31st Street?

13

MR. HOLLOWED:

14

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

15

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

16

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

17

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

18

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

19

We have not spoken to him.
Thank you.

Mr. Studwell?
I have no questions.

Mr. Lampert?
I have no questions at this

time.

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

COMMISSIONER LEE:

22

circumstances.

23

well.

24

That's it.

Mr. Lee?
I don't have an issue on unique

I feel like you guys meet that pretty

And essential character and locality .
What I'm struggling with a bit is meeting the
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1

undue hardship.

2

to help sway that you do have an undue hardship?

3

You've lived there for 27 years.

4

property you were getting into.

5

as is.

6

allow you to get this varia tion ?

7

What else can you give me that's going

You knew what type of
The zoning code is set

What is the real undue hardship that would

MR. HOLLOWED:

I mean, the lack of a backyard, a

8

real backyard, is probably the one.

9

for a long time.

We've been there

We played ball out there before.

10

It's happened almost every time where something gets

11

onto the parkway.

12

and it's not a place where you would want to have young

13

ones now.

14

It's certainly not a place where you'd want young ones

15

out near trucks whipping by at 35 miles an hour .

16
17
18

And eventually we'll have grandkids,

We've gotten wiser as we've gotten older.

The r eal lack of an enclosed backyard is the
thing that I can lean on the most.
MRS. HOLLOWED:

I think, too, when we purchased the

19

house, like, I don't know, everyone here, as you

20

purchase this house and then you think »maybe I'm going

21

to move," and years go by and you're not moving .

22

That's just one, like, passion, that I had to actually

23

have a yard for our kids.

24

Now, like we said, that we're getting to the
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1

finances where, okay, we did this, we opened up the

2

house to have more room and space indoors, and now

3

we're looking at, you know, a place for my son to play

4

a little bit, we do have dogs, for him to throw a ball

5

and have him catch the ball, and it's just not, you

6

know -- and now I could maybe spoil my youngest one and

7

maybe give him that.

8

That's just kind of we decided we're not

9

moving, so somehow if I can work out getting a yard for

10

him to play safely in, it's just kind of our goal.

11

COMMISSIONER LEE:

12

it a 35-, a 30-mile-per-hour zone there on 31st?

13
14

MR. HOLLOWED:
1

MS. RODMAN:

It's 30 miles an hour .
Sounds right.

15

MR. HOLLOWED:

16

COMMISSIONER LEE:

17
18

And remind me, again, Emily, is

Posted.
I don't have anything further,

Mr. Chair.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I have a question for staff.

And

19

I'm in favor of this.

20

for a variance.

21

and I notice that your neighbor to the east also has a

22

fence sticking out into their front yard as well.

Do

23

we know anything about that property to the east?

Was

24

that a variation?

I think you meet the criteria

But I walked down there this weekend

How is it that the neighbor to the

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

303 E. 31st Street
April 17, 2018

14
1
2

east can have the fence sticking out, do we know?
MR. MAGGOS:

Hopefully Emily could correct me if

3

she knows otherwise.

4

standards until 2003.

5

that location was preexisting.

6

wha t had happened .

7

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

8

MR. HOLLOWED:

9
10

We did not have any fence
We believe that the fence in
So I believe that's

Thank you .
That fence has been there since we

moved in.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I'm going to ask for a motion to

11

close the public hearing, which means that the court

12

reporter will stop typing and the evidence will be

13

closed.

14

else to say, to add?
Do we have any other questions from the

15
16

Board?

17
18

Before I do that, do you all have anything

I'll ask for a motion to close the public
hearing.

19

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

22

CHAIRMAN DAVIS:

23

BOARD MEMBERS:

24

So moved.

Second?
Second.

All in favor say "aye" .
(In unison) Aye.

*

*

*
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1

STATE OF ILLINOIS
SS:

2

COUNTY OF C 0 0 K

3

4

I, PAMELA L. COSENTINO, being first duly

5

sworn on oath says that she is a court reporter doing

6

business in the City of Chicago; that she reported in

7

shorthand the proceedings given at the taking of said

8

meeting and that the foregoing is a true and correct

9

transcript of her shorthand notes so taken as

10

aforesaid and contains all the proceedings given at

11

said meeting.

12

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

I have hereunto set my

13

verified digital signature this 21st day of April,

14

2018.

15
16
17
PAMELA L. COSENTINO, CSR
18
19

20
21
22

23
24
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Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

June 12,2018

To:

President & Board of Trustees

From: Emily Rodman, Assistant ViHage Manager#
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager ~
RE:

Zoning Application No. 2018-04, Rezoning of Certain Properties Along La Grange RoadMap Amendment Request

GENERAL BACKGROUND
On April 17, 2018, the Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider Zoning
Application No. 2018-04 filed by the Village of La Grange Park The application requested to rezone
114 parcels (109 addresses) from R-1 Single Family Residence District to R-2 Two Family Residence
District in order to address the legal non-conforming status of existing two-family property owners.
The Planning and Zoning Commission accepted testimony and evidence into the record. Upon
conclusion of the testimony and discussion, the Planning and Zoning Commission determined that the
application as presented was not the best manner in which to address the legal non-conforming
status of two-family property owners. They voted to deny the rezoning/map amendment request.
The Planning and Zoning Commission encouraged the Village Board to identify an alternative
approach to address the concerns of two-family property owners in this area.
Village staff will provide a brief presentation at the Work Session meeting regarding this issue.

MOTION/ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for both discussion and action. There are three options the Village Board may wish to
consider.
OPTIONl

Given that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended the Village Board consider an
alternative approach to the proposed comprehensive rezoning of the 114 parcels, the Village Board
may wish to remand the application back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a narrower
scope. For example, the Village Board may remand the application with direction for the Planning
and Zoning Commission to consider the rezoning of only those parcels which are currently being
used as two-family dwellings to the R-2 Two Family Residence District This would not require a
new public hearing be held, but staff could provide notice to the impacted residences at the
direction of the Board. Following this process, the rezoning of two family properties could
potentially be approved by the Board of Trustees in August
If the Village Board selects this option, only one motion is needed, as follows:

Motion to Remand the Application for a Map Amendment to Rezone Certain Properties Along
La Grange Road (Public Hearing No. 2018-04) back to the Planning & Zoning Commission for
the purpose ofconsidering rezoning only those properties in the Map Amendment Application
which are cuJTently two-family dwellings to the R-21\vo Family Residence District

OP_TION2
Rather than remanding the application back to the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Village
Board may prefer to deny the application as proposed and direct staff to pursue a new application
to rezone only those two family parcels to the R-2 Two Family Residence District This would
require a new public hearing be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission, a legal notice be
published in the newspaper, signs be placed on the impacted properties, and certified letters be
sent to approximately 400 homes. Following this process, the rezoning of two-family properties
could potentiaJly be approved in October.
If the Village Board selects this option, two motions are necessary, as follows:
Motion to Deny a Zoning Application for a Map Amendment to Rezone Certain Properties
Along La Grange Road (Public Hearing No. 2018-04).
Motion to Direct Village Staff to Proceed with an Application for a Map Amendment to Rezone
those properties along La Grange Road that are cuJTently Two-Family Properties to R-2 Two
Family Residence District

If successful, either process would fully restore the land use rights of existing two-family property owners
without rezoning the remaining R-1 single-family properties.
OPTJON3
The Village Board may wish to proceed with rezoning the 114 parcels as proposed in the
rezoning/map amendment application. The Village Board may overturn the Planning and Zoning
Commission's recommendation by a simple majority vote in a favor of approving the zoning
application as submitted.

If the Village Board selects this option, they will need to direct staff to prepare an ordinance for
consideration at the June 26, 2018 Village Board meeting. One motion is necessary, as follows:
Motion to Direct Village Staff to prepare an Ordinance Approving an Application for a Map
Amendment to Rezone Certain Properties Along La Grange Road (Public Hearing No. 201804).

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning and Zoning Commission on a vote of 5 "AYES" and 1 "NAYS" recommended denial of the
zoning application.

DOCUMENTATION
•
•
•
•

Letter from Cathleen Keating (Village Attorney) Regarding Spot Zoning
Findings of Fact for Public Hearing 2018-04
Transcript of the public hearing for Zoning Application No. 2018-04
Zoning application (previously distributed)

Law C>.ffkel

Martin, Craig, Chester &t Sonnenschein LLP
2215 York Road
Sulte550

ou Brook. Dlfnaii6Q523
CATHLBBN M. KBATJNG

'lelephone 630-472·5400
Pax 630-4?.2.(XM8

J:ll.-t a.l Number: 630-472-MO'l

B-NaO: ~.allll

May25, 2018

Ms. Julia Cedillo, Village Manager
Village of La Grange Park
447 N. Catherine Avenue
La Grange Park, IL 60526
Re:

SD9t Zoning

Dear Julia:
You requested that I provide you with case law analysis on what constitutes ".Pot
zoning" under Dlinois law, and whether.rezoning 'only those properties along LaGrange ROad
that are being used as 2-flats to the R-2 I Two Family District would be spot zoning.
Spot zoning has 2 prerequisites: I) a zoning change applicable to only a small land area;
2) which is inconsistent with the land uses of sunounding areas and the comprehensive plan.
Lancaster Development, Ltd v. Village ofRiver Forest, 84 lll. App.2d 395, 228 N.E.2d 526 (l~t
Dist. 1967). In that case, the court rejected the village's rezoning of 3 lots from multi-family to
single family, and upheld the existing multi-family zoning in favor of the land use rights of a
company which had purchased the 3 lots for a condominium project. The court held that the
village's attempt to rezone the 3 lots to single family, after the condominium project had been
proposed on land zoned multi-familyJ was spot zoning, since the area around the 3 lots was
zoned and improved as multi-family.

A classic case of spot zoning was Resldn v. City ofNorthlake, 55 lll.App.2d 184, 204
N.E.2d 600 (lu Dist. 1965) involving a petition by a prospective land purchaser who sought
rezoning of 2 lots from single family residential to commercial to facilitate construction of a gas
station. The 2 lots were pUrt of an area of approximately 200 contiguous residences, zoned
residential since 1923. Adjacent to the 2 lots was one comer lot at North Ave. and Railroad Ave.
which had been zoned commercial. The court concluded that rezoning the 2 lots to commercial
would have the effect of spot zoning; because the character of the area·wa.S so prominently
·
·. ·
residential.
: · Th~ .Illinois Supreme Court in Fifteen Fifty North State Building Corp~ · v: City.of
Chicago, 15.ll.2d 408, l·.SS N.E.2d 97 (1958) held that not every reclassification a single tract
ofland is considered invalid as spot ioning. This case involved a property (1550 N:State),

of

Matta, ems, OteaiB'It SoaNalcMia UP

improved with a 12-story 40..unit apartment building built in 1912. In 1923 the area was zoned
as Volume 4, and the 1SSO building was a conforming use. The surrounding areas consisted of a
mix of multi-family buildings, single family residences, a rooming house and the Latin School.
In 1942, the west side of North State Street, including the 1550 building, was rezoned
from Volume 4 to Volume 3 residential, a less intensive use, which rendered the 1550 building a
legal nonconforming use. The land on the east side ofNorth State Street all the way to Lake
Michigan retained the Volume 4 land use designation. The plaintiff bought the 1550 building
contingent upon it being rezoned back~ Volume 4. On petition by the buyer, the city in 1956
n:zoned the 1550 parcel back to Volume 4. Owners of neighboring property challenged the
rezoning of the single lot. At trial, the city testified that rezoning to the prior district was
appropriate given the 1550 building's current use and also the mix ofmulti-fiuniiy and single
family uses in the surrounding area. The city also stated that rezoning was consistent with the
comprehensive plan, which mandated that higher density areas be situated near the parks and
lakefront. The court agreed that the n:zoning of the one 1550 parcel from one residential district
to another is not invalid as spot zoning. The size of the parcel being rezoned is just one factor to
consider; other factors are the character and zoning of the surrounding area and consistency of
the rezoning with the underlying comprehensive plan.
Based upon these cases, I conclude that rezoning those lots along LaGrange Road
between Ogden and 31 1t Street that are being used as 2-tlats from the Single Family (R-1) to the
Two-Family (R-2) district is not illegal as spot zoning. Both are residential uses and both zoning
classifications are consistent with stated goals of the LaGrange Park Comprehensive Plan.

~
~
jf~
7-c...
.
,
_
~
~~M.
Keating
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FINDINGS OF FACT
VILLAGE OF lAGRANGE PARK PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
lAGRANGE ROAD MAP AMENDMENT- VARIOUS PROPERTIES
CASE NO. 2018..()4

WHBRBAS, the Village, referred to as the "Applicant,• on or about March 20, 2018,
filed an Application for a Map Amendment to rezone certain parcels along La Grange Road
as listed fn the attached Exhibit (collectively referred to as "Subject Properties"), and
WHEREAS, the Applicant ts requesting to rezone the Subject Properties from R-1
Single Family Residence District to R-2 Two-Family Residence District, and
WHEREAS~ a public hearins was held before the Planning and Zoning Commission
of the Village of La Grange Park, lllinois on April 17, 2018, pursuant to notice and
publication as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the public hearing was opened at 7:30 p.m. on April 17, 2018, and
pursuant to a unanimous vote of the Planning and Zoning Commission on Aprfl17, 2018,
the public hearing was concluded; and
WHEREAS, based upon documentary evidence and testimony presented by the
Applicants and members of the public, the Planning and Zoning Commlsslon ("'PZC") makes
the following Summary of Facts and Findings of Fact:

SUMMARY OF FACJ"S
In 2011, the Village adopted a new Zoning Code. All property within the VHlage was
rezoned at that time to match the newly created zoning districts. As part of that
rezoning, 114 parcels/109 addresses located along the east and west sides of La
Grange Road, generally between 31st Street to the north and Brewster to the south
{the Subject Properties) were rezoned from the D Two-Famlly Residence District to
the R-1 ~ingle-Family Residence District Currently, the Subject Properties contain a
mix of single-family and two-family uses.
In October and November 2017, residents approached the Vtllage Board and
requested that the Village Board change the zoning of the Subject Properties back to
the 2-family zoning. The residents asserted that the 2011 rezoning had had a
detrimental financial impact on the Subject Properties, by limiting the rights of 2·
famlly property owners to alter, improve or rebuild their properties. The Village
Board directed staff to proceed with a Zoning Map Amendment application to
rezone the Subject Properties 1w:k to the Two-Family (R-2) zoning district

aflbni reltel to the owners of the existing 2-fiat:s while still preserving the single &mUy mning
with which a majoricy ofthe Subject Properties mmplles.

The exlst1ng zoning dassification Is R-1 Single-family Residence District A majority
(approximately 58%) of the Subject Properties are single-family residences which is consistent
with the existing mntng. Approximately 42% of the Subject Properties are CUITelldy used as
two-family dwellings and those are allowed to remain as legal nonmnfonntng uses In the R·1
Single FamDy Residence District Other ZOning Code amendments may better protect the rights
of the 2-6at owners to rebuild or expand their 2-flats under the existing zoning duslficaUon
al1hough those a1tematives are not before the PZC and thus cannotbe mnsidered at this time.
&

The length oftime the Subject Proper"CY llllS been WJaJrl4 Q6, . . . , .. . . . . . . anrltftnd
In the aJnt.ext ofdtttlelopmf!lltln the area where the Sub}et:tPrGpei"CY Is loalted.

The majority ofthe Subject Properties are cunentlyoccupied.

f. 7'he ~ orlodco{evidetlce, o{cummunll:y nt!Bdfortlle usepropo.tetl byAppliaB&
The proposed remningwould aDow a use (two-family dwelltngl) which aJready exists on the
Subject Properties. The proposed zoning district (R-2) also allows for slngle-&mny residential
uses which ruiTeDdy exist on the Subject Properties. The majority of the properties are
oa:upled with single-famUy and two-famJ)y uses, which is evidence there continues tD be a
need for these uses In this area.

The proposed amendment is inconsistent wlth the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of
2006 ("Comp Plan). The Comp Plan designates the Subject Properties as single-family
residential; It was this designation which funned the justlftcatlon and impetus to
rezone the Subject Properties to the R-1 Single Family District In 2011. The Comp
Plan, adopted when the Subject Properties were zoned ·o-Two-family," identified
several Land Use Action Items (page 4-5), including:

"Amend the existing zoning ordinance to eliminate the two{amlly zoning
classification. This action would preserve existing single-family uses and discourage
new two-family development from being built in these areas. However, lots with
existing two-family buildings would be allowed to remain as two-family lots."

and
"Encourage the gradual elimination oftwo-family zoning districts where appropriate."
The Zoning Map was revised tn be amslstentwith the Camp Plan In 2011 Rezoning the Subject
Properties tD R-1 Single Family Residential District zontng was Intended to effect the gradual

Regarding the request for the Zoning Map Amendment outlined above, the Planning and
Zoning Commission voted to recommend denial of the request as follows:
AYES:

Domaga]ski, Studwell, Bartholomaf, Lee, Lampert

NAYS:

Boyd

ABSENT:

None

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 15th day of May, 2018.
VILLAGE OF LA GRAN~
B Rl<
PLANNING AND ZO~J I
MISSION

By:

/l

C.( ''l .,) ·\

co
'
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BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

In Re the Matter of:
Application for Consideration for

No. 2018-04

a Map Amendment for Certain Properties
Along LaGrange Road.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS
April 17, 2018
7:00 p . m.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony taken
at the public hearing of the above-entitled cause,
before the VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS, held at the LaGrange Park Village Hall,
447 North Catherine, LaGrange Park, Illinois .

Reported by:

Pamela L . Cosentino, CSR

License No.:

084-003601

Application for Map Amendment
April 17, 2018

2

A p p E A R A N C E S:

1

MR. ERIC BOYD, Chairman

2

MR. CHRISTOPHER STUDWELL, Member
MR. WILLIAM LAMPERT, Member

3
I
I

4

MR. JIM LEE, Member
MS. CAROLINE DOMAGALSKI, Member
MR. ROBERT BARTHOLOMAI, Member

5

6

ALSO PRESENT:
7

MS. EMILY RODMAN, Assistant Village Manager
8

MS. CATHLEEN M. KEATING, Village Attorney
MS. AMANDA G. SEIDEL, Village Clerk

9

MS. JULIA CEDILLO, Village Manager
MR. DEAN MAGGOS, Director or Building & Fire

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18

19
20
21
22

23
24
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

We'll begin the public hearing .

2

I'll first ask that anyone who thinks they might give

3

testimony today in this matter, please rise and be

4

sworn in.

5

and be sworn in so we don't have to do it again later.

Even if you don't think you might, stand up

6

(Witnesses duly sworn . )

7

CHAlRMAN BOYD:

8

present your case .

9

MS. RODMAN:

Let's begin with the Village and

I am going to stand right here, which

10

might make it a little difficult for you guys to see .

11

I apologize.

12
13
14

Can everybody hear me okay?

I'm Emily Rodman.

I am presenting the

application on behalf of the Village of LaGrange Park .
CHAIRMAN BOYD :

Emily, before you begin, I'm sorry,

15

I think I should have read-in the notice.

16

reference for the record that the notice was provided

17

that there would be a public hearing on April 17th, and

18

notice was given to a long list of people on the

19

notice, and it's regarding pressing to rezone the

20

subject properties from the R-1 single-family residents

21

district zoning classifications to the R-2 two-family

22

residents district.

23
24

So I'll make

So with that , go ahead .
MS . RODMAN :

Thank you.

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

So this presentation will review the
I know

th~t

2

application on behalf of the Village.

the

3

Planning & Zoning Commission has received staff's memo

4

which contains all of this information.

5

the audience may have read the staff memo online, but

6

for those of you who have not, this presentation will

7

take you through the basis of the application.

Many of you in

8

So the Map Amendment Request that is before

9

the commission tonight is to revert the zoning of 114

10

parcels, which is actually just 109 addresses, because

11

there are some addresses that have two or three parcels

12

attached to them, back to two-family residential from

13

the current single-family zoning.

14

The subject properties are generally located

15

along LaGrange Road, between Brewster, which is the

16

southern border of the Village, to 31st Street to the

17

north, just south of the BP station there.

18

The application is being brought forward at

19

the request of about a dozen two-family property owners

20

along LaGrange Road.

21

and November of last year, and I will go into that in a

22

bit more detail later in the presentation.

23
24

That request was made in October

And as a result of those residents bringing
that request forward, the Village Board directed staff

County Court Reporters, Inc.
63 0. 653. 1622

Application for Map Amendment
April 17, 2018

5

1

to review all of the two-family to single-family zoning

2

changes, which occurred as a result of the adoption of

3

the 2011 Zoning Code, and that direction was given to

4

staff in 2011 or -- excuse me -- in February of 2018 .

5

And after reviewing all of those changes, the Board

6

directed staff to move forward with this application.

7

So I will go into a bit more detail on each

8

of these as we work our way through the application

9

tonight.

10

This is a map of the properties and I

11

understand that it's pretty much impossible to see .

12

There were some copies of this map that were up here on

13

the table, so hopefully many of you had a chance to

14

look at that.

15

Road that are being considered tonight.

16

This highlights the areas on LaGrange

It is the 1000 block of LaGrange Road, the

17

east side, and the 900 block, the east side.

The west

18

side of course of the street is forest preserves.

19

is the 800 blocks, both the east and west side.

20

700 blocks, both the east and west side.

21

block, just the east side.

22

west side.

23

And then the 400 blocks, which are -- there are two

24

400 blocks on the west side of LaGrange Road.

It
The

The 600

The 500 block, just the

A few properties along Harding and Oak.

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

300 blocks on the west side of LaGrange Road, along

2

with a couple properties on Richmond.

3

quick summary.

So that's the

I did want to bring to your attention the

4

5

properties along LaGrange Road that are not included.

6

That includes the 600 block of LaGrange Road on the

7

west side.

8

kind of triangular isosceles triangle.

9

side of LaGrange Road of Poet's Corner is the tip of

It's hard to see up here, but it's that
On the west

10

that.

That is being excluded because those properties

11

already were zoned single-family prior to 2011.

12

they were not changed with the 2011 zoning code; they

13

were single family prior to that.

14

being considered tonight.

So

So those are not

15

The northwest corner of LaGrange Road and

16

Jackson Avenue, those are those single-family homes

17

that abut the forest preserve.

18

single-family, so those are not being considered, they

19

were never two-family.

20

Plymouth Place, those are zoned R-4, those are zoned

21

multi-family.

22

space along LaGrange Road, Village Market, and so on,

23

which is not being considered institutional space, the

24

library, and then open space, Memorial Park and Poet's

Those were always zoned

As well as the Grove and

And then of course there is commercial

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

Corner.

2

So I just wanted to clarify that.

3

Those are not being considered tonight either.

So as part of our evaluation of the area,

4

staff did set about to identify the current use of the

5

properties.

6

of the structures, the number of doors, mailboxes, and

7

driveway configuration to try to determine which were

8

two-family and which were single-family.

9

We took a look at the architectural style

We also looked at the Cook County Tax

10

Assessor data, which can be very helpful but can also

11

be inaccurate.

12

looking at these is a breakdown of which homes are

13

single-family and two-family, to our best estimation.

And what we were able to determine from

14

Of course, some of the structures were

15

constructed as two-flats initially and some were

16

single-family homes that were legally converted to

17

two-flats and some may be single-family homes that were

18

illegally converted to two-flats.

19

for us to know exactly which homes and how many homes

20

are two-flats, but by looking at a variety of data, we

21

made our best guess.

22

It's also outlined in the staff memo.

23
24

So it's not possible

And that is what you see here.

So this chart shows the distribution of land
uses, again, our best estimate, by block because it

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

does vary significantly block to block.

2

block is on the left.

3

single-family uses, and the coral or orange bar is the

4 ,

two- family uses.

5

So the 300

The green bar is the

So you can see there are some blocks, like

6

the 300 block, that only has about 22 percent

7

multi-family on it, and some blocks like the 600, 800

8

and 900 blocks which are almost 60 percent

9

multi-family.

10

So it's a pretty broad range across the

different blocks along LaGrange Road.

11

We also took a look at the zoning history of

12

these properties to gain a better understanding of how

13

the zoning of the properties has changed over time.

14

The first zoning map and zoning ordinance were enacted

15

in the Village in 1925.

16

subject properties that we're considering tonight were

17

zoned as apartments, which was a B District at that

18

time.

19

was.

20

or more.

21

were zoned as apartments.

22

At that time a portion of the

I don't know what the definition of "apartments 11
I don't know if that was two units or four units
The 1925 map is not that detailed.

But they

By the time we get to the 1962 zoning map,

23

all of the subject properties along LaGrange Road were

24

zoned two-family.

So they were zoned as the D Duplex

County Court Reporters, Inc .
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1

District.

2

two-family from at least 1962, all the way until 2011 .

3

So those properties remained zoned

In 2011, the Village adopted a new zoning

4

code and we created all new zoning districts.

5

entire Village was rezoned at that time to match the

6

new zoning districts that were put in place.

7

that was done, these 114 parcels along LaGrange Road

8

were rezoned from the D Duplex District to the R-1

9

single- f amily district.

10

And the

And when

As a result of that rezoning, all of the

11

two-family properties become legal nonconforming uses .

12

So the single-family of course remained legal uses, but

13

the two-family uses became nonconforming.

14

So with regard to the map amendment, I wanted

15

to just share this statement with the group tonight so

16

you have an understanding of what the Zoning Board and

17

the Village Board look at when they consider map

18

amendments.

19

states that the Planning & Zoning Commission

20

recommendation and Village Board 1 s decision on any

21

zoning amendment, whether text or map amendment, is a

22

matter of legislative discretion that 1s not controlled

23

by any particular standard.

24

recommendation and decision, the planning and zoning

And the Zoning Code Section 153 . 056(e)

However, in making their

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

commission and the Village Board shall consider the

2

following standards, as set forth below.

3

So they're not required to adhere to these

4

standards, but the Code does strongly encourage them to

5

consider these standards when evaluating this request.
There are 11 standards.

6

They're really hard

7

to read.

8

because we're going to go through them one by one , as

9

it relates to this particular application .

10
11

I'm not going to read them all to you now

So those

are the 11 standards . ·
So the first standard, A, is compatibility

12

with the existing uses and zoning of nearby property.

13

Of course as we've talked about, the current use of the

14

properties are a mix of single-family and two-family

15

dwelling units .

16

allows the single-family but is inconsistent with the

17

two-family use.

18

consistent with both uses .

19

both two-family uses as well as single-family uses.

20

And the adjacent properties, for the most

The current zoning is R-1, which

The proposed zoning, the R-2, is
So the R-2 zoning allows

21

part, are primarily single-family to the east and west

22

of these properties.

Of course there is some open

23 , space, institutional and commercial uses l i ke we talked
24

about, further south on LaGrange Road.

County Court Reporters, Inc .
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Standard B:

1

The extent to which the property

2

values of the subject realty are diminished by the

3

existing zoning.

4

application here.

5

this.

6

This is really the crux of the
So I'm going to try to walk through

So as we went through earlier, the subject

7

properties were zoned two-family for at least five

8

decades, again, some of them up to upwards of 80 years .

9

But we know they were all zoned two-family for at least

10
11

50 years .

The 2011 rezoning resulted 1n all of these

12

two-family structures becoming legal nonconforming .

13

And what that means, if you look at the box to the

14

right here, is that when a property is legal

15

nonconforming, it becomes subject to different

16

regulations 1n the zoning code than properties that are

17

legal uses.

18

So it becomes subject to this

19

Section 153.282, which is nonconforming uses and

20

structures.

21

is, those property owners are allowed to perform

22

general repair and maintenance on their property, but

23

they are prohibited from expanding their property, from

24

certain structural alterations, and from replacing the

And practically speaking, what that means

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

use or the structure if it's damaged or destroyed

2

beyond SO percent of its value.

3

key limitation here.

4

And that's really the

So if there is a fire to the structure, if

5

there is a tornado, if there is a flood, some sort of

6

act of nature that destroys the property beyond

7

50 percent of its value, they cannot rebuild the

8

property as two-family; they have to follow the current

9

zoning, which is single-family.

10

So they'd have to

build a single-family home .

11

So as a result of this prohibition, it

12

diminishes -- the property owners assert that it

13

diminishes their property v alue .

14

So what the property owners have found and

15

what staff has also found in talking with lenders,

16

mortgage brokers, land use attorneys, and others over

17

the years, is that lenders that follow Fannie Mae and

18

Freddie Mac lending standards typically will not

19

underwrite loans for nonconforming properties unless

20

they can get a rebuild letter from the Vi llage .

21

So I have, for the past seven years, received

22

numerous inquiries from brokers, buyers, sellers,

23

attorneys asking me to provide them, on behalf of the

24

Village, with a rebuild letter saying that any one of
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these properties could be rebuilt as a two-family if it

1

2

1

were damaged or destroyed.

3

My response to that is I cannot provide the

4

letter because the Village Code doesn't allow them to

5

rebuild, which is what we saw in that nonconforming

6

section.

7

oftentimes the lenders will not underwrite those loans

8

unless the buyers have some substantial collateral,

9

which essentially means they have to put a lot more

So when we can't provide the rebuild letter,

10

cash up front in order for the bank to underwrite that

11

loan.

12

buyers, there aren't as many people able to do that or

13

willing to do that, and can reduce the fair market

14

value of the property.

So of course that limits the pool of potential

15

In addition to that, overall/ it discourages

16

reinvestment in two-family property because two-family

17

property owners are not likely to make a significant

18

reinvestment in their property if they cannot recoup

19

that when they eventually sell the property.

20

All right.

We're making our way through.

21

We're on the third one.

C:

Relative gain to the

22

public as compared with the hardships imposed upon the

23

applicant.

24

there is no particular hardship that's imposed upon the

Of course the applicant is the Village, and
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1

Village.

But the hardship is the detrimental financial

2

impact that's borne by the two-family property owners.

3

So the purpose of the rezoning is to align the zoning

4

with the existing land uses and to restore the land use

5 I rights of two-family property owners, thereby
6

preserving the value of the two-family properties.

7

Again, they're limited in what they can do

8

with their property because they're legal

9

nonconforming.

10

So D:

The suitability of the subject

11

property for the purposes for which it is presently

12

zoned, i.e., the feasibility of the subject property

13

for one or more of the uses permitted under the

14

existing zoning classification.

15

As we've talked about, the properties are

16

developed and include both uses that are permitted

17

under R-2.

18

structures.

19

two-family structures and rebuilding them or converting

20

them to single-family is unlikely.

21

does not anticipate that these two-family structures

22

will eventually evolve into single-family structures .

23

So we don't anticipate that they will turn into

24

single-family uses because that's the underlying

Some were initially built as two-family
But the feasibility of demolishing these

And so the Village
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1

zoning.

2

Standard E is the length of time the subject

3

property has been vacant as presently zoned, considered

4

in the context of the development in the area.

5

course, most of the properties are occupied.

6

be a property or two that has a vacant space or is on

7

the market, but, generally speaking, they 1 re all

8

occupied .

Of
There may

The evidence or lack of evidence of community

9
10

need for the use proposed by the a pplicant .

11

we've talked about, the proposed zoning R-2 does allow

12

for both uses.

13

the area.

14

So clearly that does provide evidence that there

15

continues to be a need for both of these uses in the

16

community .

17

So as

These uses, of course, already exist in

The properties are developed and occupied.

G

is the consistency of the proposed

18

amendment with a comprehensive plan.

19

I think, something worth going into a little bit more

20

detail.

21

know, was approved by the Village or adopted by the

22

Village in 2006, s o prior to the zoning code being

23

adopted in 2011.

24

So this is also,

The comprehensive plan, as many of you may

It does designate all of these properties as
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1

a single-family use.

2

objectives for residential neighborhoods that, where

3

feasible, the Village should encourage buffering of

4

single-family uses for more intensive or incompatible

5

uses .

6

And it notes as one of its

That objective is consistent with best

7

management practices in land use, which suggests that

8

higher-intensity uses, such as two-family or

9

multi - family, should be located along major arterials,

10

and lower-intensity uses, such as single-family, should

11

be buffered from the impacts of these major roadways.

12

G:

The comprehensive plan also says prohibit

13

the creation of multi-family or commercial development

14

that r e sults from rezoning areas that are currently

15

designated for single-family uses.

16

Again, the plan was adopted in 2006, so that

17

was prior to these properties being rezoned.

18

time this was written, the properties were already

19

zoned two-family so it doesn't conflict, or it didn't

20

conflict with the provision at the time .

21

So at the

And the other land use action item contained

22

in the comprehensive plan is to amend the existing

23

zoning ordinance to eliminate the two-family zoning

24

classification.

This action would preserve existing
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1

single-family uses and discourage new two-family

2

development from being built in these areas.

3

lots with existing two-family buildings would be

4

allowed to remain.

5

However,

So from looking at this particular action

6

item, it's clear to staff that the intent of this item

7

was to preserve existing single-family homes and

8

prevent them from being converted to two-family

9

structures.

10

That being said, it also is clear that they

11

wanted to -- the intent was to maintain the land u s e

12

rights of the existing two-family property owners.

13

the Village wanted to prevent conversion, but it did

14

not want to limit those two-family properties that

15

already existed.

16

So

The 2011 zoning code did not eliminate the

17

two-family district.

We know that.

So the Village, at

18

the time they were going through the process of

19

amending the code, found value in keeping that

20

two-family designation and did not follow the

21

recommendation of the comp plan at that time.

22

that being said, the Village Board could not have

23

anticipated the impact of the rezoning on the

24

two-family property owners .
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1

That, I think, also is an important point,

2

that being that even though the zoning code was done in

3

2011 and it was after the Great Recession, there were a

4

lot of changes to lending standards, underwriting

5

standards as a result of the great recession .

6

who has recently bought or sold a property probably

7

knows that.

8

Recession weren't seen for years after.

9

something that the Board could have anticipated.

10

Anyone

And some of the impacts of the Great
So it's not

Finally, the last item in the comp plan is

11

encourage the gradual elimination of the two-family

12

zoning districts where appropriate.

13

that the comp plan recognizes there are areas that are

This does show

14 ' appropriate for two-family, and again earlier it
15

identified that the areas that are appropriate for

16

two-family are those which buffer single-family uses

17

from more intense uses, such as this area along

18

LaGrange Road.

19

We're on H.

Bear with me.

Whether the

20

proposed amendment will benefit residents of the

21

Village as a whole, and not just the applicant,

22

property owners, neighbors of any property under

23

consideration, or special interest groups, and the

24

extent to which the proposed use would be in the public
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1

interest and would not serve the interest of the

2

applicant.

3

So the Village is the applicant and we do not

4

have any direct financial interest in the property,

5

although we obviously do receive tax revenue from

6

properties.

7

The proposed use is consistent with the

8

historical zoning of the properties.

Because they're

9

located along LaGrange Road, it's appropriate for the

10

higher-intensity use, and the proposed zoning restores

11

and preserves the value of the two-family properties.

12

I:

!

The extent to which the proposed

13

amendment creates nonconformities, we've touched on

14

this already.

15

legal.

16

nonconforming, but the proposed R-2 would make all of

17

those uses legal; it would eliminate the

18

nonconformities.

The current single-family uses are

The current two-family uses are legal

19

J:

The trend of development, if any, in the

20 ' general area of the property in question.
21

So as we noted, these properties are already

22

developed.

We have not seen significant redevelopment

23

in this area since 2011.

24

across from Village Market that have seen some

There are a few properties
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1

significant rehabilitation and reinvestment in the past

2

few years.

3

But due to the challenges of the existing

4

home prices in the area and the fact that there are

5

multiple property owners along LaGrange Road, the

6

Village does not anticipate any large-scale

7

redevelopment of this area.

8

it to remain more or less the same as it is today .

9

So we pretty much expect

Last one, so whether adequate public

10

facilities are available, including but not limited to

11

schools, parks, fire protection, roads, sanitary

12

sewers, storm sewers and water lines, or are reasonably

13

capable of being provided prior to ·the development of

14

the uses .

15

So there are no proposed changes to the

16

existing infrastructure in the area, except the Village

17

is continuing with replacing some of the water main

18

along LaGrange Road, which we have been doing in

19

sections for a number of years.

20

existing infrastructure is adequate to serve the

21

existing and proposed uses, because the properties were

And of course the

22 ' zoned two-family for a number of years and they were
23

zoned that at the time the infrastructure was

24

installed .
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1

Okay.

So also, of course, as part of this

2

process, staff did receive a significant amount of

3

resident input.

4

the years from people involved in the process of buying

5

and selling these properties .

6

from about a dozen residents at the October and

7

November Village Board meetings .

8

residents that requested the Village consider rezoning

9

these properties.

As I mentioned, I received input over

We also received input

Those were the

We received significant resident

10

feedback in response to the public hearing notices that

11

went out.

12

in the public hearing and we anticipate that we will

13

receive a lot more feedback from all of you as part of

14

this process.

15

And then of course tonight we are involved

I am wrapping this up, I promise .

This is

16

the last slide.

I just wanted to take everybody

17

through what the process is for this application.

18

process, of course, is submitting the application and

19

then the public notice.

20

Tonight we are before the Planning & Zoning Commission

21

where we will gather additional resident input.

22

the public hearing process has been concluded, the

23

Planning & Zoning Commission will evaluate the

24

testimony they 1 ve received and they will discuss it and

The

We 1 re past that at this point.
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1

they will ultimately make a recommendation.

2

After they make their recommendation to the

3

Village Board, there's a second step in the process

4

called the Findings of Fact.

5

staff just summarizes the input and the results of the

6

meeting.

7

goes before the Village Board .

8

review the Planning & Zoning Commission findings, the

9

minutes, and the transcript from this meeting, so they

10

That's a process whereby

And then once that is done , the application
The Village Board will

will review all of the public input.

11

I can see that there are a number of trustees

12

that are in the audience and our Village president, so

13

they're going to hear the input directly this evening

14

as well .

15

And once they have reviewed all those

16

materials, they will eval uate and discuss it at a

17

future work session, and ultimately they will

18

take final action.
So I think that concludes my presentation .

19

I

20

did put my contact information up here just in case

21

after tonight's meeting any of you had any questions or

22

wanted to follow-up with me on anything.

23
24

CHAIRMAN BOYD:
done .

Thank you, Ms. Rodman .

Thank you .
Very well

Thank you .
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we•re going to take testimony from the

1

2

audience.

3

minutes.

4

then I 1 11 give my two minutes to somebody else.

5

don•t do it this way.

6

you•re done, that•s it.

7

come up twice.

8

because it•s five minutes •til 8:00 right now, and we

9

all want to make sure this goes smoothly and you all

10

And I want to remind you, everyone has three
This is not like, oh, I have a minute and
We

If you speak for a minute,
we•re not going to let you

You get your one shot.

And it•s

have a chance to speak.
So r•m going to ask that someone decides they

11

12

want to go first and step up to the podium.

13

before, announce your name and your address, and then

14

Ms. Keating, our Village attorney, will be keeping

15

track of time.

16

minutes, one minute, three minutes.

17

own time.

18

I should let you finish your sentence.

19

As we said

we•re not going to be calling two

She•ll say

Yes, sir?

20

MR. WOLF:

21

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

11

Stop 11

•

Keep track of your

And I 1 ll decide whether

You want to go first?

Yeah, sure.

Microphone?

Come on up, yeah.

we•re taking

22

down everything that•s said, so speak clearly and into

23

the microphone.

24

Name and address?
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1

MR. WOLF:

Jason Wolf from 730 North Catherine,

2

it's just up the street here.

3

have Emily go back to a couple of the standards on that

4

presentation if possible, but if not, that's fine too.

5

MS. RODMAN:

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Sure.

7

questions.

8

to interrupt that.

9

on and do that.

10

I was going to actually

Let's do it this way.

You have your three minutes.

MR. WOLF:

Let's ask
I don't want

We'll have the staff go back later

So in standard C and actually in A a

11

little bit, they touch on what the gain is to the

12

public.

13

standard C or under H, which is the benefit to the

14

Village as a whole.

15

benefit or gain would be to the public.

I didn't really see a sub-bullet listed for

So I'm just curious as to what the

And then on D --

16

17

AUDIENCE:

I can't hear you.

18

MR. WOLF:

So last question:

On Standard D, I'm

19

wondering if, and I think Emily said the Village

20

doesn't anticipate any R-2s converting to R-1s, but

21

does the Village anticipate any R-1s converting into

22

R-2s?

23

24

I think those are my two questions .

CHAIRMAN BOYD:
Who is

Thank you.

~ext?

Let's keep it going .
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1
2
3

ma'am?
MS. KOWALIK:

My name is Nina Kowalik .

I live at

700 North LaGrange Road.

4

The difficulty that we're hearing about

5

really has to do with financing, which is a negotiation

6

between lenders and borrowers.

7

reasonable request for people to come to the Board and

8

say, we're having trouble with this.

And it's a perfectly

9

At the November meeting where some of those

10

people appeared, our own Village attorney did suggest

11

or mentioned that we might consider a text amendment,

12

text amendment, to the zoning code to solve the

13

problem.

14

That's versus a map amendment.
Minor change to Section 16.3(h) and 16 . 4(f),

15

eliminating one sentence and one clause from each would

16

solve this problem altogether, not only for legally

17

nonconforming two-family property owners on LaGrange

18

Road, but for all nonconforming two-family property

19

owners throughout the Village.

20

Now, concerned property owners with a need

21

could apply directly to this body for redress in the

22

form of a zoning text amendment, spot zoning, or some

23

other remedy.

24

Village.

This is an established process in our
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1

Why are we instead looking at an application

2

for a zoning map amendment that would up-zone 63

3

single-family homes like mine, with owners that don't

4

have any such need for any financing problems.

5

want to see the houses along LaGrange Road raised to

6

make room for big bulky two-flats.

7

of the back-facing properties on Ashland, Catherine,

8

Meadowcrest, and Community don't look forward to a

9

backyard view of two-flat parking lots and dumpsters.

10

I don't

And I'm sure owners

Why is the Village, a public body, the

11

applicant, when there's a perfectly adequate process

12

for private applicants to appeal to the Planning &

13

Zoning Commission?

14

Why is this commission being presented with

15

just one single option for addressing the issue, a

16

zoning map amendment, when perhaps three or more

17

options exist?

18

This is a financing issue, not a land use

19

issue.

20

virtues of increasing density in our Village along

21

LaGrange Road.

22

Nevertheless, this application extolls the

When did the topic change from alleviating

23

lender concerns to extolling the virtues of increased

24

density along LaGrange Road?
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Financing has nothing to do with density and

1

2

land use .

3

This seems like deja vu.
Up-zoning the homes along LaGrange Road was

4

presented and roundly rejected by the residents in the

5

1950s, the 1970s, and especially in 2004, when it

6

caused a major rift between the Village and the

7

residents.

8

that made crystal clear the values of the residents,

9

encouraging more single - family homes and discouraging

10
11

The resolution was a new comprehensive plan

and eventually eliminating two-family homes.
The comp plan was adopted in 2006, after the

12

creation of a Plan Commission with input from

13

residents, multiple meetings and hearings over many,

14

many months.

15
16

In the zoning code updates of 2011 when R-2
was changed to R-1 --

17

COMMISSIONER KEATING:

18

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

19

MS. KOWALIK:

Time.

Give you 15 more seconds .
The new changes were made after

20

discussion at 36 separate meetings and hearings

21

conducted by The Zoning Amendments Committee.

22

are we here again talking about up-zoning all of

23

LaGrange Road, with the Village as the applicant, with

24

only one extreme option to consider, positively
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1

impacting a minority and negatively impacting a

2

majority, in contradiction of our comprehensive land

3

use plan at the will of the residents, with one single

4

hearing?

5

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

7

MR . KACMAR :

My name is Mike Kacmar.

731 North LaGrange Road.
COURT REPORTER:

9

10

Thank you very much.

Who's next?

6

8

Okay .

I live at

And ditto --

Can you spell your last name,

please.

11

MR. KACMAR:

12

K-a-c-m-a-r.

And ditto with what she said.

I am incensed

13

at this .

14

lot, a house being torn down for a parking lot.

15

totally for embracing the wisdom of 2011 and keeping it

16

R-1 .

17

We were here not long ago about a parking
I am

The people that live on LaGrange Road are the

18

keystone to this community.

19

keystone, the entire structure falls.

20

hyperbole.

21

behalf here.

22

When you remove the
And this is not

I'm s peaking on your behalf, everybody's

Now if you want to treat -- and it's not the

23

R- 1.

It's the R-2 and the R-3 and the R-4, and if you

24

want that, go south of 47th and go north of Cermak
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1
2

Road.

You got plenty of that.

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

It's R-1.

I do have the gavel, and I will let

3

you go ahead and applaud, you can say whatever you want

4

to, that's fine, but you are taking away time from the

5

people that are speaking when you do that.

6

that in mind.
Next?

7

8
9
10
11
12

MS. SCHIERL:

Just keep

Go ahead .
My name is Valerie Schierl.

I'm at

530 North Ashland Avenue .
COURT REPORTER:

Can you spell your last name,

please.
MS. SCHIERL:

13

S-c-h-i-e-r-1.

I have a letter of petition signed by 37 of

14

our neighbors who are also very concerned about the

15

rezoning, the blanket rezoning that this entails .

16

I personally don't understand why it is

17

necessary to rezone that whole blanket of 114

18

properties for the sake of five or six properties that

19

are in need of financial assistance, or just to rezone

20

for their two-family zoning.

21

Ditto to everything that was previously said.

22

And I also have a question, two questions:

Why was the

23

zoning changed 1n 2011, what was the deciding factor

24

for that?

And why can't the several property owners
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1

apply individually for these two-zoning -- this new

2

two-zoning change on an individual basis, as the two

3

speakers previously said?

4

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

5

MS . SCHIERL:

6
7

8
9

Thank you.
And I do have this petition.

I don't

know if you would like to see the signatures.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Why don't you give a copy to Emily

and we'll make sure it gets included in the record.
MS. SCHIERL:

Thank you.

10

MS. RODMAN:

11

MR. HERNANDEZ:

12

Thank you.

Thank you.
How you doing?

Gabriel Hernandez,

845 North Catherine.

13

Everything they said, spot on.

I got to tell

14

you, when the letter arrived at my house, the first

15

thing that stood out was why is LaGrange Park the one

16

seeking the job being done here, you know.

17

To me, it looks like you guys are supposed to

18

be the non-biased party.

19

sales pitch from you.

20

to it.

It almost seemed more like a

So everything they said 1 I agree

21

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you, Mr. Hernandez.

22

MR. SPAULDING:

Brad Spaulding 1 S -p-a-u-1-d-i-n-g.

23

I'm the property owner of 714 North LaGrange Road.

24

Don't throw rocks.

I'm going to take the opposing
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1

view .

2

I

bought a property in 2010, paid all cash

3

for it.

4

there was a zoning change .

5

First I heard of this issue was two months ago, which

6

wasn't -- it was kind of a surprise to me to find that

7

out then .

8

trust received all mail , tax bills, everything formally

9

submitted, and I asked them if they had any record of

10

Bought it through a trust.

I was never informed.

I know that I was never notified because my

it; they did not .

11

I put a lot of improvements into my property .

12

I take pride in my ownership.

13

in improvements.

14

I've put over $100,000

Back in 2010, there was a blanket rezoning to

15

go from all R-2 to R-1 .

16

blanket going the other way now.

17

zoned R-2.

18

what the problem is now.

19

single-family owners.

20

don't think we are going to see that.

21

2011 apparently

So don't tell me about this
For 50 years this was

So there wasn't a problem.

What else?

I don't know

I don't see a hardship on the

I don't want to see R4, R6.

I

By my calculations, 42 percent of

22

114 properties are two - flats , so it's more than just a

23

few people that are impacted by this.

24

And reselling is going to be an issue without
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1

the rebuild letter.

Financing, you're not going to get

2

it.

3

even called my insurance guy to say, what does this do

4

to me if it's nonconforming if my building burns down?

5

50 percent.

6

rest down and rebuild a 5,000-square foot home?

7

don't think so.

Title companies, you're not going to get it.

Am I going to get compensated to tear the

I think that's all I have to say.

8

9

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

10

I

MR. O'TOOLE:

I

Thanks.

Thank you .
Just to have a kindred spirit, I

11

thought I'd take the stand.

12

LaGrange.

Mike O'Toole, 809 North

13

I bought the two - flat with my son with the

14

intent that it would be kind of a good old-fashioned

15

two-flat.

16

rent out the second .

17

The two-flat couldn't be sold for about a year and a

18

half.

19

times couldn't get financing.

20

offer, 265.

21

great, if not -- just to give you an idea

22

it.

23
24

He could fix up the first floor eventually,
I just put some numbers on it.

I think there was offers of 340, 320 .

I helped him out.

Cash

I just said, you know, if you get it,

We knew it was legal
time .

Both

--

nonconform~ng

and we got

at the

The dilemma now is, how much do we put into it
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1

to fix it up?

I think he's going to live there for a

2

while.

3

patch up a few things, or do we try to have it match

4

the style?

But it's a real concern.

5

Do we just kind of

I don't really understand why all the

6

single-family homes have to be rezoned as two-flats,

7

but the ones that were being used as two-flats, it

8

certainly would be nice for land value, property value,

9

to have those be legal conforming for future resale.

10

Thank you.

11

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

12

MS. PORCELLI:

13

Thank you.
Hi.

Mary Porcelli, property owner

at 711 North LaGrange Road .

14

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

15

MS. PORCELLI :

Would you spell your last name .
P-o-r-c-e-1-1-i.

Owned the property for 33 years.

16

Lived in it

17

for 28.

I've been a legal two-flat until the 2011

18

change.

I was not informed either.

19

and the Village for trying to wrong a right -- right a

20

wrong that has happened to us property owners along

21

LaGrange Road.

22

lending issue, because if a buyer cannot get a loan,

23

what are we supposed to do with our properties?

24

been de-zoned, devalued, and we are economically

I thank the Board

And it is a financial issue, it is a
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1

undesirable .
I'm asking for help.

2

I'm very thankful to

3

the Board for looking at this issue and the Zoning

4

Board also .

5

lending changed in 2008, the Village had no idea of

6

!

But it is a financial problem.

When the

what an impact the lending business was, what had

7

happened to our R-2s, when they changed them to

8

single-family .
So I would like to thank the Village .

9

Emily,

10

I thank you, you've been working very hard.

I

11

appreciate any help.

12

and who would like to sell in the future , please come

13

up and talk.

Please, anyone who has a two-flat

Thank you.

14

CHAIRMAN BOYD :

15

MS. LEVER:

Thank you.

Scarlet Lever, L-e-v-e-r .

I'm on

16

4 West Oak Avenue, and I oppose the blanket rezoning,

17

but I approve or I really support the rezoning at an

18

appropriate level.

19

like to be rezoned, but we should have the choice to do

20

it like opt-in, and this way we don't make the same

21

mistake again.

22

MR. SOK:

23

last name.

24

Road.

So I live in a two - flat and I would

Thank you.
Brian Sok.

s-o-k is the spelling of the

I own the property at 933 North LaGrange

First, I do agree with some of the single-family
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1

resident owners here that there's not -- if it's

2

already zoned R-1, there's not a necessity to rezone

3

those.

4

the change in that from something that had been already

5

zoned as R-2 has a considerable negative impact on the

6

ownership of that property.

But for those that are R-2, such as my duplex,

There's a number of different aspects .

7

One

8

aspect that it has as an impact on the community is

9

that, if the effect on being able to re-sell it or even

10

to refinance the property to make improvements to it,

11

if you can't make improvements to it, the value of the

12

property goes down, which affects all other properties

13

within that area.

14

It also enables the fact that we cannot then

15

get higher rents, which then makes the properties less

16

desirable and brings down rent and also the type of

17

renters into the community.

18

So those are some of the impacts there.

And

19

then also from not being able to properly re-sell it

20

and make the investments.

21

I live in my unit but also rent out one

22

piece.

So I try to keep it up, but I have placed some

23

effort to make more major renovations to it and

24

especially once I move out .

And I do notice on some of
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1

the properties that there has been a lack of renovation

2

on them, which also impacts the view of the community

3

as you drive down the major arterial.

4

There's also, I think it was left out in the

5

presentation, within the memo, there is a view on there

6

that talks about some of the key urban trends, which

7

talks about on a main arterial road like that, that a

8

use of a duplex R-2 type of complex in that area is an

9

urban trend because it cuts down on

it acts as a

10

buffer to the residential type of properties that are

11

behind it, which would be on -- in my area, you have

12

Meadowcrest which is all residential single-family

13 ' homes.

So the R-2 properties act as kind of a density

14

buffer and in most cases a sound buffer to allow those

15

properties, especially up in that 900 and 1000 block

16

where the lots are less deep than when you get down to

17

the lower blocks in the 800s and 700s.

18

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

19

MS. ADAMS:

Thank you.

Thank you.

My name is Sheila Adams, A-d-a-m-s.

20

live at 520 North Ashland.

21

which is, you mentioned that the rebuild code, they

22

can't do the rebuild letter or you couldn 1 t do that

23

when the lenders contacted you because of a certain

24

code.

We

And I have a question,

And I'm wondering if you can change that rather
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1

than do a blanket rezoning, particularly for the 500

2

block of LaGrange Road.

3

that we live on.

4

lots on LaGrange Road.

5

1

That would affect the block

They are shorter lots, not very deep
And I would be very concerned

that, if you did the rezoning, that someone could tear

6

down one of the very nice single-family homes that are

7

currently there and build a tall structure for two

8

families that would affect sight line and affect

9

negatively impact the people who live on the 500 block

10

of Ashland.
And I do think that it 1 s important to note

11

12

that, I think that the character of many of the

13

single-family homes, especially on LaGrange Road, is

14

important to our community.

15

rezoning is not something that I 1 m for.

16

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

17

MR. SKALE:

I think that the blanket
Thank you .

Thank you.

Nedra Skale, S-k-a-1-e.

I own and live

18

at 805 North LaGrange Road.

19

building 60 years ago.

20

this lady who said we have dumpsters in the back of our

21

buildings, because we do not, and we pride ourselves in

22

keeping those buildings looking nice.

23
24

My grandfather built that

And I guess I take issue with

I also did not get notified in 2011 of the
change.

I mean, I had no idea until my neighbor told
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1 · me.

And no notification like went out this time, where

we could have some input .

2

But I'm not going to sell my building right

3

4

now, but obviously

5

have diminished value because of a difference in a

6

code, it makes a big difference.

7

difference to me how much I am going to put into that

8

building in the future.

9

I

will be trying to sell it.

And to

And it makes a big

So thank you, but I would thank the Village

I

10

too for trying to address this now and letting us know

11

what was going on.

12

know.

13

Obviously, you let a lot of people

Thank you .

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I just want to thank everybody

14

who's given their testimony.

15

but we've all been very respectful, and we have a large

16

crowd, and

17

testament to our community and we should all be proud.

18
19

I

We have differing views,

really appreciate that.

That's kind of a

Ma'am, state your name and where you live .
MS. BOGERT:

My name is Michael Bogert,

20

B- o-g-e-r-t, 306 North LaGrange Road, representing our

21

block.

22

I just want to say something maybe a little

23

different .

I am not opposed to rezoning.

What I am

24

worried about is the condition of single-family homes
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1

and what could happen to them .

I do have a two-family

2

next to me, and for the most part, it 1 s been pretty

3

good.

4

site, and I have no concerns about having a two-family,

5

other than I will say, when I first moved in, and

6

here 1 s where my concern comes, I 1 m concerned that

7

single-family homes are going to convert over to

8

two-family homes.

9

right?

We have a new person who 1 s going to live on the

And this is what could happen,

I move into this home and, over the wintertime,

10

there was two families living in this house.

They went

11

through my backyard to get onto LaGrange Road because

12

they were blocked by the other person who lived in the

13

family, the home.

14

So I mean, I live on LaGrange Road, so they

15

basically had a circular driveway with my backyard as

16

part of their -- I 1 m not sure how that would happen if

17

single-family homes begin to convert.

18

worried about rezoning.

19

rezoning.

20

offices .

21

So I'm not

I 1 m not worried about

I 1 m not even worried about professional

I 1 m concerned with the existing historic

22

homes that we have and having them maintain the

23

functions that they do, or at least the appearances of

24

what they are, because I think that 1 s important to our
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1

block.
So, again, I'm not against it, but I'm

2

3

concerned about just blanket rezoning without plans or

4

assurances to the residents that you will protect the

5

1

single-family historic homes somehow.

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

7

MR. KRIHO:

·s

Thank you.

Thank you.

John Kriho, K-r-i-h-o, 35 West Jackson

Avenue.

9

Just real quick, I'd be interested to know,

10

the hearing of 2011, how people were not notified?

11

got two registered letters notifying me of this.

12

find that impossible to believe that you had no idea

13

that it was going on.

14

I
I

You with the trust, certainly if they sent a

15

certified letter, there's going to be some proof of

16

that .

17

The other thing is that the person that

18

bought a nonconforming duplex is now looking to get it

19

rezoned to get a bump in increase.

20

that.

21

on that.

22

I can't side with

I apologize, but you don't get any favor from me

The other thing is that if you're rezoning

23

existing single-family homes , that's just wrong, and I

24

kind of question what's the impetus for that?
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1

doesnrt make any sense.

2

If these people here that have two-flats,

3

theyrre looking for some relief, some financial relief

4

basically is what this is all about, we can't rezone

5

single-families where you have a legitimate concern.

6

You can pop up a two-flat right next to it and that's

7

going to diminish the single-family home value next to

8

it as much as theyrre going to lose.

9
10

So look, when there's change, this was
1

obviously considered in 2011.

With change, there's

11

going to be pain.

12

sorry, people, but some people got to accept the pain.

13

You've got to accept the pain.

I 1m

There is no argument to be made that this

14

benefits the Village as a whole, absolutely not.

15

argument that this presents any type of a buffer .

16

fact, picture your backyard backing up and now there 1 s

17

this gigantic high-rise there.

18

everything that I've heard here -- and, by the way,

19

when I built my house here -- I live on Jackson, one of

20

those new ones that you mentioned that backs up to the

21

forest preserve -- I came here to petition to have a

22

stop sign put to slow people down going past my house.

23
24

No
In

Nobody wants that.

Had I known Emily was available to get in
here and do the sales pitch for me, I would have
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1

contacted her initially.

2

presentation together, I made it, and I came in here

3

and I felt like I was getting hit over the head with a

4

hammer.

5

So all I'm going to say is, this sounds like

6
7

Because I put the whole

a total sales pitch, I don't think we're getting the
i

entire story here.

If you're rezoning existing

8

single-family homes, that's just wrong, and this

9

doesn't meet the criteria that she outlined in her

10

proposal .

11

Totally against it.

MS. McCORMICK:

Thank you.

My name is Dawn McCormick,

12

M-c-C-o-r-m-i - c-k, 338 North Edgewood.

13

for the people who have gotten stiffed by the change

14

that was done in 2011.

15

!

That's not fair.

I feel terrible

So I would

urge your Board at this point to do whatever it takes,

16

whether it's tax, map -- the map doesn't sound like a

17

good idea .

18

them the way they are, to protect the duplex people so

19

that they're not faced with the hardships of reselling

20

and fixing.

21

But to protect single-family homes and keep

But I do live on 338 North Edgewood, and I

22

know a couple of years ago we were here talking about

23

buildings that were going to be done on the Nazareth

24

property and lights that were going to be put up on the
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1

football field.

2

lights and how that was going to disrupt everybody, we

3

didn't pay attention to how tall and how big that new

4

field house was going to be.

5

changed.

6

things .

7

You know, we were so focused on those

And it has really

I mean, we've lost sky, we•ve lost a lot of

So I would say that while I feel bad for the

8

duplex owners with what they're facing, I don't think

9

it•s fair

--

I

think we have to protect our Vi llage

10

from, okay, it's a duplex, it's zoned a duplex, but now

11

it's going to be bigger and better and boom, boom,

12

boom, boom.

That shouldn't be allowed either.

It should stay with the character of our

13
14

Village and sort of the footprint and the height print

15

of what is here.

16

tone.

17

to, but to protect what you know everybody is saying .

18

Right?

So I would ask you to do the least that you have

19

MR. JASIK:

20

LaGrange Road.

21

solution.

22

R-2s.

23

24

I think we have to just sort of set a

My name is Brandon Jasik, 835 North
To me, there should be just a simple

Leave the R-ls alone and then rezone the

MR. TIERNAN:

My name is Tim Tiernan.

515 North Ashland.

I'm at

I agree with what he just said.

County Court Reporters, Inc .
630.653.1622

Application for Map Amendment
April 17, 2018

44
1

Why are we -- if we're looking at the majority of these

2

houses are currently single-family, why would we

3

rez6ne, blanketly rezone all the way from Brewster to

4

31st and make them two-family?

5

all.

6

the people who need the relief, and leave the R-ls

7

alone.

That makes no sense at

We should have a compromise where we can rezone

This is ridiculous.

8

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

9

MR. KARAM:

Who's next?

Yes, sir?

Can I just do it from here?

10

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

11

MR. KARAM:

Why don't you come up?

Mitch Karam, K-a-r-a-m, 415 North

12

Ashland.

13

comments.

14

were explored, and why this is the one being presented?

15

That's it.

16

I just have a question.

I don't have any

But I'm curious what proposals or options

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

We're going to have Ms. Rodman

17

respond to some of the questions in a minute.

18

before she does that, I'll tell you that the Zoning

19

Board considers what's presented before it.

20

sit around talking about options.

21

Nor are -- we have no basis to do that.

22

what's presented before us and we make a ruling on

23

what's present before us, and what's in the record.

24

Just

We don't

That's not our duty .
So we look at

So you won't hear us tonight talking about
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1

four or five different options.

2

what's on the table tonight, either rejecting it or

3

accepting it, and moving on.

4

We will be considering

So don't be concerned if that's what you

5

hear.

6

options, R-1 or R-2, we just can't do that.

7

district trustees can, but we can't.
Anybody else?

8

9

But we're not going to be talking about other

MS. MILICEV:

Hi.

So the

Yes, ma'am?
Good evening.

My name is Jill

10

Milicev, M-i-1-i-c-e-v.

11

Road.

12

that since it was built.

13

I understand that the people who are zoned R-l want to

14

keep their property that way, keep it a single-family

15

home.

16

I live at 504 North LaGrange

And our building 1s a two-flat.

It's been like

It was either in '95 or '96.

However, there are a number of people along

17

LaGrange Road, as you know, that were zoned at one

18

point R-2, either 42 or 46 percent, according to

19

Mr. Spaulding.

20

I don't know the exact number .

But it does present a hardship for myself and

21

my family should we ever want to sell our property and

22

get the top-dollar value, because LaGrange Park is an

23

ideal, very community attractive community to live in.

24

So if I get somebody who can -- I'm not
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1

selling, I'm not saying that at all -- but long- term, I

2

should be able to have a right to use my land, my l and

3

right use, the way that I would like to use it because

4

I built it for that purpose or it was built for that

5

purpose and it should be able to be used for that

6

long-term.

7

So should somebody come in and make an offer

8

on the property, should it be sold, and then be

9

rejected by a lender because they can't get

10

underwritten due to the legal nonconforming issue, I'm

11

stuck.

12

come -- I mean, it just creates a snowball effect that

13

makes the property value, should it ever be sold,

14

worse.

15

Then I have to wait for somebody else to

And I understand R-1 properties wanting to

16

keep their property that way, a single-famil y home, to

17

make it appealing along LaGrange Road.

18

haven't really heard a reason why it's not in their

19

benefit to be an R-2.

However, I

20

If you look up and down LaGrange Road, there

21

have been changes to the homes, but I don't recall one

22

that was knocked down and rebuilt.

23

of them are being remodeled or cleaned up, just made

24

nicer along LaGrange Road.

It looks like a lot

The overall aesthetic is
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1
2

very nice .
I understand there's a concern that people

3

want to maybe in the future knock down and build

4

multi-level.

5

on what you can or can't build should you buy a

6

property along LaGrange Road.

7

There's also restrictions by the Village

Furthermore, I agree with the buffering issue

8

that Mr. Sok presented.

It does create a nice -- for

9

lack of a better word -- "buffer" for -- we are the

10

properties that have the multi-use families, and then

11

the ones behind us are all single-use.

12

opposed to keeping a single-use a single-use, a

13

single-family home .

14

Again, I'm not

It's just the people who are already

15

multi-family, two units or more, and they were for the

16

longest time, 50-plus years, and then all of a sudden

17

it be switched over to an R-1 and somewhat stuck with

18

their property, not being able to do with it what they

19

want, is underlyingly unfair.

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

MS. RUSIN:

Thank you.

Thank you.

My name is Lydia Rusin.

I live at

22

1025 North LaGrange Road.

I'm going to agree with what

23

the lady said.

24

be able to keep them and sell the same way.

If we built the houses R-2, we should
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1

are single-families , they should stay single - families.

2

Thank you very much.

3

MR. ROSENZWEIG:

Hi

1

Eric Rosenzweig,

4

R-o-s - e-n-z-w-e-i - g 1 635 North Catherine.

5

to thank you, Chairman Boyd, for your clarification of

6

what you can look at.

7

that it can be agreed upon that this

8

option, needs to be rejected by your Board, and another

9

option needs to be come up with .

10

11

R-2s could be R- 2s .
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

And I'd like

With that being said, I think
propos~l,

this

R-1 should stay R-1 .

Thank you.
This might be a good time for

12

Ms. Rodman to clarify some points and to respond to

13

some of the questions.

14

MS. RODMAN:

Sure.

Are you ready for that?
Can everybody hear me?

I was writing down notes as everyone was

15
16

talking, so I think I got all the questions.

17

others may have written some of them down too, so

18

please let me know if I'm missing anything.

19

my best to respond and other staff may want to jump in

20

as well.

21

related, so I'm going to try to go through them and in

22

an order that I think is a bit cohesive.

23
24

I think

I will do

A number of the questions I think were

One of the main questions that came up was
why is the Village the applicant in this case when the
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1

code does allow or provide individual property owners

2

the opportunity to come in on an individual basis and

3

apply?

4

The application was prompted by approximately

5

a dozen property owners approaching the Village Board

6

this past fall.

7

the Village Board, but from the various discussions

8

that they had at, I believe, it was three different

9

Board meetings between October and February, I think

And I don't want to speak on behalf of

10

that they felt that because there was such a -- because

11

there were a dozen -- a little over a dozen property

12

owners that made the request, and because the request

13

was related to an action that the Village took back in

14

2011, it seemed appropriate that the Village move

15

forward with the application because it was a result of

16

an action that the Village -- a result of an action

17

that the Village took in 2011.

18

So that is my understanding of why the Board

19

directed staff to move forward with the application.

20

Certainly the Board may have additional feedback they

21

want to provide at a future meeting, because I don't

22

want to speak on their behalf.

23
24

The second question or another question was
why was the zoning changed in 2011 from the R-2 to the
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1

single-family?

2

during that time and I was part of the process, but my

3

understanding from talking with other staff that were

4

here and with the consultant from Camiros & Associates

5

who worked on the zoning code.

6

I will preface this with I was not here

I know there were, as Ms. Kowalik noted,

7

dozens of meetings discussing the zoning code, and I

8

think it took two to three years to develop the new

9

code.

My understanding is that the change was done as

10

a result of, really, two factors:

11

what was noted in the comprehensive plan, that these

12

properties were designated as single-family

13

plan, and also because when a survey of the uses in the

14

area was done at the time, it was determined that the

15

majority of them were single-family.

16

One is to reflect

~n

the comp

And I think something that's key here and

17

that ties into some of the other questions that were

18

brought up about why not zone these properties

19 : individually for the use,

is that when you're looking

20

at land use practice and zoning practice from an urban

21

planning perspective -- and that is my background, I am

22

an urban planner by education and I'm a certified

23

planner, and I think why Camiros, which is also made up

24

of certified planners, took this approach, is that
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1

typically when you zone for land use, you do it in

2

groups, in large groups of property.

3 '

It typically doesn't make sense to zone each

4

property individually because then uses can be -- you

5

can have incompatible uses next to each other that

6

adversely impact each other .

7

LaGrange Road, which, as I mentioned, is an arterial

8

roadway, that's management practices in-land use

9

typically dictate that properties along those roadways

And particularly along

10

would be higher-intensity uses, such as two-family or

11

three-family, or four.

12

We are only looking at the two-family.

The

13 , two-family would not allow anything beyond two units .
14

It would not allow for high-rise buildings or

15

large-scale buildings .

16

constructed within the context of what the code allows

17

now .

They would still have to be

18

So while it's possible to zone a property

19

individually by use , there are a couple challenges.

20

One, it's just, generally speaking, not good land use

21

practice.

22

to determine exactly which properties are legitimate

23

two-flats .

24

But two, it would also be a bit challenging

Obviously there are some properties when you
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1

go out there that you look at and it's very clear they

2

were constructed as two-flats.

3

has file s on some of those two-flats that came in to

4

get their units legally permitted .

5
6
7

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

The Vi l lage certainly

Put your hand down.

She's talking .

I will call on you later.
MS. RODMAN:

But we may just -- to determine for

8

sure whether or not they're two-flats, you know , you

9

may end up just having to ask the property owner, are

10

you a two-flat or not, and you can't be certain whether

11

or not they're a legitimate two-flat, meaning they

12

legally converted to a two-flat .
So identifying the properties correctly would

13
14

be a bit of a challenge.

15

just not a good land use practice, and so that's why

16

communities typically don't zone parcel by parcel.

17

But , generally speaking, it's

Another question was with regard to a text

18

amendment.

19

of rezoning the properties, look at a text amendment

20

that would allow the two-flat property owners to

21

rebuild their properties, which would eliminate this

22

issue of obtaining financing.

23
24

A few residents brought up why not, instead

The challenge with the text amendment route
is that when you make a text amendment to the zoning
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1

code, it applies to all properties in the Village that

2

are in that same situation.

3
4

So the purpose of the nonconforming
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Ms. Rodman, you should be actually

5

directing your comments to the Zoning Board, not to the

6

audience .

7
8
9

MS. RODMAN:

Sure .

The purpose of the nonconforming zoning
section is to restrict how nonconforming uses use the

10

property and ultimately to encourage those

11

nonconforming uses to convert to conforming uses .

12

If you modify the nonconforming standards in

13

the zoning code to eliminate the restriction on

14

rebuilding, that would allow the nonconforming uses,

15

all nonconforming uses in the Village, to rebuild if

16

there was damage or destruction beyond 50 percent of

17

the value, which defeats the purpose of having the

18

nonconforming section because ultimately you will never

19

get compliance for those properties.

20

counterintuitive to having a nonconforming structure

21

and use section.

22

So it's kind of

With regard to the options that were explored

23

or why is this the approach that the Village has come

24

forward with, the request that was made by the two-flat
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1

owners was that the Village restore the zoning that had

2

been in place for decades.

3

the Board do.

4

That's what they requested

When staff and the Village Board looked at

5

the properties and how they had been historically zoned

6

and the change that was made in 2011, it made sense to

7

us to revert the zoning back.

8

of them had been zoned for decades as two-family and it

9

did not appear to cause an issue.

10
11

These properties, many

At least if it did,

it was not brought to the Village's attention .
We did not see a mass conversion of

12

single-family to two - family during those decades in

13

which the properties were zoned R-2 .

14

R-2 eliminates the nonconformity because all of the

15

uses are permitted with an R-2.

16

take this route and restore the zoning that had been in

17

place for a number of years .

18

Additionally, the

So it made sense to

That's not to say that there potentially

19

aren't other options.

20

there and certainly those could be looked at if that's

21

what the Village Board would like to do.

22

There may be other options out

The last question I have noted, and I do

23

apologize if I missed any, was with regard to what is

24

the benefit or the gain to the Village for the
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1

rezoning?

2

presentation, and that is, essentially, I don't think

3

it's ever the Village's intent to limit property

4

owners' rights, with what to do with their property.

5

I think I did touch on that a bit in the

While we have regulations and restrictions in

6

place, those are generally for the health, safety, and

7

welfare of the community.

8

from being able to realize the full value of their

9

property.

It's not to restrict people

That is not the intent.

Unfortunately, that

10

seems to be what happened as a result of the 2011

11

zoning, and so that is why the Village is looking at

12

making that change.

13

So the benefit or the gain is that we

14

essentially restore those rights for the two-family

15

property owners when those rights were removed as a

16

result of the rezoning.

17

does encourage reinvestment in the properties because

18

they are potentially able to recoup that reinvestment

19

when they sell the property.

20
21

And, again, as I mentioned, it

Did I address all or most of the questions?
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I think you did what you needed to

22

do for right now.

I'm going to actually ask the Board

23

to ask questions of staff now, and if there are any

24

other residual questions, we can address those later
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1

on.

2
3
4

So, Mr . Studwell, why don't you go ahead and
begin, and if you have any questions for the staff.
COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

I do have a question for

5

staff.

Is there a process that you go through for

6

in the application of, for instance, changing from an

7

R-1 to an R-2 as far as the structure itself, the

8

improvement on the lot?

9

like a developer was to come in, buy a single-family,

If somebody was to come in,

10

and tear it down, and then put plans forward for a

11

multi-use or a duplex, is there a process or is there

12

any extra consideration for that, or is it just simply

13

that it meets the building code ?

14

MS. RODMAN:

Are you asking that question as if

15

they were to do it under the current zoning or the

16

proposed zoning?

17

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

18

MS. RODMAN:

No, no, the proposed.

The proposed zoning?

If I understand

19

your que s tion correctly, if a developer were to submit

20

plans to build a two-flat on a piece of property, one

21

of these properties that we're looking at, and the plan

22

met all of the standards of the Village code, so in

23

terms of zoning, it met the bulk regulations, the

24

setback, the height, the impervious surface, the
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1

building coverage; it met all of those standards, then

2

it would not require consideration by this group or the

3
4

i

Village Board, for example, because it adheres to the
Village's zoning regulations.

5

It would also, of course, have to adhere to

6

all of the building code and the fire code regulations .

7

So it would go through a building permit process.

8
9

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL :

Okay.

So there's

essentially when we're looking at changing it, it•s

10 , kind of a blanket statement as far as you're opening up
11

that opportunity for a developer or somebody that wants

12

to make an investment in the property to look forward

13

to possibly going to that?

14

MS . RODMAN :

As proposed, there would be the

15

opportunity for someone to purchase one of those

16

properties and build a duplex, yes.

17
18

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

That's about all I have .

Thank you.

19

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Mr . Lampert?

20

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman .

21

The question for staff I think would be going back, and

22

I know it's going to be hard with a lot of us not here .

23
24

As the Village and the Zoning Board went
through the 2011 rezoning process, were there other
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1

situations where there were -- you talk about the

2

incompatibility where you have incompatible uses

3

butting up against each other, I guess maybe taking it

4

out of the 2011.

5

CUrrently, do we see any of those other types

6

of situations in the Village and have we been able to

7

resolve those incompatibility uses?

8
9

MS. RODMAN:

That's a tough question for me to

answer because I haven't had pause to look at that .

10

Unless we have a resident or property owner come

11

forward with a proposal.

12

context to the review that the staff did in terms of

13

the 2011 change.

14

I will add a little bit of

The direction that the Village Board provided

15

to staff was a little bit broader than just looking at

16

the LaGrange Road area.

17

the rezoning of two-family properties to single-family

18

potentially had a negative impact, as the residents

19

asserted.

20

the properties that were t wo-family in

21

2011, that were rezoned to single-family as part of

22

that 2011 amendment.

23
24

So they were concerned that

So they asked staff to take a look at all of

--

prior to

So there were these 114 parcels along
LaGrange Road.

There were also other parcels that also
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1
2

had . the same thing happen.
Many of those were along Beach Avenue, north

3

of 31st Street, I think the entire length of Beach

4

Avenue actually, all the way up to 26th, and then the

5

first block of Newberry and Kemman north of 31st Street

6 ' were previously two-family and were rezoned to
7
8
9

single-family .
Staff did go out and take a look at those
properties, evaluate them .

It does appear that they

10

if not all, close to all of them are being used as

11

single-family and so it did not seem appropriate to

12

proceed with rezoning them to two-family when the

13

current use is single-family .

14
15
16

So we did look at that.

But we did not take

a broader look at what uses are adjacent to other uses .
I guess I will add one thing as a result of

17

the Village manager reminding me, that we did run into

18

this issue a couple years ago with another property in

19

the Village, a similar issue, slightly different

20

circumstances, and that is the Village Field Club,

21

which is the private pool that's located -- what is

22

that street?

23

MS. CEDILLO:

24

MS. RODMAN:

Forest .
Thank you .

And so that property was
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1

rezoned in 2011.

It had previously been residential

2

zoning.

3

because the intent at the time was to match the use to

4

the zoning, or match the zoning to the use, actually,

5

so it was rezoned to open space.

It was rezoned to open space.

6

Again, I think

The Village Field Club came to the Village

7

Board and came before this commission said hey, we are

8

looking to make improvements, we want to rebuild the

9

pool and redo our clubhouse, and we have been to the

10

bank we can't get a loan because they are not going to

11

give us a loan on open space because it's not worth

12

anything to anybody other than the Village and the park

13

district, right?

14

So they couldn't get a loan for it, so they

15

came before the Village and said, could you rezone us

16

to single-family so there is some underlying value to

17

the property should we default on the loan and bank has

18

to sell it.

19

So they brought that forward and that was

20

ultimately rezoned to R-1 or R-1-A, I can't remember

21

which one.

22

unintended devaluation of the property as a result of

23

the 2011 zoning.

24

Because again it was an issue with the

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

One more question, actually
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1

just to follow-up.

To clarify, you mentioned about the

2

text amendment and how it sounds like it sort of opens

3

up a Pandorars box if we go that -- if we were to get

4

another option such a text amendment was proposed.

5

That -- just to understand that, that means that if --

6

so if yourve taken legal nonconforming off the table,

7

then suddenly everybody has conformity and can take

8

advantage of uses that weren 1 t originally intended in

9

the code; is that correct?

10

MS. RODMAN:

I think if I understood what you 1 re

11

saying, let me just sort of rephrase that to see if I 1 m

12

understanding what yourre intending.

13

And that

lS

that if we change the

14

nonconforming section of the zoning codes, that does

15

apply to all properties in the Village.

16

were a legal nonconforming two-flat or three-flat on

17

Kensington or Monroe or another street that is

18

surrounding by single-uses that was zoned R-1, under

19

the current regulations, if that property were to burn

20

down, they would have to rebuild it as a single-family,

21

which is what I think the Village would like to see in

22

this case because every other use surrounding it for

23

blocks is single-family.

24

So if there

However, if we change the nonconforming
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1

section and eliminate that requirement, then they would

2

be allowed to rebuild it as a two-flat in perpetuity.

3

So the property could burn down five, six times, they

4

could always rebuild it as a two-flat and the Village

5

would never see that property come into compliance with

6

the underlying zoning, which is the R-1.

7

answer your question?

8
9

COMMISSIONER LAMPERT:

Yes.

Yes, thank you.

have nothing further, Mr. Chairman .

10

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

11

COMMISSIONER LEE:

Does that

I

Thank you.

Mr. Lee?
I got a question on the text

12

amendment.

13

solution to this.

14

can 1 t we write it the way we want to?

15

these properties that are zoned R-1 in these blocks,

16

these are the only ones that are allowed for this type

17

of nonconforming use?

18

It is just so critical I think to finding a

MS. RODMAN:

I mean, it's our code.

Yes, we could.

I mean,

Can't we say for

We could narrow the

19

provisions as specifically as we like.

The challenge

20

with that is really coming up with a justifiable basis

21

for doing that.

22

makes the properties in any particular area, what makes

23

it okay for them to rebuild but the properties over in

24

this other area, it 1 s not okay for them to rebuild?

So what makes -- for example, what
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1

So once you start to craft amendments to the

2

code to address specific geographical areas, you're

3

really getting into more of a zoning land use issue,

4

which zoning is intending to address geographical

5

areas.
So we can do it .

6

It's just not good practice

7

and it can be difficult to really justify why we are

8

providing certain rights to certain properties and not

9

others.

10

COMMISSIONER LEE:

It's sort of a Pandora's box or

11 .' slippery slope-type issue.
12

MS. RODMAN:

Uh-huh.

13

COMMISSIONER LEE:

I want to say thank you to the

14

crowd for coming out here tonight.

15

hear from you all .

16

easier to hear from everyone.

17

contentious topic and if there's any others that

18

interest you in the future, please keep coming out.

19

It's excellent to

It actually makes our job a lot
I know this is a

To staff, I felt like the communication

20

within this process wasn't quite as strong as it has

21

been in the past, and I know -- I am on the planning

22

and zoning commission and I felt like there was a

23

shortage almost of information provided to me.

24

So these other materials have been very good
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1

in helping me understand that.

But just hearing this

2

optionality discussion on text amendment versus map

3

amendment and hearing all the color behind it is very

4

useful.
I think if you put that in to people's hands

5

6

in advance, it would help them, inform them of the

7

process .

8

questions because they would have been answered in the

9

materials.

There are others here that may not even have

10

MS. RODMAN :

Could I just respond to that?

11

COMMISSIONER LEE:

12

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

13

MS. RODMAN:

Sure.

Yes .

For a typical zoning application, the

14

Village Board - - or the Village takes the application

15

and we would provide any -- the applicant would provide

16

any notice required by state law.

17

placed on the front counter in Village Hall for people

18

to come take a l ook at i f they would like to.

19

the agenda for the meeting is posted, not the package,

20

just the agenda on the websit e , and then people come to

21

the meeting.

22

The application is

And then

With regard to this particular application,

23

because we knew i t was of such significant - - or would

24

be of significant interest to the public, we actually
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1

did quite a bit more communication than we typically

2

do.

3

So there was information in the E-Briefs,

4

which is the Village's weekly newsletter, on several

5

occasions about this application, with links to the

6

website.

7

website, which we don't typically do, the public

B

hearing notice, the staff memo.

9

The entire packet was

10

We actually put the application on the

ava~lable

on the

website, which normally it isn't.

11

So we tried to make the information very

12

accessible to people so I can appreciate what you are

13

saying about maybe not having gone into all of these

14

options.

15

people who reached out to me, who raised those

16

questions.

17
18
19

Certainly did I talk through those with

But we tried to make the information as
accessible as we could.
COMMISSIONER LEE:

I know I am difficult to please.

20

So maybe then it was directed more towards providing

21

optionality than to planning and zoning position in

22

advance.

23

circulating through my head, it would have been good to

24

have them on paper.

Because I know I had these questions

Maybe I could have directed my
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1

efforts elsewhere.

2
3

The only other question that I had was on
1

Page 7, i tern D, criterion D, where you talk about

4

suitability to subject property , the purposes for which

5

it's presently zoned.

6

says "feasibility of demolishing, rebuilding or

7

converting to single-family is unlikely."

8
9
10
11

There is a bullet in there that

What's the applicant's basis for making that
statement; is it conjecture, is it data mined over a
number of years?
MS. RODMAN:

I think it's really just thinking

12

about the fact that it's really looking at those

13

two-family structures that were clearly built as

14

two-family structures.

15

So there are a number of those properties

16

along LaGrange Road that you can t e ll just from the

17

architectural style were constructed as two family .

18

They don't look anything like a single-family home.

19

if you think about taking that property and what it's

20

worth as a typical two-flat which generates income for

21

the owner, and either demolishing it -- purchasing the

22

property for what it's worth as a two-flat, then

23

demolishing it, and then constructing a single-family

24

home that you are then going to sell after you've paid
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1

this exorbitant land price for an existing building

2

that generates income and you are trying to sell a

3

single-family home on LaGrange Road, it's not very

4

likely that we are going to see that because it just

5

the economics aren't there.
With regard to taking one of those two-flats

6

7

again that was built as a two-flat originally and

8

converting it into a single-family home, probably less

9

costly but it's not really going to look like a

10

single-family home.

11

look like a single-family home.

12

Or it would be costly to make it

And I just, again, don't know that the

13

economics would make sense for someone to do that, to

14

take a -- generally, two-family properties are going to

15

be considered more valuable than single-family because

16

of the income generation.

17

So it just doesn't really make sense that

18

people would convert those.

19

happen.

20

COMMISSIONER LEE:

We have not seen that

Has there been anything in

21

regards to feasibility on the other side of that

22

argument of single-family converting into dual family?

23
24

MS. RODMAN:
certainly.

There is a potential for that,

Under the R-2, again, it does require a
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1

significant investment because there are certain

2

primarily building codes that have to be met in terms

3

of providing an additional kitchen and bathrooms and

4

separation of units .

5
6
7

I am a little bit out of my element here, so
Dean could certainly speak more to that.
So it's a possibility.

It is probably less

8

costly to convert a single-family to two-family, then

9

to take a two-family and convert it to single-family,

10

but that's a guess.

11

COMMISSIONER LEE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

12

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

13

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Ms. Domagalski?
I have a number of

14

questions and comments that I'd like to discuss.

15

think the place I'd like to start is with the

16

comprehensive planning process that went on here in the

17

Village in the early 2000s.

18

for a number of years; is that correct?

19

MS. RODMAN:

20

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I

It sounds like it went on

That's my understanding, yes.
Generally, when you go

21

through a planning process you're looking towards the

22

future and not what's been done in the past.

23

at what's been done in the past but you're trying to

24

plan for what's to come in your community, right?
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1

MS. RODMAN:

Yes, the purpose of the comp plan is

2

to provide guidance for future development in the

3

community.

4

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

And then, so our Village

5

went through the process of creating a comprehensive

6

plan, looking at the existing land use patterns that

7

were in effect in 2004 and '05

8

what was happening on LaGrange Road, correct?

9
10

MS. RODMAN:

Presumably.

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

11

right.

12

happened.

1

2006 1

and looking at

I wasn't here.
You weren't there/ that's

You are just speculating on what likely

13

And as a part of that process/ they

14

determined that the appropriate use along LaGrange Road

15

was a single-family residential use as opposed to a

16

multifamily residential use.

17

MS. RODMAN:

18

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

19
20

My understanding, and again we did -I mean based on the map

that's adopted as part o f the comprehensive plan.
MS. RODMAN:

Right

1

it was determined based on what

21

the existing land uses were.

22

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

And those documents were

23

prepared with the assistance of planning experts and

24

the community .
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1

MS. RODMAN:

Yes.

When the Village hired a

2

consultant, Camiros, which is a planning firm, to

3

prepare the documents.

4

SEVERAL SPEAKERS :

5

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

6

MS . RODMAN:

7

I'm sorry.

8

the comp plan.

9

No.

No.

Oh , I'm sorry, that was Teska, right?

Camiros did the zoning code and Teska did

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI :

And then the

10

comprehensive plan was a process that was done in

11

anticipation of creating a new zoning code for the

12

Village, because at that point the Village zoning code

13

was not - - did not relate to and had not been updated

14

in a certain amount of, 50 years, you know, in a long

15

period of time .

16

And so the idea was, or the thinking was,

17

presumably, that this zoning code is out of date and

18

the classifications in the code don't match what's

19

happening on the ground.

20

MS. RODMAN:

Correct?

I can't speak to the classifications.

21

But I do believe when it was updated, when the comp

22

plan was updated, based on the language that's in the

23

comp plan, it was anticipated at the time that the

24

zoning code would be updated.
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1
2

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Right.

They were all

done in a sequential order.

3

You don't completely re-write your zoning

4

code and completely rezone your entire Village without

5

doing a comprehensive plan, generally, right?

6
7
8

9

MS. RODMAN:

The typical process is to do the comp

plan first, yes.
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

To do it sequentially.

And so then when the separate set of planning experts

10

came in to create the zoning code for the Village, they

11

went through a process of looking at creating these

12

different types of units -- uses, or excuse me --

13

different types of districts, R-1, R-2 et cetera.

14

MS. RODMAN:

Yes.

15

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

And those planning

16

experts determined at the time, in conjunction with the

17

Village Board and the community, that the appropriate

18

use along LaGrange Road was single-family residential,

19

correct?

20

MS. RODMAN:

I would rephrase that slightly based

21

on the conversation that I had with the consultant who

22

did the work on the code earlier today, and that was

23

not that the consultant determined that that was the

24

appropriate use, but that is what the -- was determined

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622

Application for Map Amendment
April 17, 2018

72

1

by the community and ultimately the Village Board, not

2

that that was necessarily the recommendation of the

3

consultant.

4

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Do we have evidence that

5

that was not their recommendation?

6

on a report and presumably stood behind ...

7

MS. RODMAN:

They put their name

I don•t want to say that it•s not

8

their recommendation, I just -- I don't want it to be

9

characterized as it was their suggestion or they

10

brought that forward.

11

case that they necessarily brought it forward.

12

it was done because that was in the comp plan and it

13

matched what was in the camp plan.

14

So I don't think that was the

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I think

And also matched what was

15

going on on the ground, where you have 58 percent of

16

the parcels

17

MS. RODMAN:

Yes.

18

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI :

-- that are existing are

19

being used currently as single-family residential as

20

opposed to two-family residential, or multifamily

21

residential in the case of that corner between Oak and

22

Harding .

23
24

MS. RODMAN:

1

me.

Yes.

That's what the consultant to l d

It was based in part on the existing land use at
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1

the time, right.

2

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Okay.

A number of places

3

in the staff report and the Village's proposal, their

4

allusions to or allusions to best planning practices

5

and their conclusions about best planning practices

6

being using multifamily as the buffer for

7

single-family.

s·

MS. RODMAN:

9

Right?

That's

That is historically the practice ,

yes.

10

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

That's something, if you

11

were designing a new subdivision, if you had raw land

12

and you were trying to lay out something, that's how

13

!

you would set it up, right?

14

If you were designing LaGrange Park in 2018

15

and there was nothing here already existing, that might

16

be how you would set it up.

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

MS. RODMAN:

Me personally or just generally

speaking?
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALS KI :

Just generally speaking

because that's what we are talking about.
MS. RODMAN:

I think generally speaking, yes, you

would probably see that .
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

But instead what we are

dealing with here is a Village that is -- we just had
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1

what, our 125th anniversary last year?

We've had

2

multiple zoning codes, we had a number of properties

3

that were built before there was even zoning in the

4

Village and those properties have changed over time,

5

many times, not j ust this most recent time .
So best sort of generic planning practices

6 '
7

aren't necessarily what you are - - is the gold standard

8

that you have to stick to just because in general on an

9

arterial street y ou think it would be the best planning

10

practice to have two families.

11

the best planning practice in all instances.

12
13
14

MS. RODMAN:

It doesn't mean it's

No, it doesn't.

It's completely up to

the community .
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Right.

15

And in particul ar, the fact that 58 percent

16

of the property owners who have purchased on LaGrange

17

Road fel t that LaGrange Road was appropriate for

18

single - family uses and put their money where their

19

mouth was .

20

MS. RODMAN:

That's true but I think probably the

21

majority of the m purchased the property when it was

22

zoned R- 2 .

23
24

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

But the pre vailing land

use pattern was a single-family -- in different parts
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1
2

of it.
MS . RODMAN:

Correct.

I don•t think the land use

3

of the property has changed significantly since 2011.

4

So I just left it as it was, what it was then.

5

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I spent some time going

6

through property sales on LaGrange Road over the last

7

three years.

8

about the ability to sell two-flats, the ability to

9

sell single-families, what's valued higher, what's

10

We had a number of statements tonight

valued lower.

11

And I am wondering if those statements are

12

based on any specific properties or just sort of

13

general ideas and conclusions?

14
15
16
17
18

MS. RODMAN:

Well, I can't speak to the assertions

made by the individual property owners.
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

These are things that you

said in support of the application.
MS. RODMAN:

Right.

So I did -- I have spoken with

19

lenders who indicated that they woul d not, that they

20

would not underwrite loans for nonconforming uses.

21

have talked to a number of people involved in the sales

22

process of these properties over the last seven years.

23
24

I

I can•t tell you specifically what properties
they were.

But it is based on actual properties that
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1
2

were being sold or they were attempting to sell.
CHAIRMAN BOYD :

All right.

Hold your thought.

3

are going to take a ten-minute break now.

4

come back after that.

People can

Let's give our staff a break.
(Whereupon, a break was taken,

5
6

after which the following

7

proceedings were had : )

8
9

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Ms. Domagalski, you were asking

some questions of Ms. Rodman and I'm sorry I

10

interrupted.

11

hours.

I thought we needed a break after two

12

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

13

MS. RODMAN:

14

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

15

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

16

We

It's all good.

It's all good.
Okay.
Am I on?

Is this on or

is it off?

17

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

It's on now.

18

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Speak into it.

The Village, in its

19

report under standard D, it says -- it relates to the

20

suitability of the subject property and I assume it

21

means you are talking about the suitability of the

22

district for R-2 uses, but it only refers to the

23

suitability of the district, the proposed district for

24

two-flat properties, not the suitability of district
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1

for single-family properties .

2

MS. RODMAN:

3

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

4
5

So -Not in your slide

presentation but in your staff report .
MS. RODMAN:

Okay.

So standard D is getting at the

6

suitability of the property for the

7

properties for what they are currently zoned.

8

looking at the -- so we have single-family and

9

two-family properties .

10
11

so the
So it's

Are they suitable under the

current zoning?
And so the response that staff provided to

12

that is, well, the single family is suitable to the

13

current zoning because it's allowed, but the two-family

14

is not suitable to the current zoning because it's not

15

allowed under the current zoning .

16

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

In one of your -- one

17

part of the staff report, the Village says, It's not

18

financially feasible to make alterations to two-flats

19

to create single-families.

20

bit before the break.

21

And you expounded on that a

And I know of specifically one particular

22

house on LaGrange Road on the 300 - block that had been a

23

two-flat that was converted to a single-family, and it

24

seems that there are a number of other -- particularly
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1

towards the southern end of -- there are a number of

2

properties that could very easily be converted from

3

two-flats to single-families.

4

Just as a matter of not -- just as a matter

5

of someone could d o it, might do it, want to do it, has

6

done it.

7

MS. RODMAN:

Are you referencing 310 LaGrange Road?

8

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

9

MS . RODMAN:

I am.

So I actually spoke to the owner of

10

310 LaGrange Road, the previous owner of 310 LaGrange

11

Road, not the current owner, but what the previous

12

owner told me was that the property had been a

13

two-flat, they were using it as single-family but they

14

still had a secondary kitchen.

15 ·
16

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I'm sorry.

I misspoke.

I am talking about 330.

17

MS. RODMAN:

Oh, okay.

I was going to say, because

18

I don't think they completed the full conversion on

19

310.

20

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

21

MS. RODMAN:

Yeah.

It's certainly possible.

I think it's

22

easier when it's a single-family home that was maybe

23

converted to two-flat and they are converting it back,

24

then converting a structure that was built as a
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1

two-:-flat.

2

I guess that's what I was speaking to, those

3

structures that were initially built as two-flats would

4

be less conducive to converting than a single-family

5

that was converted.

6

Does that make sense?

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I mean, what you're

7

saying makes sense.

I don't know that I agree with it

8

based on just looking around the neighborhood.

9

is a property across the street from the Village, for

10

example, that had been a two-flat that was converted.

11

It's not on LaGrange Road but it had been a two-flat,

12

was converted to a single-family

13

MS. RODMAN:

14

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI :

15
16
17
18

There

The Village required that .
But it could be done, and

it was done.
MS. RODMAN:

It can be done .

I don't know that it

would have been done if the Village didn't require it.
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Another thing I wanted to

19

talk about is the differences between an R-2 district

20

and an R-1 district.

21

are allowed on a parcel, there are a number of other

22

differences, correct, which relate to the bulk and yard

23

standards?

24

MS. RODMAN:

Besides the number of units that

There are other differences, yes, with
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1
2

regard to the bulk regulations, yes .
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

So for example, if

3

someone bought a lot that had a single-family unit

4

or had a single-family home on it, under R-2 they could

5

demolish that and they could build a bigger building

6

square-footage-wise, not height-wise.

7
8
9
10
11
12
13

The height is the same in both of them,
correct?
MS. RODMAN:

The building height, yes, it is the

same.
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

But the building coverage

is more generous under R-2 than R-1.
MS. RODMAN:

The building coverage allows for an

14

additional five percent than the R- 2.

15

R-1 it's 30 or 35 percent depending on if it's an

16

anterior or a corner lot.

17

40 percent.

18

the properties are rezoned to two-family, that would

19

apply to both single-family and two-family homes

20

constructed in the district

21

So it's

in

In the R-2 it's 35 or

But that would apply both to -- if all of

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Okay.

Did the Village,

22

when it's considering eliminating nonconformities,

23

consider all the other nonconformities that exist, yard

24

nonconformities, coverage nonconformities; or when they
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1

are talking about nonconformities for the purposes of a

2

map amendment, are they only speaking to nonconformity

3

as to use?

4

MS. RODMAN:

So I have a two-part answer for that.

5

I know when the zoning code was amended in 2011, that

6

the consultants looked in quite a bit of detail at lot

7

sizes, existing setbacks and things like that .

8

when the new zoning districts were crafted, the bulk

9

regulations for the new zoning districts , they were

And

10

done in a manner to try to mitigate or to try to limit

11

how many noncomformities would be created by creating

12

these new districts with new standards.

13

With regard to this particular application,

14

we were simply looking at the nonconforming use, not

15

the structure .

16

looking at the surveys of every property out there, I

17

can't speak specifically to whether or not they each

18

individually meet the bulk regulations.

19

speaking in terms of the actual use of the property .

20

So I can't speak specifically , without

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

We are just

We talked about the

21

impact of this change and one of the things, you know,

22

we talked about, I think you mentioned the

23

infrastructure, but obviously there would be an impact

24

to schools if there were additional two units in the
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1
2
3

place of a single unit.
That could generate additional children.
There would be potential demographic changes, correct?

4

MS. RODMAN:

Potentially .

5

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

I think I am nearly done .

6

There was a lot of testimony about the disincentives

7

for the two-flat owners to invest in their properties .

8

And I am wondering if there•s been any

9

consideration about the potential disincentives to

10

single-family homeowners, were there to be a change

11

from R-1 to R-2; if there were a series of

12

redevelopments along LaGrange Road of single-families

13

to two-family homes, what incentives would that create

14

for the remaining single-family homeowners?

15

MS . RODMAN:

I think from the perspective of

16

single-family homeowners and from the perspective of

17

those that I talked to, and I think I talked to about

18

15 single-family homeowners along LaGrange Road that

19

called me as a result of receiving the notice, you

20

know, they asked, well, what are kind of the pros and

21

cons of this rezoning.

22

And I think it really depends on the

23

individual's perspectiv e , and also on how that

24

particular home is situated .
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1

So for those single-family homes that are

2

adjacent to two-flats, you know, this may have very

3

little impact on them.

4

those uses.

They are already adjacent to

5

It may be seen as a benefit because

6

potentially when they go to sell their property, it can

7

be sold to someone who maybe wants to make it a

8

two-flat, which potentially may make their property

9

more valuable.

10

Whether or not anyone wants to see an

additional two-flat on LaGrange Road aside.

11

For other property owners, you know, if you

12

are on a block that's a lot of single-family, you may

13

not be concerned if an adjacent property becomes a

14

two-flat, but you might not like that.

15

it as not such a good thing .

16

So you may see

And so I think it depends a little bit on

17

your perspective and then as to what will it ultimately

18

do to property values.

19

say because I think a lot of it depends not just on the

20

adjacent use, but the perception that a buyer has of

21

the overall area.

22

I think that's really hard to

And if those two-flats are well-maintained

23

and well-cared for, which a number of them are --

24

that's the case anywhere in the Village -- we have
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1

single-family homes and two-flats that are well

2

maintained and we have some that aren't.

3
4
5

So I think it's really hard to say I guess.
COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Okay .

I think that's

what I've got.

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Mr. Bartholomai .

7

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

Thank you, Mr . Chairman.

8

I want to echo Mr. Lee's comments earlier about

9

appreciating the audience coming out.

As long as I've

10

been on this board, this is the highest participation

11

level we've had, and it really speaks to your

12

engagement on this issue, especially the ones that came

13

up and spoke, because it could take a lot to go up and

14

officially state your name for the record and speak to

15

the board.

16

So thank you, all of you.
Seems like character of the community seems

17

to be one of the biggest concerns with this

18

single-family home versus multi - family.

19

job is not to come up with alternate proposals .

20

not our role.

21

And I know our
That's

But I do wonder if we've already established

22

if we're moving from R-1 to R-2 that that would then

23

technically allow a single - family home t o be demolished

24

and a multi-family home to be built in that place, and
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1

that seems to be something that a lot of people are

2

against .

3

Is there no mechanism that the Village would

4

have to prevent such a very specific instance from

5

happening?

6

MS . RODMAN:

Not under the current proposal.

7

you're asking are there alternative ways, yes.

8

not what staff was asked to look at.

9

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

10

MS. RODMAN:

If
That's

Right .

Certainly there are other

11

alternatives, but those also present challenges as this

12

approached us .

13

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

Okay.

So there's

14

potentially a way that's not in front of us now, but

15

there's a possibility that that could be addressed in a

16

different manner.

17
18
19
20

MS. RODMAN:
1

Possible.

won't still be people who are opposed to it, but there
are a l ways objections.
COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

21

history of the zoning.

22

interesting.

23

zoned ' as duplex.

24

It doesn't mean that there

Thank you for the

I thought that was very

So between '62 and 2011, they were all

And am I correct in assuming that that
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1

designation was largely similar what we are considering

2

herer meaning that both multi-family and single-family

3

homes were legal?

4

MS. RODMAN:

5

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

6
7
8
9

Yes.
Or was one conforming

and one was not?
MS. RODMAN:

No.

Both were legal under that

zoning.
COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

So apart from the fact

10

that a lot of people didn't know about this zoning

11

change in 2011, my question is, why has it taken so

12

long for the Village to make attempts to rectify it?

13

I would assume that if this had happened and

14

all the multi-family unit owners were aware, maybe they

15

weren't ~

16

immediately to alert the Village of this fact.

17

that they would have launched complaints

MS. RODMAN:

Yes.

And many have, but it has been

18

done at the staff level.

So I have talked, as I

19

mentioned, to a number of people over the years as

20

they've gone through this process because I'm the one

21

who receives the calls requesting the rebuild letter.

22

So I've talked to a number of people and they have

23

asked, wellr how do I get this addressed/ what are my

24

options?

And I have presented them with two options:
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1

One is you can submit for an application to rezone your

2

property; or you can approach the Village Board and ask

3

the Village Board if they would like to direct staff to

4

do that.

5

No one has done that despite the number of

6

people I've talked to until recently when someone that

7

I spoke with back this fall,

8

response to, and she decided that she did want to

9

approach the Village Board, and she, along with other

10
11

I provided that same

property owners, approached the Board.
So why the previous people decided not to do

12

that, I can't speak to that.

13

been a concern since this zoning was changed.

14

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI :

But I do know that it has

Thank you.

15

And I think you spoke to this earlier , but

16

perhaps it wasn't quite as explicit as I would like.

17

So just to clarify, making the change from R-1 to R-2,

18

could that potentially create issues where properties

19

that are now conforming with lot lines, with building

20

coverage, all sorts of issues that we regulate in this

21

Village, would now be not conforming, and perhaps all

22

of a sudden this garage that was always perfect is now

23

too close to a property line?

24

MS. RODMAN:

So I'm just looking at the
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1

regulations.

2

the R-2 District as compared to the R-1 are

3

generally -- a lot of them are similar in terms of the

4

building height, the lot width and depth requirements

5

are the same, the minimum lot area is smaller, the

6

required minimum lot area is smaller in the R-2 than

7

the R-1 so that would not be an issue.

8

requirement, the front setback requirement is the same.

9

So is the interior side setback.

10
11

The regulations, the bulk regulations in

And the setback

So it looks like the

only difference is the rear setback.
So, generally speaking, no, it should not

12

create any additional nonconformity as it relates to a

13

physical structure or the bulk regulation and certainly

14

as it relates to the use, because both single-family

15

and two-family are permitted, all of those existing

16

using would be considered conforming.

17

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

So R-2, generally

18

speaking, makes it more generous what a property owner

19

can do, not talking about single-family or

20

multi-family, but the percentage of land that they can

21

use for their structure?

22

MS. RODMAN:

23

COMMISSIONER BARTHOLOMAI:

24

Yes.
Those are the only

questions I have.
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

I'm going to follow up just on that

2

point because I think the relevant issue is, in the

3

1962 zoning code, these were all zoned D Duplex

4

District.

5

setback and the height and all those kind of things,

6

was it the same as the R-2 District now?

7

words, when we changed the code in 2011 by going to

8

R- 1, did we somehow cause some of the single-families

9

or the dual-family lots to be nonconforming in ways we

10

13
14

In other

don't even know about?

11
12

Was the D Duplex District in terms of the

MS. RODMAN:
1

Truthfully, I can't answer that

question because I did not compare what the bulk
regulations were in the D District.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

And the idea, though, was let's

15

make it R-1 because the comprehensive suggests that we

16

should be moving in that direction?

17
18
19

MS. RODMAN:

That's my understanding as to why it

was done, yes.
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Okay.

So there could be other

20

unintended consequences of that action that we're not

21

even aware of?

22

MS. RODMAN:

Well, right.

So when the Village

23

amended the zoning code and created all these new

24

districts, potentially it did result in creating some
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1

nonconformities with regards to setbacks and things

2

like that.

3

!

But, again, my understanding is the firm

Camiros that looked at that looked at all of those

4

factors and tried to design the bulk regulations in a

5

manner that would mitigate how many of those properties

6

would become nonconforming as a result of the zoni ng

7

change.

8
9

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

But they did that in terms of the

sort of general district, they didn't look at it

10

specific to this change from along LaGrange Road from

11

R-1 -- I'm sorry-- Duplex to R-2 or R-1?

12

MS. RODMAN:

That•s true.

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

And, again, I'd like to sort of

14

dwell a little bit more on this idea of -- because I

15

think one of the big concerns is a single-family being

16

converted into a duplex basically.

17

us tonight.

18

make a recommendation as the Board, as the Zoning

19

Board, to the Trustees that if they are going to adopt

20

a change like this, then they should also consider some

21

kind of regulation of the changing from single- family

22

to multi-family use in this district?

23
24

That•s not before

There's nothing we can do.

MS. RODMAN:

But we could

Are you asking me if legally you can

do that?
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1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

2

MS. RODMAN:

3

1

11 defer to the Village attorney on

that.

4
5

!

Can we do that as the Zoning Board?

COMMISSIONER KEATING:
1

Well, you 1 re saying that

could we recommend that we rezone these parcels to

I

6

two-family but amend the zoning code to provide that

7

anybody who has a single-family home in this particular

B

two-family district can convert it to a two-family

9

home?

10

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

11

COMMISSIONER KEATING:

12

1

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

No, no.
Okay.

I misunderstood.

What I 1 m saying is, all we have

13

before us is what we have before us.

14

up or down tonight.

15

suggest to the Trustees that if they 1 re going to do

16

this and adopt our recommendation, then they should

17

also consider some kind of regulation to prevent the

18

down or up-zoning or down-zoning issue, which is, if

19

you 1 re going to go from a single-family along LaGrange

20

Road to a duplex, you got to have something else that

21

you got to show to be able to do that, something we 1 re

22

not going to consider tonight?

23
24

MS . RODMAN:

We can vote that

What I 1 m saying is, we can also

Sure.

So I guess legally how you do

that , 1 1 11 let the attorney speak to that.

But I will
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1

say that the Village Board, a number of the trustees

2

and our president are here tonight, so they're hearing

3

this discussion.

4

THE COURT:

5

MS. RODMAN:

That's why I'm saying it.
But for those that are not here

6

tonight, they will receive the transcripts and they

7

will receive the minutes and they will receive the

8

findings.

9

materials that you all have.

They've already received this packet of
So even if you're not

10

legally able to make a formal recommendation, if that

11

is the sentiment of the Zoning Commission, that will

12

come out in the record from this evening.

13
14

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you.

Just a couple sort of follow-up questions.

15

You talked about taxes and I want to explore that a

16

little bit because one of the criteria that we should

17

consider is whether the applicant here, the Village,

18

has any incentive here.

19
20
21

Does the Village get more taxes from duplexes
than single-family houses?
MS. RODMAN:

So let me see if I can explain this in

22

a way that makes sense.

So we have a tax rate that is

23

applied to property, and the amount of tax revenue that

24

we receive is based on the value of the property as
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1
2

determined by the Cook County Assessor.
So my understanding from how property is

3

assessed, and the Village doesn't assess the property

4

obviously, is that it is primarily based on how the

5

property is being used.

6

single-family property is rezoned to two-family, if the

7

use doesn't change, my understanding is that should not

8

impact the taxes, the taxes shouldn't go up just

9

because the property was rezoned.

10

So just because a

If that is the case, then the Village doesn't

11

receive any additional revenue just because the

12

property is rezoned.

13

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Right.

So I just want to make

14

clear for the record that the Village has no financial

15

incentive to change from R-1 to R-2 in this area?

16

MS. RODMAN:

There's no financial incentive to the

17

Village, and that is certainly not what prompted the

18

application.

19

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

So I'd like to go back to 2011 a

20

little bit.

We've had a lot of people talk about not

21

getting notice.

22

I was here for the full thing.

23

meetings, public hearings, et cetera.

24

about the reason or talk about that process in general,

I know you were here for part of that.
There were multiple
Would you talk
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1

what was provided, if you know.

2

to talk if you don't.

3

households may not have been provided notice of the

4

specific changes that we're talking about tonight?

5

MS. RODMAN:

We'll ask Ms. Keating

And also explain why individual

So I started with the Village in the

6

end of 2011, just to clarify.

So the code was already

7

1n effect, at the time it went into effect in January

8

of 2011.

9

from what the process was before I arrived.

But I can share with you what I understand
And that

10

is, there were a series of meetings, from looking

11

through the files and speaking with staff that was

12

here, that was held to a number of meetings to evaluate

13

all of these changes.

14

provided notice through the Rose Clippings and through

15

the website and some other means because I have seen

16

copies of that.

17

I do know that the Village

With respect to the notice to individual

18

property owners, which 1s required under state statute,

19

and that has not changed since 2011, I can't

20

substantiate either way whether or not notice was sent .

21

Staff, numerous staff members, have looked through the

22

files and attempted to find something one way or

23

another that indicates whether or not notice was

24

provided, and we have not been able to substantiate
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1

either way whether or not notice was provided to the

2

individual property owners via mail.

3
4
5

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Ms. Keating, do you have any other

recollection since you were involved in that process?
COMMISSIONER KEATING:

My only recollection, I

6

don•t know whether notice was sent.

I do know that

7

something Emily talked about at the very beginning of

8

her slideshow presentation about the 2011 code is that

9

there was wholesale redistricting of parcels throughout

10

the Village.

11

example -- well, all of the existing zoning districts

12

were abolished and new districts with new regulations

13

were changed.

14

certified letter to everybody in the Village, then the

15

notice requirement becomes meaningless .

16

In the west part of the Village, for

So the idea was, if you have to send a

So my recollection is that they decided to do

17

it through the newspaper, the Rose Clippings that was

18

sent to everybody, and they had a brochure, colored

19

brochure showing the rezoning map that was sent to

20

every household in the Village.

21

recollection.

22

But that•s only my

I really don•t know.

CHAIRMAN BOYD :

I was part of the Board then, and

23

my recollection is we spent approximately two years

24

coming up with the zoning code, multiple meetings and
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1

multiple invitations for the public to provide comment

2

during that period of time.

3

homeowners got the notice, I don't know.

4

comprehensive activity that, frankly, we haven't seen

5

th1 s many people in a room since that time.

Whether individual
But it was a

6

So I

7

Mr . Studwell, you said you might have another

8
9

think that's all I have.

question?
COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

Yes.

I was going to ask,

10

is there any restriction that says that we have to

11

stick with an all or nothing R-1 or an R-27

12

come up with a hybrid of that zoning criteria?

13

MS. RODMAN:

Can we

Are you asking if the Planning &

14

Zoning Commission can do that, or are you asking if, in

15

general, the Village can do that?

16
17
18
19
20

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL :

I think it's, in general,

can the Village do that.
MS. RODMAN:

The Village could certainly do that if

that is what the Village Board wanted to do.
COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

So it would take a request

21

from the Village Board to come up with an option or

22

some way of trying to fulfill the idea of a -- more of

23

a hybrid application like what we're seeing instead of

24

the all-or-nothing criteria that you were instructed to
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1
2

provide to us?
MS. RODMAN:

Correct.

If the Village Board

3

directed staff to take a look at that, we would do

4

that.

5

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

Okay.

And within that

6

regulation we could probably address a lot of the

7

issues that are being dealt with, like the idea of

8

modifying an existing single-family to a duplex, we

9

could write in whatever regulations we needed to,

10
11

correct?
MS. RODMAN:

Potentially.

I will tell you that

12

while staff didn't receive formal direction from the

13

Board to look at a realm of options, we did informally,

14

amongst ourselves, talk through options.

15

with the consultants that worked on the code, Camiros,

16

through alternatives.

17

approach, the other alternatives also present

18

challenges.

19

We did talk

And I think that like this

So I think I'd like to be careful to say that

20

I don't know that any approach that the Village comes

21

up with is going to make everyone happy or is going to

22

be the ideal approach.

23

often other ways to look at issues.

24

caution that that doesn't mean that that resolves this

Are there other ways?

There's

But I would just
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1
2

for everybody.
COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

That was kind of my take on

3

the whole thing is we seem to be looking at a blanket,

4

and we don't necessarily need a blanket.

5

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you.

6

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

Ms . Domagalski?
Just quickly.

Two quick

7

questions, in the realm of what-ifs.

Was a smaller

8

district considered?

9

visually, that the bulk of the two-flat units or

For example, it appears, just

10

properties, I should say, are north of Oak or north of

11

Harding and there are fewer to the south.

12

one question is whether the district could be smaller?

13

And the second question is:

So that's

How do other

14

mature villages with a mix of housing types handle this

15

kind of question?

16

know Chicago has a specific designation under its

17

nonconforming zoning code that applies to nonconforming

18

developments, which only addresses the number of units,

19

it doesn't go to anything else.

20

very specific question that we're dealing with here.

21
22
23
24

For example, LaGrange, Oak Park .

I

And those address a

So have any of those other items been
considered?
MS. RODMAN:

So with regard to a smaller

rezoning a smaller area or fewer properties, staff, in
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1

addition to looking at trying to estimate how many

2

properties are single-family versus two-family, we did

3

take a look at all of the properties and map out where

4

the two-family properties are, essentially.

5

challenging from the aspect that there are some blocks,

6

I think -- I was looking for the maps; I have them

7

somewhere in my stack of papers here -- there are some

8

blocks, I think like the 900 block if I'm remembering

9

correctly, where the slightly different map, it's a map

And it's

10

where I've designated the uses, how they lay out .

11

there are some blocks where the two-family use are the

12

northern half of the block and the single-family are

13

the southern half .

14

But

So from that standpoint, it's kind of a clear

15

differentiation.

16

where there's maybe one two-family, three

17

single-family, two two-family, one single-family, and

18

then a two-family.

19

the blocks.

20

but you're going to have the same issue, just on a

21

smaller scale because the uses aren't clustered.

22

uses aren't clustered together throughout the area, if

23

that makes sense.

24

But there are also a number of blocks

So they're kind of interspersed in

And so you could rezone a smaller a rea,

With regard to how some of the other
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1

communities address it, I think zoning codes vary

2

can vary extensively from community to community

3

because they are inherently designed and they evolve

4

over time to reflect the needs and the desires and the

5

wants of communities.

6

So I can't speak specifically to how LaGrange

7

or Oak Park handle it.

Certainly if we were to decide,

8

if the Board were to decide, the Village Board were to

9

decide that they wanted to look at something else, we

10

could talk to consultants who work on codes in all

11

different communities to see what other options are

12

available .

13

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

14

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

15

Thank you.

Anything else?

There's a gentleman in the back in the orange

16

that I said I'd call on la Ler.

17

it up for general comment .

18

before.

19 . can.

20
21
22

I'm not going to open

I now you spoke once

But if you'd like to say something now, you

State your name again.
MR. KACMAR:

My name is Mike Kacmar.

I'm at

731 North LaGrange Road.
She was mentioning -- and I didn't mean to

23

interrupt her.

I thought you could ask questions.

24

forgive me on that.
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1

But my question was:

It would be hard to

2

tell which properties are two-flats.

3

difficult?
CHAIRMAN BOYD:

4

5

6

How is that

You could explain, if you'd like

to.
MS. RODMAN:

Sure .

7

I think I addressed that earlier, but I'll go

8

through again what we see from the staff perspective as

9

being the challenges, and that is, while some two-flats

10

clearly look like two-flats, they were clearly built as

11

two-flats, there are other structures that were

12

potentially built as single-family homes and were

13

converted at some point in time, either legally through

14

a permit process or illegally if someone didn't get the

15

proper permits.

16

But you can't necessarily tell from the

17

outside of the home that it's a two-flat .

18

one door, it potentially has one mailbox --

19

MR. KACMAR:

20

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

21

She's talking now.

22
23
24

It still has

If it's
Hey, hey.

We're not doing that .

And we have limited testimony.

Go ahead and finish your comments .
MS. RODMAN:

So, in essence, you can look at the

Assessor's website to see whether the assessor is
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1

assessing properties as single-family or two-flat.

2

Staff has gone through all those.

3

p roperties that the assessor is assessing as

4

single-family that we know for a fact are a two-flat.

5

And we found the opposite:

6

assessing as multi-family that are currently being used

7

as two-family.

Properties that they're

So while that data can be helpful, it's not

B

9

We did find

100 percent accurate.

I worked with that data for

10

15 years.

11

but it's not perfect.

12

but none of them are going to be perfect.

13

So it can be very helpful in some instances,
We can use a variety of sources,

So while they can probably come pretty close

14

to being accurate, I don't want to misrepresent that

15

staff is a hundred percent confident that we could

16

identify every two-flat out there that is a legal

17

two-flat today.

18
19

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

Thank you .

Now, I want you to listen carefully because

20

I'm going to say it once.

21

and has something to say that has not been said

22

already, I will give them one minute to speak.

23

Yes?

24

MR. SABAH:

If anybody has not spoken

Step up and state your name.
Norman Sabah, S-a-b-a-h, 536 North
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1

LaGrange Road.

2

If we go from a single-family to a

3

two-family, does it change the property value of my

4

house, good or bad?

That's my question.

5

CHAIRMAN BOYD:

6

in any general sense?

7

MS. RODMAN :

Ms . Rodman, can you respond to that

Sure.

Well, the Village doesn't

8

establish property values.

9

establishes -- assesses property and establishes the

10

The Cook County Assessor

value .

11

So, again, I can speak from my understanding

12

on how they assess property through prior conversations

13

I've had with them, but I encourage the residents who

14

maybe have this concern to contact the Assessor

15

directly .

16

My understanding is that property is assessed

17

based on the use of the property, not the zoning of the

18

property.

19

changes, if the use of the property does not change,

20

the assessed value of the property should not change

21

simply as a result of the property being rezoned.

22

again, check with the Assessor on that.

23
24

So just because the underlying zoning

THE COURT:

But,

Thank you .

I'm going to entertain a motion to close the
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1

public.

2

COMMISSIONER DOMAGALSKI:

3

COMMISSIONER STUDWELL:

4

CHAIRMAN DAVIS:

5

BOARD MEMBERS:

6

CHAIRMAN BOYD :

7

Thank you.

So moved.
Second.

All in favor say

11

aye 11 •

(In unison) Aye.
Any opposed?

Thank you, Miss Court Reporter.

8

9

Your fingers

must be tired.

10

(Which were all the proceedings

11

had in the above-entitled cause

12

on this date.)

13

14
15
16
17
18 '
I
I

19
20

21
22
23
24

County Court Reporters, Inc .
630.653.1622

Application for Map Amendment
April 17, 2018

105
1

STATE OF ILLINOIS
SS:

2

COUNTY OF C 0 0 K

3

4

I, PAMELA L. COSENTINO, being first duly

5

sworn on oath-says that she is a court reporter doing

6

business in the City of Chicagoi that she reported in

7

shorthand the proceedings given at the taking of said

8

meeting and that the foregoing is a true and correct

9

transcript of her shorthand notes so taken as

10

aforesaid and contains all the proceedings given at

11

said meeting.

12

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF:

I have hereunto set my

13

verified digital signature this 24th day of April,

14

2018 .

15
16

17
PAMELA L. COSENTINO, CSR
18
19

20
21

22
23

24
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E ngineering & Capital P rojects Committee
Divider
James Kucera, Chairman
Patricia Rocco
Robert Lautner

Villag_
e Board Agenda Memo
Date:

June 6, 2018

To:

President and Board of Trustees

From:

Brendan Mclaughlin, Public Works Director
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager ~

RE:

2018 Patching Program- Various Areas in Village

rl~

PURPOSE: Staff is seeking the Board's approval to award a contract to the lowest responsible bidder
for the 2018 Patching Program to various street areas in the Village.
GENERAL BACKGROUND:
Based on a visual inspection of the roadways, a list of areas was put together for pavement patching
with funds available in the 2018/19 Budget.
This project will address those sections of '/worst" pavement on streets that are not slated for
repaving with the Bond proceeds. The street areas identified will be ground down two to four inches
and an asphalt overlay put down. This will reduce further deterioration and extend the street life,
so it can be entirely resurfaced at a later date.
Hancock Engineering prepared the necessary bid specifications for this project and the bid opening
will be held on June 19, 2018. The lowest responsible bidder will be determined at that time.
In this fiscal year, the Village has budgeted in the Road Bonds Fund -Street Resurfacing (70-44-3-

340) $75,000.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is requesting that the Board accept the lowest responsible bidder in an amount not to exceed
$75,000 at the June 26th Board Meeting.
MOTION/ ACTION REQUESTED:
Motion to accept the lowest responsible bid from
TBD
in the amount of$ TBD
a TBD percent contingency, for completion of asphalt overlay patching.

plus

DOCUMENTATION:
• Recommendation Letter and Bid Results from Hancock Engineering to be provided for the
June 26th Village Board Meeting

Finance Committee D ivider
Patricia Rocco, Chairwoman
Scott Mesick
James Kucera

Village Board Work Session Memo
Date :

June 6, 2018

To:

Finance Committee Chair Patricia Rocco
Village President and Board of Trustees

/

From:

larry Noller, Finance Director e~.
Julia Cedillo, Village Manager ~j,e?

Re:

Utility Bill Printing

PURPOSE
To discuss utilizing a print vendor for the Village's utility bills.
BACKGROUND
The Finance Department currently prints and inserts the Village's approximately 17,000 annual utility bills
in-house. The machine used for inserting the bills is wearing out and will soon need to be replaced. The
machine was purchased in 2010 and cost over $4,000. Rather than replace the machine, staff investigated
the use of a printing service that could leverage technology to potentially save costs and increase staff
productivity.
Staff contacted three print vendors used by other Villages for utility billing. All the vendors are able to
provide a significant savings in postage costs due to qualifying for discounted rates. Two of the vendors
provided proposals to print and mail bills at a lower cost than the Village currently pays for bill stock,
printing and postage. In addition, using a print vendor will eliminate the need to purchase and maintain
a new inserting machine. Even more significant, however, is the potential to free up approximately three
days of staff time each month .

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Village Board authorize the use of vendor for printing and mailing utility bills. Sebis
Direct, located in Bedford Park, IL, provided the lowest proposal and is used by many other. local
municipalities. Staff contacted several of Sebis Direct's current municipal clients and all spoke highly of
the company's customer service and reliability. Sebis Direct will also update the Village's bill layout at no
additional charge.
ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for discussion only. If the Village Board concurs, the following motion will be placed on the
June 26th consent agenda .

Motion to approve Sebis Direct to provide utility bill print and mailing services and authorize the
Village Manager to sign an agreement.
DOCUMENTATION
• Cost comparison
• Proposals

Utility Bill Printing Comparison

Current
Bill
Bill envelope
Return envelope
Postage

Annual Cost

0.058
0.041
0 .055
0 .154
0.458
0.612

lnfosend

0.265
0.016
0.014
0 .295
0.378
0.673

Harris

0.202
0.378
0.580

Sebis

0.097
0.018
0.014
0.129
0.378
0.507

$ 10,400.68 $ 11,434.27 $ 9,854.20 $ 8,613 .93

SEBIS
DIRECT

document manasement

1100 Valley Belt Road, Brooklyn Heights, OH 44131
6516 West 74 .. Street, Bedford Park, ll 60638
phone: 312-243-9300 ext 41
email: dave@sebis.com

,

Document-Direct Proposal
To:
Organization:

From:
Subject:
Date:

L~rcy Noll~r, Finance oir~ctor
V!l)ag~ ofla Grange Park, lllin9.i~

David Brady
Printing and Mailing Service~

04/10/18

Cover letter

Dear Mr. Noller,
Sebis Direct is pleased to provide the following proposal to the Village of La Grange Park for the production of its' Utility
Billing. Sebis Direct proposes that La Grange Park adopt Sebis' eDocument-Direct tor the production of the statement
documents and the additional related critical documents. Sebis is a member of IGFOA.
The following features are provided:
~t

Single System
The eDocument-Direct system is a single system that can modernize and produce every document that La
Grange Park requires, including paper bill production, electronic rendering, repositories and electronic delivery and
payment solutions. The entire process, both electronic and paper is produced and managed on one single
system .

a

Two Locations
Sebis production facility is located in a 70,000' building-in Bedford Park, near Midway Airport. This relatively close
proximity to the La Grange Park service area will help improve delivery velocity and collections. Sebis has a
mirror facility in Brooklyn Heights, Ohio.

•

Multiple Platforms
Sebis is well skilled and proficient at adoption and management of document processes from multiple billing
system sources. Data provided from Advance Utility Systems will be merged into a single elegant process.

11

Full Color Press Eliminating Pre-Printed and Perforated Forms
Statements will be printed using modern black and full color digital presses. No perforated paper or separator
sheet form inventories will be required. All document output is dynamically produced (including perforations) using
an integrated full color digital press line.

•

On-Line Controls
The Access-Direct application provides true document management and control In addition, the system provides
all of the compliance, reporting, reproducing and ultimately destruction of all documents and production history.
This outstanding application also provides on-line reporting of all process metrics, item inventories and postage.
The system also provides a complete archive of all document processes, process controls and document activity.

11

24x7 Access and Technical Account Management
Customer service includes 24x7 access to reports and archives as well as dedicated Technical Account
Management with primary and backup personnel.

11

Automated Processes
Highly automated production systems that operate around the clock. Processes are automatically started within
minutes of the arrival of La Grange Park data.

The approach and execution of this project will be extremely collaborative. La Grange Park Statements and related
communications will be world-class in every aspect from print quality, efficiency, change management, records
management and compliance.
Thank you for your time and attention to this proposal. I look forward to working with you .

?~~;1-David Brady
Manager, Public Sector
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Sebis Dire.c t p_r()pbse.s to employ cofnpon~nts of its· eDocu_ment-:CJiiect syste.m. billing :dqcument prqdu.ction t~ La
Grange Park.
..
.·.
.
·
--The eDocument-Dlrect system will accept
input data, maintain any document template
library and business rule library and produce
and deliver all reports and related materials.
The Access-Direct system provides the
command and control of document
production. La Grange Park will be able to
view, control and manage all elements of the
bills. La Grange Park can access this web
based resource and examine process results
of any day and examine the history of all
previous runs. Accumulative reports are also
provided. Access-Direct also supports the
management of mailing histories, forms
inventory, postage balances and all records
of previously generated documents.

IJJ1General Health

Enroll Now and Go paperless!

Paperte~J~. slalement~ are a great (!nY~o

slay organized while heJpT'"'1;1-f~e
envfronment It's simpje, tasl

Enroll NOW»

~ .

a(.d"fREE.
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In a hurry? Quick Pay I
0\Jick Pay allows you easily make a

paymetrt without signir>g up I All you need
is your sla!emenl to
. .~. r;:,:;;!-'•
.

Quick Pay,.

"'~ :;::.~

rtiBk.G·a payment now.
. ·.. /;.,...
• ·f~~~.

/ ' ••.:.

/-- ~ . ·~ ~ -- ·~_!-

\')_...,-,1.~; . . '

Page 3 of 27 C:\Users\davebrady\Downloads\LaGrangePark0418Sebis.odt as of: April26, 2018 at: 13:50 M/P4

;..lt

-

-

Company Background

,

Sebis Direct proposes to employ components of its
nge Park.

eDocument·Direct system billing document production to La
~----

Sebis' financial stability

Current ratio: 2.0
D & B Number: 607803405
D & B current paydex rating: 78-80
TIN 36-3201653

Number of years in business

Sebis Direct was incorporated in 1989, 27 years continuous operation.

Number of Employees

51

Number and Location of
production plants that could do
the proposed work.

Sebis Direct provides two production facilities.

-- ~

Sebis Direct, Inc.
1100 Valley Belt Road
Brooklyn Heights, OH 44131
Sebis Direct, Inc.
6516 West 74th Street
Bedford Park, IL 60638
Each facility is fully owned and equipped to perform every function of the proposed
work.

Description of current operational -capabilities and procedures, including but not
limited to, the following:
File types acceptable for
electronic transmission .

1

Sebis accepts all file types. This includes flat files, fixed length and delimited records
of any size and type. XML data and all types of hybrid and complex record formats.

1

- - --

Mainframe, binary and encrypted filetypes are supported.
All printstreams are accepted (AFP, PDF, PS, HP-PCL, LCDS, IPDS, etc.)

Processes are run automatically and immediately upon receipt of a file. Processes
Minimum and Maximum time
required to generate and dispatch are typically run and available for approval within an hour.
items after receipt of
transmission
Print, Assembly and Mailing will generally be performed within the service level
specified.
- -- --,Methods used to verify complete Quality Control follows guidelines set by the Automated Document Factory Model as
defined by The Gartner Group. Printed statements, letters and certificates are a major
generation of and subsequent
component of effective communications. To do this well is a major investment. The
dispatch of documents.
Automated Document Factory model improves and rationalizes centralized printing
operations and supports zero defect methods of development and production of these
documents.
Multiple control points and work processes are utilized to provide zero defect
accountable document production. Application specific controls are added where
appropriate.
• Application specific checklists.
·. On-line operator reprints.
On-site operator workstations capture production events and activity.
1
• • Closing processes require batch balancing tests to succeed.
• Document barcodes captured by assembly devices automatically fault and report on
missing or damaged documents.
• Multiple assembly scanning and control points.
• All assembly processing interruptions and faults are recorded.
Processes are supported by the Access Direct application integrated together with
inserter reporting and post processing cameras that scan and report on all mail pieces
produced. Together these work processes and data capture and report processes and
completely account for all deliverables produced.
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I

Publicly accessible systems are isolated from internal systems by dedicated firewall
Methods currently if"! place to
ensure and protectthe privacy of Icomponents. SSL is used to secure data transmission over public networks.
Automated network traffic and system analyzers notify personnel of attempted
document data.
breaches to security.
Privacy of documents and document data is provided by many of the following
practices.

Every document and package is identified and tracked throughout the processing,
printing and assembly process.
Barcode identification of all documents in assembly. Highly secure assembly control
and tracking schemes in use.
Data systems control access to data.
Physical site security includes key card access controls, camera surveillance and
secured areas.
Assembly operations are fully tracked and recorded.
Encryption I decryption of data using HIPAA accepted methods.
Record all document access activity.
Data and document destruction policy.
Confidentiality agreements annually renewed by all employees in contact with
protected health information.

~----~--~--~~--------+

Additional practicesto protect the All data, documents and programs exist on two separated data processing grids for
application.
business continuity purposes. Sebis Direct utilizes open source resources and
architecture. This provides additional security because data and programs are not tied
to proprietary platforms. Document compositions for example may be processed by
any firm also utilizing Open Source Technologies.
All data processes can be performed at either data processing grid location.
The Access-Direct system supports incidenUerror logging and reporting.

IAt the time of discovery of any production or process incident, the discovering
employee creates an incident log entry. This is done on-line. No assessment or
analysis is done at this stage.
All process stakeholders are notified of the incident and tracking number is assigned
and a workflow is begun.
The incident is a threaded discussion and has structures such as root cause,

Imanagement comments and corrective actions.

The incident is rated and made part of aggregated reports.
Incidents are associated with jobs, applications, clients and contributing employees.
Relevant incident log entries associated with this application are viewable by La
Grange Park.
Controls consist of internal policies documented and applied in multiple areas. Areas
include:
Camera System Monitoring
Network Activity Monitoring
Timeclock Record Monitoring
Exception I Incident Reporting
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Sebis business continuity
capability

I

The principal business continuity methodology relies on the multiple and duplicated

Iproduction site strategy. All production assets required in Brooklyn Heights are
duplicated in Bedford Park, IL.

A standby generator is available to run the Bedford Park or Brooklyn Heights facility in

event of a loss of electrical power. These and other additional features provide
Ithe
security for critical business processes.

All data, documents and programs will exist on 2 separated data processing grids for
business continuity purposes. Sebis Direct uses all open source programs and
architecture. This provides additional security because data and programs are not tied
to proprietary platforms. Document compositions for example may be processed by
any firm also dedicated to Open Source Technologies.
All data and document production processes can be performed at either production
facility location.
Hours of operation, days o
operation and listing of company
recognized holidays

The Bedford Park (Chicago) and Brooklyn Heights (Cleveland) facilities run multiple
shifts Monday through Friday and a single shift on both Saturday and Sunday.
7 recognized holidays include: New Years Day, Presidents, Memorial Day, The
, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.
--~--

I

Listing of professional
associations of which Sebis is a
member

Xplor - Xplor International is the worldwide association of users and suppliers of the
products and services that create, modify, and deliver customized information using a
variety of document technologies (www XPior.org). AIIM - AIIM is the international
authority on Enterprise Content Management (ECM) - the tools and technologies used
1
to capture, manage, store, preserve, and deliver content and documents related to
organizational processes (www.aiim.org).
Wes Sanders is certified as a Enterprise Document Content Practitioner by AIIM.

- -- -- i

David Brady is certified as an Enterprise Content Management Practitioner and
Specialist by AIIM.

Staffing, Support

Staff are assigned at the time of engagement. The application will have a primary and
backup Technical Account Manager. Currently the Technical Account Manager
working with municipal clients is Cameron McHugh. David Brady will manage the
application development through initial launch. The These personnel are available
during ordinary business hours. After business hours support is provided by contact
with Sebis through phone numbers and extensions provided to the Client. Escalation
of any issues is supported by the Executive Vice President, Kathy Morrin.

Payment Card Industry (PC I}
Compliance.

Sebis Direct, Inc. has developed a secure platform for processing, storing, and
facilitating credit card payments. This hardened platform utilizes modern encryption
algorithms, layered network topographies, advanced firewalls, rigorous change
management controls, and secure SSL connections to protect sensitive data during
each step of the payment process. In addition, we have partnered with Trustwave, a
third-party PCI Security Council approved Qualified Security Assessor, to conduct
vulnerability scanning and security audits of our platform.
Report of PCI compliance is available upon request.

i
SAS-70 I SSAE-16 Compliance

Trustwave
70 West Madison Street
Suite 1050
Chicago, IL 60602
Sebis Direct has retained the firm of (MueHer & Company., LLP} for the purpose of
providing a SOC1 Type II SSAE-16 auditors report.
Report is available upon request.
Mueller & Company. LLP.
Point Blvd.
Suite 700,
Elgin, IL 60123.

1 2230
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1

Provide full paper billing system.
Approximately 1 ,500 per month.
There are regular bills, late notices, and final bills.
Every other month.
Exported and uploaded SFTP from MSI Utility Systems.
Provide document transformation and production processes for a minimum of three forms.
Statements to be in-line digitally printed using Sebis Screen 520 Truepress printers. This
print line will provide black and full color and dynamic perforation of statement pages.
The back side of the first page will always print a static content container of terms and
conditions .
Statements will be printed on 60# DOMTAR Digital Opaque or equivalent. This sheet is a
bright white with smoothness of 140 provided by Sebis.
Envelopes per specifications will be provided by Sebis.
Assembly to be performed by high speed I high integrity PB Evolution Series inserters.
Multiple cameras and other scanning features provide the document integrity and security
required for PHI document production.
Reply envelopes will be selectively inserted for statements that require them. Additional
inserts will be printed and inserted occasionally for La Grange Park. Sizes will range from
3.3x8.5, 8.5x11 , and 11 x17 folded to #1 0.
First class automation indicia with full service 1MB including tracing.
(Tracing provided in cooperation with the U.S.P.S.)
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Document-Direct Processing Outline
The following describes a typical document production process.
At the conclusion of a La Grange Park processing cycle, output files are generated. Sebis Direct supports encrypted FTP
or VPN and several additional transmissions methods. Processing at the Sebis data center occurs as soon as data arrives.
Due to the adoption of open systems, Sebis can accept any data file format including all print stream~.

f

Ptocu• d•te, POF'o,
reporls ond lllldrns
coneeuon data 18 providotd
to lhi!t customer.

aI

Document Direct

Dot;Otiltnts or maHIIIg 15·

~=~~=~ ':u~·=:'J.s.P.S
and olheta.

Staktlhold&r
'llpprov,.;; job.

Electronic:

=::Files Received
An automated "listener" process at Sebis Direct detects
the presence of transmitted files then moves these files
off of the FTP services inside to a production server
and starts the process. This fully automated process
starts within minutes of the arrival of the files.

Decryption and Parsing
The input file object is read and decrypted (if required)
using an approved security method.

Document Processing
La Grange Park data is transformed into an XML
format suitable for any and all delivery channels and
imaging methodologies. Any and all defined business
rules are applied to the documents and data. Data is
then transformed into actual document images.
The use of XML allows Sebis to process, render and
manage the most complex documents. XML can be
transformed to printable documents, email, web
presentments, etc. easily.

Acciul& birect l)f6vld*&
ltia Cutilomer with COIIItiUitld

end control ottha cloCtJmerrt
procesa. The cueloin~ aan
examine •II , . ..,Ita end
eirarnlne octuol docurne11t
""*ges betofe the JOb lfl
••'*""'"d to P•Oilu<:tiol\ or
mltil&d.

·

Segmentation
Documents are routed to proper delivery and transmissions
segments.
Segments include mailing, electronic transmission, faxing,
boxing and shipping, returning to the client, etc.
This process also suppresses documents from being
mailed if the customer has adopted electronic delivery.
Paper mailing usually occurs if:
Customer has no eDocument system enrollment.
Customer is enrolled and chooses to receive a paper
bill. (If this option is offered)
Electronic delivery fails after all attempts.
The document type requires paper mailing. (Such as a
shut-off, collection or final notice - based on
requirements)
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Document-Direct Processing Outline

NCOAUnkTM Processing
The United States Post Office requires that all first
class automated rate mail complies with the moveupdate requirement. The requirement states that to be
eligible for the automation mailing rates, the subject
mailing addresses must be recent (within 6 months old)
or be processed by one of several U.S.P.S. approved
methods of updating the addresses. In order to fully
comply with this U.S.P.S. regulation, Sebis Direct offers
the NCOALink process.
The NCOALink file is a consolidated file of move
information that on average contains approximately 40
million permanent Change-of-Address (COA) records
filed with the U.S. Postal Service each year. Each
record contains the relocating Postal customer's name
along with an old and new address. The old address is
the one compared to the address provided by the data
for matching purposes and the new address is the one
returned. If a match is made, the mailing address is
changed and the data is stored for the purpose of
updating the customer database. These COA records
are retained on the system for a sixteen month period
from the move-effective date. Additional information
regarding NCOALink can be provided on request.

Mailstream Processing
Based on the class of mail, the process correctly sorts
files to the finest level possible, in accordance with
United States Postal Service (USPS). The mailing is
reordered to comply with presort automation rate
requirements. This process also generates a series of
reports such as the mailing statement and mail audit
trail report required by the U.S.P.S. All of these reports
are available online to La Grange Park.
This application will utilize the Intelligent Mail Barcode
(4 state barcode) required by the U.S.P.S. in 2013.
Sebis is a full service 1MB provider.
Note: Sebis Direct is authorized to mail non-identical
weight packages through the United States Post Office.
Sebis Direct was the first organization approved for
batch manifesting non-identical weight mailings at the
Main Post Office in Chicago.

Automated Constraint Checking
Production processes are approved by both the use of
automated constraint checking and client approvals. This
includes document counts, document dates, dollar values,
similarity to previous runs, etc. The following is a list of
typical constraint checks:
Processing control totals are reconciled with input
control totals, if provided.
Control totals are automatically checked for
reasonableness.
Document dates are checked for reasonableness.
Processing is checked for similarity to previous runs.
Postal discount results are checked for
reasonableness.
Constraint violations stand out both in emails and on-line.

Document Rendering
Industry leading, open source document management and
delivery systems adapt to any input format. XML
technologies are used to process and transform
documents into multiple formats and any presentation
channel. Documents are converted into a world-wide-web
(WWW) La Grange Park XML based format.
Documents can be rendered as electronic presentations or
paginated paper formats. Multilingual options are easily
implemented.
Paper documents may are rendered with the following
process and production security features:
Set sequence number
Intelligent Mail Barcode (1MB) to improve postal
processing
Manifest keyline (if required). This is used by both
Sebis and the U.S.P .S. to audit the accuracy of a
mailing.
1D or 2D barcodes for production and assembly
scanning.
Electronic or PDF images of checks will include VOID
markings. (check printing not a part of the La Grange Park
RFP)

Web-2-Print and Print-on-Demand
Images, messages and variable document content or
entire compositions are included in the final document.
eDocument-Direct lets the business owners take control
of document content. Dynamic messages and entire
document compositions can be entered , edited, proofed
and implemented and made part of any document
production run.
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Document-Direct Processing Outline
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Full Service Intelligent Mail Barcode (1MB)
Sebis Document-Direct provides FULL SERVICE
Intelligent Mail. Intelligent Mail complies with a number
of new USPS services and includes the new Intelligent
Mail barcode. The Intelligent Mail barcodes are
information-rich. For example, the POSTNET barcode
only includes delivery point routing information. In
contrast, the Intelligent Mail barcode for mailpieces
holds significantly more data and includes additional
fields that can allow La Grange Park to uniquely identify
each mailpiece in a mailing. Intelligent Mail barcodes
facilitate feedback about the mailpiece, handling units
and containers, and allows for USPS service
performance measurement, making it possible to use
the mail in a much smarter, more efficient manner. An
example of this is Start-the-clock information to notify
mailers when the Postal Service takes possession of
mailings.
La Grange Park will be able to track mail delivery
performance using the on-line Access-Direct system.

Disaster Recovery I Business Continuity
Sebis provides protection against the demise of the
production facilities. A back-up facility in Brooklyn
Heights, Ohio will produce La Grange Park documents
in the event of the demise of the Bedford Park facility.
As part of Business Continuity compliance, live runs will
be produced at this second facility on a schedule to be
determined in collaboration with La Grange Park but
likely at least once per year.
Document barcoding
All documents produced are barcoded. This is done to
support automated production processing and
document security and production integrity.
Document audit trail
Access-Direct keeps track of the production of every
document. This tracking information can be used to
find the history of any document that was produced
within the last 7 years.
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Approvals and Process History
Access-Direct provides La Grange Park outstanding connectivity to all aspects of document production and delivery. At
the conclusion of a process, a notification email is sent to all La Grange Park stakeholders. This email contains a link that
when clicked, takes the user to an Access-Direct page containing process information.
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run.

TOAOORESS.TOTHEVIJ..A~
.. KAU.A't.ll251t.UDE
. . A~ .•_VOU-tv.~ AN
. '(

~~ PL:EASfr;A1J..7.1JB:.~-3462.~YOU~HA.VEASm~

~FOI..Ji:TH()f_J.l.V.

r

:-llilc:~ • "'~~·,
..
1 , c..roo..-.
'doi:'1<' moo
·; ' :c:
:-~.-~~-~~-11.4~-10 -~~~~)::01.(Mii0l.0 -07.Qlf1U10
-o.oo;
II .. ..
.. -- IOi!fiS

1: .

All process results metrics (total records,
process date, etc.).
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Segmentation of documents, such as number
of documents emailed vs. mailed.
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Any reports that were provided from the La
Grange Park data processing environment.

...-.,.~ u_ :Ullfi~·J ~fl·•~

!

·.t•!••

1 •"''·••-~""'::~•:::::ta.i.;:--~ •,.•li~· .L_;--....1--.-,.a. -

17:11 :'70

~~·~--

'"'"

........ ~~~,U-1&1.) ....,.,

~<lr,(:! 11.K~r·P~.

[J1'1·•'i!r,

~1ai.u ~

iHibldt~:o
~~.ll!l
~--

Mail Audit Report.
NCOA Link Updated Addresses.
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Sample Document PDFs.
Links to pages detailing imaging and assembly
specifications.
The history of the execution and events such
as mailings, approvals or declines.
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Files, reports and other objects are provided
through SSL encrypted web connections. No
protected data is transmitted via email.
At this point individual documents may be
"pulled" from the run and destroyed or rerouted.
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Document-Direct Printed Document Imaging
Documents are plinted and assembled using the latest In digital press and photoreceptor based imaging systems.

Digital Press
Sebis digital press capabilities provide the following features:
Over 4.5MM 8 ~ x 11" impressions per day.
Black and full color.
Edge-to-edge printing.
Duplex (front-side back-side) integrity (barcoded).

Dynamic Form perforation (horizontal and vertical}
Perforate only the pages that require perforation
720 dpi - 4 dot sizes.
420 FPM- Duplex- 20 1/2" width.

Laser and Other Imaging
Sebis Direct supports open architectures for document composition and imaging. Sebis provides the following imaging
capabilities:
Black laser simplex and duplex imaging with sheet
sizes to 14" x 17".
Full color continuous to sheet digital press.
MICR printing. (checks)

10 cards. {PVC and Teslin)
Ink-jet addressing and imaging.

All imaging processes are connected to the Access-Direct system. This system provides all production scheduling and the
enforcement of production rules, checklists and procedures.
-

Assembly and Mailing

Document production must provide zero defect integrity to protect health,
financial and personally identifiable information.
All Sebis inserting and assembly equipment utilizes 1D and 20 barcode
technology to preserve document integrity.
Operators utilize on-line controls that provide La Grange Park start-up, during the
run and ending checklists. These checklist are customized to meet the
requirements of the application.
All assembly processes are fully auditable. A long term record is produced
preserving the history of every document that was produced. Who approved it.
Who imaged it. Who assembled it. All of these properties are preserved for
future use.
All assembly devices scan and verify document integrity multiple times. The
accuracy, privacy and security of document contents meets all compliance
requirements.
At the conclusion of any mailing, the Access-Direct system e-mails all contacts
regarding the mailing event. All stakeholders are informed regarding the entire
processing, ima{1ing and assembly phases of application at all times. Users
click on the ema1l to log-in and examine any aspect of the mailings and email.
Sebis Direct has authorization to submit batch manifest mailings of non~identical
weights.
Documents that have high page counts that will not fit into the standard envelope are assembled into a large format
envelope. Large format envelopes may be labeled or utilize windows.
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Mailpiece Delivery Tracking
Sebis Direct is a full service Intelligent Mail Barcode (1Mb) provider. Mailings submitted to the USPS include the 1Mb. As
the mail progresses to the recipients, it is scanned by USPS equipment throughout the United States. This scanning data
is bulk analyzed and provided back to La Grange Park in the form of aggregated reports and graphs as well as individual
data for a specific mailpiece.
The graph on the right is included in the
application history for each run.
Aggregated graphs show the predicted
date for mail in several segments.

"rn-rrnrrrl!>o...

A table illustrates the number of mailpieces
delivered in-home for each day.
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SEBIS
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Agents can look up a specific mailpiece and see
the scanning activity and the predicted in-home
date for the specific mailpiece.
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Document Repository- Optional
La Grange Park will receive a complete set of searchable PDF's for each job processed at no additional charge.
The full repository is a more robust and functional tool.
Web·Hosted
Sebis utilizes a compliant document repository
system as part of its enterprise document
management services.

Se81'ch Document Archive

Account Nome:::fR
:;O
::O::fR=S
========:: : : :
lllltN: ~==========:::

A search page with criteria is provided to La
Grange Park. The archive extracts all matching
document sets and provides the document
images and all document events to a qualified
user. User name and password protection is
provided . The web site is also SSL encrypted
with issued private I public keys.

ltn~.PI~ Mlolmb•r: ' - - - -- -
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----·- - ...

Found 34 Documents. Displaying

~
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The archive will include all document images.
This means that La Grange Park can look up any
document and view it including letterhead
graphics, colors, etc.
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The illustration on the right shows a typical search
and browse session.
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La Grange Park can specify the search taxonomies
that would meets it's needs. The document repository
is available regardless if electronic bill presentment and
payment is used.
The page on the left shows a typical document display.
The document image is provided along with graphics,
form templates, etc.
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The history of access, payments and delivery events is
also provided. La Grange Park has a trusted record of
every document produced and delivered along with all
its relevant properties.
Note that after the document is retrieved, it can be
faxed or emailed to any recipient. There is no need to
print or import it to a fax or email application.
Emailed documents can be encrypted and password
protected.

~.!!!il l
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New User Enrollment
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Enrollment allows new users to authenticate themselves
and become secured and privileged users of your
system. Customers want to choose how they interact
with your organization. As fully enrolled users, they can
take control of these interactions.

II

Enrollment provides choices. The enrollment process authenticates and initiates new communication and billing
options such as suppressing paper billing, to your customers.
Authentication
How do we know if a new user can view and pay bills for
any particular account. Any form of authentication and
even multiple forms of authentication can be provided.
Typical tests include matching an account number with a
service address or a date-of-birth. PIN numbers on billing
documents can also be used.
Any form of authentication is available.

Suggestive Service Preferences
During the enrollment process, eDocument-Direct
encourages users to go green saving the expense of
mailing paper bills. The flow of the enrollment process
can encourage the user to select the most cost effective
billing method for La Grange Park.
Confirmation of Terms
When confirming the enrollment selections, the user will
affirm your terms and conditions of enrollment.

Verification Properties
Any data items can be added in addition to standard
ones. Custom data such as phone number or birth date
can be collected during enrollment.

Instant Use (Optional)
At the conclusion of enrollment, the user can proceed
directly to view and pay a bill.

Email Confirmation (Optional)
The email address provided by the user can be confirmed
before the user is allowed to utilize the site. A confirming
email is sent to the user with an encoded link. Once the
user clicks on the link, full user privileges are granted.

Pre-existing Services
If your customer has already selected a billing option
such as a payment plan or automatic ACH debits, these
choices will be recognized and can be preserved in the
enrollment process.

Service Options
The user can select any of the communication and
payment options La Grange Park provides. Selections
include yes or no to paper billing, email and optional
automatic credit card or check (ACH) payments. Even
faxing can be provided.

The enrollment process will recognize the customers
existing preferences.

Language
The user may specify the language he/she prefers for
paper billing and electronic viewing. All rendering
systems support all languages.

Features are Selectable
Virtually all of the features mentioned herein are
selectable. Features can be included or omitted as
required.
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User Home Page

The Home Page
A fully enrolled user is immediately taken to
a home page that provides a snapshot of all
billing and payment information.

Account Summary
The Account Summary component shows
all accounts, amounts and balances in a
consolidated view. This is fully
customizable.
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In the instance illustrated, the current user
has access to two accounts.

My Profile
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The My Profile component permits changes
to user information such as email, password
and any other data that the user provides.
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Account Preferences
This component allows the user to change
any of the features that the system provides
for this particular account.
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My Accounts
This component shows all of the accounts this user has access to. It permits allows multiple accounts to be added to a
single user. This capability is optional.

Go Green
Go Green component encourages paperless billing. If the accounts already suppress paper billing, the component thanks
the user. If one or more accounts accessible to the user is still receiving a paper bill, the component acts in harmony with
other efforts to go "paperless" and encourages the user to change the delivery preference to electronic.

Recent Documents I Bills
The user can examine previous bills going as far back as La Grange Park requires.

Recent Payments
The user can examine payments going as far back as La Grange Park requires.

Payment Plans and Recurring Payments
Users can set-up and select automatic payment and also create payment plans to pay down outstanding balances. Any
payment methods selected by La Grange Park can be used for this purpose.

Components can be selected and customized.
eDocument Direct uses web components that can be included, excluded and customized easily to adapt to the culture and
features required by La Grange Park.

Each component is a little feature set that can be added, deleted or customized to meet La Grange Park requirements.
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Electronic Document Delivery
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eDocument Direct can deliver billing documents to your
customers several ways.
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eMail a Link.
A notice is sent to your customer from your
organization. The notice informs the customer that
he/she can click on a link and view or pay the bill. This is a
secure method because the bill document is not sent using
email.

Some Times You Still Need the Paper.
Certain notices or document types must be paper
mailed. For example, if a user has elected to
suppress paper billing, La Grange Park may
select certain document types such as a final
notice to be paper mailed in addition to electronic delivery.

This email can contain relevant and timely content in
This feature will also fall back to a paper document delivery
addition to the notice. It may also contain other messages method for a user whose electronic delivery channel fails to
requesting that the customer eliminate the paper mailed bill respond. Emails can be attempted any number of times.
After all attempts fail, the paper version of the document will
if he/she is still receiving a paper bill.
be generated and mailed. This document will include a
notification to the customer informing him/her that he/she
eMail the Document.
In some cases, it is desirable to send the bill with the needs to update their information so electronic delivery may
resume.
email. The bill is sent as an attachment. This
method is generally used if no security or protection of
Encourage the Electronic Option.
personal information is required.
Paper bills should remind and encourage the customer that
he/she can enroll in eDelivery and receive electronic billing.
Multiple Attempts Are Made.
Multiple attempts are made to email documents to the end
customer. These attempts are timed 6 hours apart This is Grace Period Paper.
done to tolerate any temporary failures of customer email
As an option, your organization can send one additional
paper bill after a user elects to get items sent electronically.
systems.
This last bill thanks the customer for choosing electronic
delivery and notes that this is the last paper bill (of this type)
he/she will receive.
If this is an error or unexpected, the customer can call
customer service and revert back to paper or learn more.
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Document Viewer and Access
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eDocument Direct uses thin client techniques to
provide views of bill documents. Any number of
views in various modes may be configured.
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Let your customer drill down and see details.
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PDF Viewer Required
~ No
Documents are displayed using Flash
~ animations or HTML5. No PDF viewer is
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Available Right Away
As soon as the document production process has
been approved and in some cases even before that,
all documents and bills are available to be searched
for and displayed.

required on the browser or mobile device.

~"'-

Same As the Paper- Or Not!
Billing documents can precisely match the paper
renditions or be optimized for various forms of web
and mobile device views.
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Document Properties and Metadata

--~

All of the metadata, aspects and properties of the
document are displayed in the upper right. If the
document is a statement, each of the statement
invoices can be viewed. _
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Document Events

Payment

The system shows all of the events that have occurred
to each document. See when the bill was mailed,
viewed, emailed, paid, faxed, etc. Who performed the
event and when each event is also recorded.

If the bill is payable, the user may start the
payment process here.

Agent User Delivery Actions
The document can be emailed, faxed or even remailed (optional) by your user agents.
I'~

,

Security
Document displays and deliveries are fully
encrypted. All user activity and access is
recorded and reported.

Email an encrypted PDF
Your customer selects a password. The password is used
by the Agent to encrypt a PDF that is then attached and
emailed to the customer.
~

Download PDF

-.J.-1 Download a PDF of the bill for local viewing and
~

printing.

Rendering Format
The document is presented as either a Flash
animation or in HTMLS. No PDF viewer is necessary.
The user can see the document on a full screen,
switch pages, increase or decrease the zoom of the
view. Works on Apple*> devices.
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Customer Service Agent Features and Functions
Customer Service Agents (Agents) and Managers throughout your organization need robust capabilities to interact and
support customers. This includes all types of customer support such as taking payments and collections.
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . . Agents may access many views of the eDocument Direct
system. Agent roles can be configured in any way to
General Health
reflect the governance of your organization .
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Any function a payer can do can also be done for the
payer by the Agent.

Account Management
Restrict account functions.
Disassociate or remove users from
accounts.
Numerous other restrictions are provided.
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Document Finder
Search for documents using any criteria. Default
search functionality on common fields such as
Account, Name, Document Type and Document

ID.
Once found, the item is displayed by the viewer
and all viewing features are available.

p

Payment Access
Search for payments using any available criteria.
Default search functionality on common
elements such as username, payment type,
date-range, authorization code, reference code,
and account.
Payment Processing
Accept payments in person or on the phone.
Issue refunds.
Void transactions.
Adjust payments before settlement.
Create I Delete I Modify payment plans.
Allocate complex payments to specific
items.
Email an encrypted PDF
Your customer selects a password. The
password is used by the Agent to encrypt a PDF
that is then attached and emailed to the
customer.

!.....!!!
L;~~·.

Reports
Run reports and data extractions. Agents can
set-up and execute automatic reports. These
reports run on a repeating basis.

Agent Management
Manage the creation, deletion, and modification of
agents. Agent roles can be customized.
Group by entity (location, region, area of
responsibility}
Define access by role and configurable
groups.
o
Managers
o
Supervisors
o
Customer Service Agents
Customer Engagement Management
(Comments)
Contact with your customers is automatically
recorded. Comments can be added and
associated with users and accounts. The nature of
each contact is classified and recorded. Your
organization will gain better understanding
regarding the nature of customer complaints,
contacts and issues.
Classify each contact with one or more values.
Record notes and comments from your
customer.
Comments and contact types can be reported.
Actions performed by the agent are recorded
and associated to the engagement.
Capture the start time, the end time and the
elapsed time of the engagement.
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Agent Features and Functions (cont.)

p

Payment Access
Search for payments using any available criteria.
Default search functionality on common.
Web Content Management
Web content Is provided by the repository.
Agents and I or managers can edit, approve and
deploy web content easily. Multiple languages
and translations can be managed by Sebis or by
La Grange Park.
Re-Deliver the Document
Agents may re-send the document I btll to the
user several ways.
Document delivery options.
Fax the document.
Email the document.
Mail the document.

User Management
Restrict access to Accounts. (No check,
Single user only).
Delete users.
Issue new passwords. Update profile
information.
Unlock users and accounts.
Create payment plans.
Manage wallet items: add, remove, modify.
Add additional accounts to a user.
User and Account History
Examine and report on all activity regarding a user
or an account.
User logins and logouts.
Bills mailed delivered electronically.
Changes to user profiles. Accounts added or
removed, preferences changed.
Payments made or attempted
Payment plans made.
Bills viewed.

Agent Encounter Notes
eDocument-Direct records and classifies La Grange Park
Customer Service Agents service encounters with payers.
At any time during the encounter, the agent can click on the addnote link and both classify the encounter and add any text notes
that should be captured.
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The encounter with the account or the user is also timed and
recorded.

·~· [ ~-~-

-~ ~-

~~~

i

-.. . .- .........____ j

eDocument-Direct provides reports that collect encounter
information . Reports provide both individual and consolidated
agent encounter data.
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Reports and Data Extraction
eDocumenf·Direct incorporates the
Business Intelligence and Reporting
Tools Project (BIRT) for its reporting and
data extraction capabilities. BIRT is an
Eclipse·based open source reporting system for web
applications.

Paymem TtansaCiion Report
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Any custom report or data extraction can be easily
provided. Reports can be listings and can include any
structures including charts and graphs.
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See www.eclipse.org/birtlphoenix/ for details.

l,Gf'll.~

Platform
Business Intelligence and Reporting Tools
(BIRT).

Output Formats
Reports can be output as HTML, PDF and raw
data.

Storage
Reports can be viewed in real time or stored in
an agent repository. Stored reports may be kept
for as long as necessary and retrieved and
viewed only by agent users granted this role.

Automated Reporting
An agent user may set·up any report to run
automatically at a variety of frequencies and times.
The agent may select a report to run daily or as
infrequently as monthly. The specific day of the
week and time of day, etc. can be specified. Time
spans such as data for last week or last month can
be specified.

Security
Every report and its output and the scope of its
views of data may be configured to support any
scheme of agent user hierarchy.

Data Extractions
This tool can be used to extract data in plain
delimited form to be used by your organization's
own spreadsheets and reporting tools.

IStandard Reports
Detailed Payment Report

A listing of every payment received through this system. All report details are provided. It
provides a total for each day. It also provides a total for the period examined.

----~------------------~

Repository Summary

A detailed listing the contents of the repository. Includes total quantity of documents loaded in
the repository. It totals each day and it totals the entire reporting period.

Site Activity

A detailed listing of site activity. It totals each day and it totals the entire reporting period.

Future Payments

j A listing

of every payment received through this system. All report details are provided. It totals
each day and it totals the entire reporting period.

Dishonored Credit Transactions

Report instances where the credit card issuer authorized a payment but, for various reasons,
determines later that the transaction was invalid. The card issuer then either refuses to pay or,
if it has already issued payment, charges the amount back to the merchant account and
withholds the money from a future payment.
......__

_____
Customer Account

Queries the customer accounts in the databases and returns the results.
----~-

Card Payments

Queries payments made using a credit or debit card and returns the results.

Check Payments

Queries payments made using a check and returns the results.

Agent Payments

Queries payments authorized by an Agent and returns the results.

r-~-~----------r-

Users
Engagements

Listing of public users, agent users, etc.

---------------Aggregate report on all agent customer contact activity.

Application History

, History of document process runs over any timespan.

!

History of Postage usage over any timespan.
Postage History Reports and Data
Extraction
j'
- ~--- --- -- ---- -~ - ·-····· ·
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Postage Accounting
Postage is frequently the largest single expense any organization incurs delivering documents and bills.

eDocument·Direct provides transparent and real-time information regarding the status of all postage costs, balances and
activities. La Grange Park may view balances and all events that have occurred to postage accounts. This ability
improves on periodic reports by making up-to-date information available at any time.

Every Penny is Tracked.
AtKv•

Sebis Direct maintains and
manages U.S.P.S. indicia and trust
fund accounts on behalf of its
clients.

E:qo~re- ~
[N:;=o=
ne===;;;:g
""'

Every event that debits or credits
postage funds is posted and visible.

Millennium "Trust l:>oshg•
Onhand:

$4,133.67

Onler Qty: 18190

Sebis provides postage
management as an included
service. Postage is billed precisely
at cost. No estimating is performed
in billing.
Postage accounts have an order
quantity and an order trigger
quantity. These amounts are
decided in collaboration to provide
assurance of never depleting these
funds while making the best use of
cash assets.
The screenshot on the left shows
an example of postage usage.

Postage Contacts
Any number of contacts may be added to this
email notification list.

Automated Noticing.
When a postage balance falls below the trigger quantity,
designated contacts are automatically emailed notification
to replenish this fund. This email can act as a prepayment invoice.

USPS CAPS
Sebis can set-up USPS Centralized Account Processing
System (CAPS) if desired.
CAPS is an electronic postage payment system that
provides business mailers a centralized, convenient, and
cost-effective way to fund:
Permit Imprint
Business Reply Mail*
Merchandise Return Service*
Postage Due Account*
Express Mail Corporate Account
Address Element Correction
CAPS provides an electronic alternative to presenting
checks and cash for postage in advance of its use.
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Forms Inventory
eDocument-Direct provides real-time information regarding the status of stock item balances and activities. La Grange
Park may log-on and view current balances and all events that have affected any stock item. This ability improves on
periodic reports by making the information available at any time. Each stock item has an order quantity and an order
trigger quantity. These amounts are decided in collaboration to insure that critical stock items are never accidentally
depleted.
--·-- - - Active
Automated entries are made to
hem Ooacription
l lnwnlory Cont rol
the system at the conclusion of
processing
events such as
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Physical inventories are
performed on a planned
interval. The system provides
the advantages of real-time
inventory management and
allows physical inventories to
occur at times when activity is
dormant.
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Access-Direct will compute and
display the average monthly
usage of each stock item.
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Automated Noticing
When any stock item balance
falls below the trigger quantity,
contacts are automatically
emailed a notice to reorder the
item. This email is repeated
weekly until the stock item is
replenished .
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Dashboards and Other Online Features
Sebts Dtrect proVIdes a transparent mterface to appltcatton processes through the Access-D1rect on-hne system. Some
of the views and control,s Access-Direct provides are:
1. . . ~ .......
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Dashboards
La Grange Park can view the progress of all
production activity from a single point using the
activity dashboard. Clicking on any of the links
provides detail of the production activity.

uo•lt:!11&121l11

Access to Postage Balances and Reports

~~~

Piiiiliiiii~---·..-.

,,......

Access to Postage Documents
La Grange Park may examine the CASS results,
U.S.P.S. mailing statements, U.S.P.S. Audit forms
and manifests.
Automated Inventory Control
Access-Direct automates the management of stock
item inventory. When the postage balances or stock
item balances fall below a pre-defined value,
notifications and reminders are emailed to the
appropriate contacts.
Archive of all Runs and Document Images
La Grange Park can enter queries such as show me
every document ever sent to a specific ID number.

Access to Form and Stock Inventory
Access to all Production Process Information
At the conclusion of each run of a production
process, the process results are emailed to the
client. The client may examine all metrics such
as bill date, quantity of bills, marketing
messages, sum of amounts, etc.
Automated Noticing of Delivery Events
At the completion of any mailing, notification
emails are sent. The email contains a link
allowing the user to examine the mailing in
greater detail. Agents may examine many
metrics such as the results that were approved,
mailing timestamp, mailing quantities, postal
statements and postage costs.

Tracking of Individual Documents
An Agent can enter a variety of criteria such as id number,
document codes, or even a name. Access-Direct can
provide an audit of each mailing and document type that was
generated for that search criteria. This feature can be very
valuable to audit the application against internal
information and attest that the application is providing
the correct documents to recipients.
Summary Reports of Activity
The user can select runs over any period of time, a month
for example and get a summary of production activity over
that period. Examine the number of each type of document
and total counts over any period of time. Custom reports
can also be provided.
Secure Web Access
All access is over secure encrypted connections. It is also
possible to restrict access to those locations with approved
Internet gateway addresses. In other words, a Stakeholder
with proper authorization would only be allowed access while
at work and not when at home or any other location. All of
the above features are available 24/7. All access is
username and password protected. Web servers use SSL
with public/private keys. All access is recorded.

Page 24 of 27 C:\Users\davebrady\Downtoads\LaGrangePark0418Sebis.odt as of: April 26, 2018 at: 13:50 A4/P4

Document-Direct Datasheet
. . . . . "'t,Y.

l•';..

E!!r.o.llment: •

Repository: •

Payments: •

Database: •

Authentication: •

Appearance: •

Agent Features: •

.Ema~ coiifirmation<oP'Ikmat)

' ~'· ·.. ·.: :
Instantly IOQ9ed in on successful eriioUment
(optional)
Enroll!flent authenticated on one or multiple
document data items
Service suggestions guide new users to.most
eConomical services.
Pre-existing services (such as Autopay ACH)
recoghized.
·
Requires u.ser confirmation of terms.
Associate any number of. accounts to single user.
(optional)

' ,... D.o~!Jpe!lt : .\

Alfresco Enterprise Content Management System
Full search capability
Records management
Document management and version control.
Support tor Content Management API - CMIS
with a REST or Web services binding, JSR 170,
WebDAV, CIFS, FTP, ODF, OpenSearch. RSS ,
Atom, JSON, JSR 168.
Security provided by Alfresco ECM system.
Taxonomies supported: Any
Full replication.

Reporting: •

All Credit Cards, Electronic Check or Cash.
Automatic ACH Debit.
Enrolled or not enrolled users may pay bills
(Quick payment)
Support for multiple currencies.
Any number of document types, bill types,
journals or accounts.
Support for convenience fees.
Payment plans and future dated payments.
Stored wallet information.
Refunds, voids.
Late payment surcharges.
Prevent late .payments (optional)
High /.Low payment amount restrictions
(configurable)
Hibernate I PostgreSQL
Full replication.

Single sign on (SSO) NTLM and LOAP
Custom syste-m s.

Sites fully skinable to client web styles.
Site is fully web content management. (WCM)
Site content is authored and modified by your
team. (optional)
Track all customer encounters inch1ding notes.
Change user profiles.
Associate /disassociate accounts.
Manage account and user restrictions .
·
Accept payments.
Create and niodify payment plan~.
View all user histories.
Search bill documents.
Perform refunds , voids and adjustments (If role
permits)
Lock l Unlock users.
Manage wallet items.
Run reports.
Email, fax or re-mail bill document~.

~ •It"

;.~

:

-

-

•

--

Delivery:

Application •
Environment: •

--1

Emai~'faX arKfpaper delivery systems
· supported. ·
..
:.
·:,
,.·• ·
Multiple erTiail ·and .fax attempts (default is 4)
Automatically revert to 'p aper bill if electronic
delivery fails. . . ·.
RenderXXSLT transformations for ondemand document transformation arid displa,y.
boeuinen~ archives fi.llly XML compliant with . . .
version -control of ·presentatio"n stylesheets.
I
Presentations and document transformations
use open source based data storage and ·
d~cument comp.osition tools and.methods.
Business Intelligence Reporting Tools (BIRT}
system.
Rapid development and customization of
reports.
Data extractions.
Reports stored in repositories for record
keeping .
Full suite of reports .
Automatic reporting (user configurable)

Linux 0~
Open source
Java I Spring I Surf rapid development
environment. .
Development, staging and .production
environments. •
.
XML based configuration.
Web 2.0 Including AJAX and YUIIibraries.
Open source· objects and m()dUies.
(Java..Spring, Jav1,1script; Freemarker,
XMUXSL)'
.'
. . .
.:
Adobe Coldfusion
Apache· ·
·:·,

Languages: •

Service •
Options: •

Credit Card •
and Wallet

Data: •
Security: •

Multilingual content. Any number of
languages.
Public facing pages can be specified by user
preference or browser locale.
Email bills 1 documents.
Paper mail bill~ I documents.
Automatic ACH debits:
Payon-iine
Encrypted and stored independently behind
secondary firewall.
Last 4 numbers visible.
Security codes captured at transaction.
Permission set, role based.
Entity based. (multiple entities)
SSL encr)tption for all client/browser
communications.
User aCtions lc)gged.
Database a~,Jditlng enabled.
HIPAA compliant access control and ;:~ccess
and user activity tracking.
Nagios monitoring .
Multiple layered firewalls.
PCI and SOC reports are available.
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Cost Proposal
I

Charges

Service Type: Utility Bills

Cost per each

Utility bill processing includes; one two sided full color bill, perforated, fully
variable content. Includes fold and selective insert of #9 reply envelope.
Mailed at lowest First Class 1Mb postage rate. Postage estimated at 37.8
'cents each.

L

#1 0 Outgoing Envelopes - Standard double window with La Grange Park
·color logo and return address showing through upper window. Custom
envelopes available.

$.097 each

$.018 each

Standard utility reply window

$.014 each

Preprinted Insert- optional, as needed. Newsletter 8% X 11 insert printed
two sides, full color, fold and insert into envelope. This can be versioned by
commercial, industrial, residential.

$.039 each

Electronic Bill Delivery - optional

$.08 each

#9 Remittance Envelopes

---~-~~-~-49.00 one time s~

Email signup interface

!Initialization of eDocument Direct repository services

$349.00 one time set
up

(bill view, historic bills, fully enrolled users, multiple accounts per user,
payment facilitation.

$99.00/month and
$1 .00/month per
thousand document
storage.

I

--~-

1

Service Type: Other

-

Cost per Unit

-

Set up Charges - $495.00

No Charge
waived for the
Village of La Grange
Park

Design Services , hourly (programming)

$125.00/hour

applies to program changes requested by La Grange Park after initial set up.
NCOA (National Change of Address}

1-i20 ea. update

J

Estimated at $3.00
per month.

--

-

--

Closing
Sebis Direct provides the capacity, technical skill, automation, compliance and experience to be carefully considered for
this critical application. All processes and tasks are performed in a fully accountable and secure environment.
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This proposal outlines a business process solution that utilizes the latest technology, best practices and work-flow to
provide timeliness, security, integrity and the reliability that will exceed La Grange Park's expectations.
Thank you for your consideration.

?~J?r
Manager, Public Sector
PS Please let me know if you'd like to take a tour of the facility, it will give you a better understanding of Sebis capabilities.
New clients are provided with a bill re-design at no charge.
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HARRIS

Purchase Agreement 1

Software Solutions for the Public Sector

Date: 3/29/2018
Expiration Date: 12/31/ 18
Contract#:
DCLaGrangeUB2018

This Agreement between Village of La Grange Parte: ("Purchaser") and N. Hanis Computer Corporation of 2429 Military Road, Suite
300, Niagara Falls, NY 14304 {"Harris") confirms the purchase of the following print and mail fulfillment and related services (the
"Services")

Utility Bills Printing & Mailing
-Included: 2 sided bill, Color on front, black ink on
back, prints on 8.5"x1 1" white bill form, mailing
envelope, courtesy reply envelope,
POSTAGE INCLUDED

Set Up Fee, Standard Template

$0.58/per notice

$870.00/per month

$150.00/one time fee

1Price is subject to change with a 30 day written notice. Any changes in pricing will only occur with any
increase in postage from the USPS or any significant increases in fuel charges that could affect supply costs.
Price is based on estimated monthly amount of bills and amount of cycles in a 1 month period.

2 Setup

fees are based on software provider and data provided along with time needed to produce print ready
file for production.

State Taxes are applicable on prices listed. lfthe Purchaser is Tax Exempt a valid Tax Exemption
Certificate must be provided with this signed Contract in order to avoid taxable billings.

~~HARR IS

.,\.~

So1ttt1r~
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AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
1. Definition
Agreement", "this Agreement", "the Agreement", "hereof, "herein", "hereto", "hereby", "hereunder" and similar expressions mean this
Printing Services Agreement, including all of Its Schedules and all instruments supplementing, amending or confirming this
Agreement.

2. Payment Terms:
Order will be processed with the return of the signed printing services agreement. Services will be billed upon completion of job.
Payment is due within 30 days of receiving invoice.

3. Minimum Annual Commitment:
The parties acknowledge that the pricing herein is based on a minimum annual quantity of 500 ("Minimum Commitment") for a period of
In the event that the Purchaser does not fulfill the Minimum Commitment during any given year, the Purchaser shall pay to Harris
a Minimum Processing Fee of 5% of the estimated total annual fee set forth on page 1 of this Agreement.

1 year.

4. Tenn
This Agreement shall come into effect immediately as of the date of execution hereof by both Parties, and shall remain in force for a
period of one year (the "Initial Term"), except as provided for herein. At the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement, including any
modifications thereto, shall renew for a Renewal Term that will be agreed to by both parties, unless either party provides written notice
of non-renewal sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. In the event that this Contract is renewed in accordance with
this Section, the terms of the Agreement, shall remain unchanged (except to the extent expressly modified by agreement of the parties),
except that t he pricing terms may be modified with prior written notice to Purchaser. Harris shall notify Purchaser at least sixty-one (61)
days in advance of any modification of pricing terms.

5. Tennination
This Agreement may be terminated prior to expiration of the Initial Term hereof only as follows
(a) Provided that Purchaser or Harris (the "Terminating Party") is not then in breach of its obligations
hereunder, the Terminating Party may terminate this Agreement with regard to its obligations that
arise hereunder after the date of termination by delivering to the other party (the "Breaching Party")
written notice of such termination upon the occurrence of any of the following:
(i)

the Breaching Party is in material breach of its obligations hereunder and fails to cure such
breach within twenty (20) business days after receipt of written notice thereof from the
terminating Party; or

(ii)

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Breaching Party, including but not limited to any of the
following: assignment for the benefit of creditors, inability to pay debts when due,
commencement of procedures for compulsory reorganization, and management or significant
assets or property being involuntarily taken over in whole or in part by any governmental
office, agency or authority; or

(b) upon the mutual written consent of the Purchaser and Harris to terminate this Agreement.

Harris Computer Systems - Confidential
Page 2 of 4
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6. Payment Upon Ear1y Tennination
The parties acknowledge that the pricing herein is based upon an Initial Tenn of 1 year. The parties agree that if this Agreement is
terminated prior to expiration of the Initial Term by Harris pursuant to paragraph 5(a} above, or if Purchaser terminates this Agreement
other than pursuant to paragraph 5(a) above, the Purchaser shall pay an Early Termination Fee. The Early Termination Fee shall be
calculated as follows: 5% of the estimated total annual fee set forth on page 1 of this Agreement.

7. Relationship Between the Parties
It is acknowledged and agreed that Harris shall not be considered an agent, employee or representative of the Purchaser.
Harris shall not act on behalf of the Purchaser, except as otherwise agreed upon herein. Nothing herein shall be construed
in any way to constitute a partnership, joint venture, agency or any other special relationship between Harris and the
Purchaser, nor is it the intention of the Parties to establish any such relationship.
Neither Harris nor the Purchaser is granted any express or implied right or authority to assume or to create any obligation
or responsibility on behalf of, or in the name of the other, or to bind the other in any manner or thing whatsoever, without the
prior written approval of a duly authorized representative of the other.

8. Data
In the event that the Purchaser is providing data to Harris, it is the responsibility of the Purchaser to ensure that the format and quality
of the data meets Harris requirements. Any deadline for performance of the Services agreed upon at signing is based on the
assumption that the data provided is in the correct format and of sufficient quality. Any delay due to incorrect data is the responsibility
of the Purchaser. Harris will manipulate incorrect data for the purchaser at an additional charge agreed to in writing by the parties.

9. Warranty
The Services shall be performed in a professional manner in accordance with generally accepted industry standards for the
printing industry. If the Services fail to comply with this warranty, Purchaser shall promptly notify Harris in writing. The
notice from Purchaser shall specify in reasonable detail any alleged non-conformities in the Services and reasonable
requirements for acceptance of the Services. Upon such notice, Harris shall, as Purchaser's sole and exclusive remedy,
promptly re-perform any such Services. This warranty is effective for thirty (30) days following completion of the Services.
Purchaser is solely responsible for the accuracy of the data provided to Harris. Harris does not warrant the accuracy of the
data transmitted, but does warrant the transposition and printing of the data once received by Harris.
The express warranties contained above are in lieu of all other representations, warranties and conditions, express or implied, whether
arising by statute or otherwise in law or from a course of dealing, or usage of trade. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
Harris does not represent or warrant and the Purchaser acknowledges that there are no further representations or warranties,
including, but not limited to, warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, and non-infringement, and wanranties arising
from a course of dealing, usage or trade practice.

10. Limitations on Liability
THE PURCHASER AND HARRIS RECOGNIZE THAT CIRCUMSTANCES MAY ARISE ENTITLING THE PURCHASER TO DAMAGES
FOR BREACH OR OTHER FAULT ON THE PART OF THE HARRIS ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT. EXCEPT FOR DAMAGES
ARISING OUT OF HARRIS'S INTENTIONAL MISREPRESENTATION, GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT,
PURCHASER AGREES THAT HARRIS' LIABILITY HEREUNDER FOR DAMAGES SHALL NOT EXCEED THE CHARGES
HEREUNDER PAID BY PURCHASER TO HARRIS. IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR
ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR INDIRECT DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST
REVENUE OR LOSS OF PROFITS, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE LIKELIHOOD OF THE
OCCURRENCE OF SUCH DAMAGES AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED
REMEDY. THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL APPLY IN RESPECT OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND OR ACTION BY A PARTY IRRESPECTIVE
OF THE NATURE OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION UNDERLYING SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND OR ACTION, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED
TO, BREACH OF CONTRACT OR TORT

Harris Computer Systems- Confidential
Page 3 of4
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11. Cancellation Policy
In the event of cancellation of the Agreement by either party for any reason, Purchaser agrees to pay for all Printing Services rendered
and all expenses incurred prior to the cancellation. Purchaser must provide written notification to Harris if it wishes to cancel the
Agreement.

12. Governing Law; Venue
This Agreement shall be governed by the substantive and procedural laws of the State of New York. Purchaser hereby agrees to
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of, and venue in, the courts in the State of New York in any dispute arising out of or related to this
agreement.

13. Entire Agreement
This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the matters covered
herein. Any modification or waiver of this Agreement is effective only if It is in writing signed by an authorized
representative of the party to be charged. Provisions of a Customer purchase order or similar document are not applicable
if they conflict with or add to the terms of this Agreement.
Purchaser: Village of La Grange Park

By: _ _ _ __ _ __ __

Date: - -- - - - - -

Title:
Authorizing Party:

Purchaser's BIIHng Department lnfolmatlon:

Contact Name:
Contact Title: - - - -- - -- - - - - --

Billing Address:

E-mail address:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Accounts Payable Contact:
E-mail address:
----------

Phone#:

F~#:

----------------------

Proposal Prepared By: Debra Cronin

Harris Computer Systems - Confidential
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Phone& Fax #:---~---------
Alternate Contact:

BiHPrint. eBills. Delivered.

An Innovative Outsourcing Partner
lnfoSend is appreciative for the opportunity to present this proposal for:

Data Processing Print & Mail
Village of La Grange Park, IL

"The best part of lnfoSend's service and support is the ease of sending my files. I can
quickly and easily send files and I get e~mails indicating the files were received, ready
for approval and processed. This is excellent for me since I am never in the dark
wondering if the files were received and are they being processed. It makes my job
much easier. The turnaround time is very pleasing to the Village as well. We know
that the files can now be sent and our customers will have their bills in plenty of time
before the due date. This was a challenge many times with our former vendor."
-Village of Lisle, IL
Fran Masters, Utility Billing Clerk

March 28, 2018
Prepared for:
Larry Noller
Finance Director

Provided By:
Robert Crawford
Territory Sales Manager
P: 800.955.9330
M: 714.795.7974
robert.c@infosend .com

Kelly Law
Territory Sales Manager
P: 800.955.9330
M: 949.566.3891
kelly .l@infosend .com

lnfoSend, Inc.
Anaheim, CA 1 Downers Grove, IL I Carrollton, TX
www.infosend.com
This proposal is valid for 90 days.
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Pricing Summary
We are appreciative of this opportunity to provide pricing on lnfoSend's outsourced print and mail solution.
Comprehensive pricing as well as optional add~on services has been provided later in this proposal. For your
convenience, a summary breakdown is as follows:

Letter Size Statement Pricing Summary
Non-Materials Service Fee: Processing of your unique data, PDF creation, CASS
address validation, presorting, two color duplex printing, folding, and mail insertion.

Per page

$0.25

Paper Stock: lnfoSend Standard blank white 8.5" x 11" perforated paper.

Per sheet

$0.015

Outgoing Envelope: lnfoSend Standard blank #1 0 Double Window Outgoing
Envelope.

Each

$0.016

Return Envelope: lnfoSend Standard blank #9 Single Window Remit Envelope.

Each

$0.014

Total per mall piece without postage

Each

$0.295

Estimated Postage: Price for qualified mail pieces which earn the full service
intelligent mail USPS discount. Not all mail pieces will qualify for lowest discount.
Subject to USPS mandated changes.

Each

$0.375

Total per mall pJece with estimated postage

Each

$CUi
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lnfoSend's letter size processing solution includes cost saving services such as "householding" (multiple
accounts mailing to same name and address mailed in single envelope) and remit envelope suppression
(omitting return envelope for AutoPay, zero and credit balances). These should be taken into account when
conducting any cost analyses. See page 6 for detailed pricing , set up fees, and optional services.

The information in this proposal Is confidential and Is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluat ing this proposal.
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Industry Experience
lnfoSend is a market leader for utilities and government agencies. We have never lost a clientbecause of
service issues or delays in mail delivery. We currently have approximately 400 municipal utility, water district,
and government agency clients that either use the turnkey Data Processing Print & Mail solution, the Online
BiiiPay solution, or both solutions.
lnfoSend does its absolute best to ensure that each client is completely satisfied with our customer service,
mail turnaround, and quality of work. We are currently servicing over 450 clients total and will be happy to
provide you with additional references upon your request.

City of Elgin, IL

847.931.5631

10 Dexter Court

Pamela Camacho, Citizen Services Supervisor

Elgin, IL 60120

Camacho_P@cityofelgin. org

Contracted Since: 2011
Billing System: Monexa
Volume: Approximately 30,000 Mail Pieces Monthly
lnfoSend Products Used: Data Processing Print and Mail, Premium E-Billing

City of Joliet, IL

815.724.3825

150 West Jefferson Street

Isabel Kodron, Utility Billing & Collections Manager

Joliet, IL 60432

ikod ron@jol ietcity. org

Contracted Since: 2010
Billing System: SunGard Naviline
Volume: Approximately 45,000 Mail Pieces Annually
lnfoSend Products Used: Data Processing Print and Mail, Email eBilling

Downers Grove Sanitary District,IL

630.969.0664

2710 Curtiss Street

Adrienne Kasper- Billing Coordinator

Downers Grove, IL 60515

akasper@dgsd.org

Contracted Since: 2015
Billing System: Home Grown
Volume: Approximately 12,000 Mail Pieces Bi-Monthly
lnfoSend Products Used: Data Processing Print and Mail

The Information in this proposal is confidential and is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged In evaluating this proposal.
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Get to Know lnfoSend
lnfoSend has provided business process outsourcing services since 1996. Since that time lnfoSend has
provided the processing and handling of critical documents for industries throughout the United States.
Utilizing the most current technology, lnfoSend offers an innovative approach with flexible and secure
solutions for organizations seeking outsourced data processing, printing and mailing (DPPM}, and electronic
presentment and or payment capabilities (EBPP). Choosing lnfoSend as your outsourcing partner will
significantly reduce total overhead costs. Together, we can reach your customers more effectively.
lnfoSend is a privately held California corporation that delivers more than 165 million transactional
prinUelectronic documents per year. lnfoSend's core competencies are information technology, data
processing , document formatting, electronic payments, and document production/delivery. Our clients'
unique data is transferred into our database where it is then output to multiple destination channels.
Documents are printed and mailed as well as delivered via email and archived for historical viewing.
Electronic payments can be initiated over the web or telephone. The Software as a Service (SaaS) approach
allows lnfoSend to continually refine its offerings and equipment without requiring software installation and
maintenance at your site.
You can use the eBusiness Products or the DPPM related services as stand-alone offerings or together as
integrated customer communications solutions. When multiple services are outsourced to lnfoSend you
receive the benefit of having one data processing platform generate all of your outbound communications.
Easily customize business rules for processes like paperless billing and automatic payments with our
applications. Leverage the experience lnfoSend has built up from years of working with organizations similar
to your owr"!.

A Reliable Partner
Integrity is at the core of everything we do. Our goal is to retain each client. From our internal operations to
how we serve our valuable clients, we create solutions with an innovative approach that keeps your
business's best interests at mind .
We do not have exclusive partnerships with billing software providers or electronic payment processors. This
neutral standing allows us to provide you the best possible service at competitive rates. lnfoSend is your
resource that you can look to for bill production and electronic payment advice.

Facilities
Corporate Headquarters & Western US Production Facility 4240 E. La Palma Ave • Anaheim CA 92807
lnfoSend currently owns and operates its 77,000 sq. ft. headquarters and Western US production facility.
This facility sits on a 4.3-acre lot and is one of the premier bill processing centers in California. This facility
has a 600KW backup generator that can power the entire facility if the e/ectricitv goes out. tt provides disaster
recovery to the other facilities. lnfoSend's Anaheim facility is designated as a USPS Detached Mail Unit
(DMU) with USPS representatives on-site. This property also has a separate 25,000 sq . ft. building for future
expansion, should it be needed.

I

I

I

@ west & Northeastern US Production Facility
1 1406 Centre Circle • Downers Grove IL 60515
lnfoSend's 25,000 sq . ft. Midwest production and disaster recovery facility is located just west of Chicago,
Illinois. This facility is used to process mail for clients located in the Midwest or Northeast. The Midwest
facility also serves as an out-of-state disaster recovery facility for the other facilities. lnfoSend Midwest is
also a USPS DMU with USPS representatives on-site.
[Texas & Southeastern US Production Facility
1 1624 W Crosby Road #128 • Carrollton TX 75006
lnfoSend's 10,000 sq. ft. Texas Production facility is located near Dallas and is the main production center
for clients in the South and the Southeast. This facility also provides out-of-state disaster recovery for
lnfoSend's other locations.

The information in this proposal is confidential and Is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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Overview of lnfoSend Products and Services

DPPM: Data Processing , Print, and Mail Service
• Cloud-based data processing of raw data and print files.
• If your system creates raw data, then it will be processed and transformed into modern looking print
images using advanced document composition software.
• Print statements, invoices, letters, postcards, notices, or other various documents.
• USPS Postal presorting to the lowest available rates
• Fully implemented Full-service Intelligent Mail Barcode
• Printing of data in grayscale, spot color, or full color.
• Inserts and special flyers can be used to target specific customers. Submit your printed materials or
artwork to be printed by lnfoSend in grayscale or color.
• Quick turn-around of document folding , inserting, presorting, and delivery to the USPS.
eBuslness Products
• Electronic billing and payment related products hosted in the cloud.
• All Payment-Related eBusiness Products are Level 1 PCI Compljant
• Online BiiiPay (EBPP) and/or QuickPay (No Enrollment)
• Email eBilling
• CSRPay
Shared Platform Benefits
• One data processing platform manages the import and handling of your data files. This core system
can then output the information to all delivery channels.
• Upload data via our secure website, FTP with optional PGP encryption, or SFTP.
• Bill redesign consulting - we create your new document look and feel and then our document
composition creates bill images for both printed and paperless bills.
• Web-based system to track and view samples of print or eBills before they are sent.
• A variety of standard reports can be accessed via web portal or emailed to you.
• Create and schedule document messages by customer type or account number.
• Bill design, mailing options, and EBPP business rules are tailored to suit your organization's needs.
• Simplify your process by partnering with a provider to consult and manage your entire bill formatting
and delivery needs.
Partnered Solutions
• lnfoSend has partnered with PayNearMe to provide a unique cash payment solution. Your bills can
be redesigned to contain a barcode that is scanned by the POS system at participating retailers.
• FedEx Shutoff Notification - replace manual door hangers with notifications sent via FedEx with
tracking-verified delivery
lnfoSend Solutions

We recognize our clients' unique needs by personalizing the way we build solutions for each account.
lnfoSend configures each service to work together, providing custom solutions for your organization.
lnfoSend does not simply mail out bills and present them online to enable payments. We tailor our products
and services to suit client needs in a way that makes us an extension of both your finance and customer
service departments. Our clients often rely on us to build solutions that their own systems may not support.
By using lnfoSend's platform you can manage all data using online account management tools and use our
bill design expertise to accomplish a unified look and feel for all your billing documents and customer
communications .

The Information In this proposal is confidential and is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged In evaluating this proposal.
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Pricing: Data Processing, Print & Mail Service Set-up Fee

Initial Set-up Fees
Implementation and optional services fees.
Please pick from one of the options below:
Option 1 -Express PDF Implementation: $1,000.00
With this option you control the formatting of your documents and do not pay maintenance fees.
fiJ
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Option 2- Data-Only (e.g. flat files, XML) Implementation: $1,995.00
When this option is selected lnfoSend creates, hosts and maintains an application to generate your bills.
Your current document design will be matched . Please note that data manipulations are not part of the
standard offering.

Document Redesign Service: $0.00- WAIVED
We will assist you in redesigning the format of your printed documents if needed. We will become
responsible for later changing the format of the documents, if needed (Professional Services Fees
will apply for future changes).
Please note that Clients must sign off on requirements documents (Statement of Work, project plan, etc.) before
programming and system configuration can begin. Client can be charged professional service fees and/or have the
project go-live date delayed if requirements are changed after they have been finalized and signed off.

The information in this proposal is confidential and Is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged In evaluating this proposal.
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Pricing: Data Processing, Print & Mail Service Fees

Processing
The individual prices shown in the table below apply only to lnfoSend's standard Data Processing Print & Mail service
for the following document lypes Other t pes of document printing and or mailing can be quoted later, if needed.
Per Item
Options
Data Processing Print &
Below:
Mail service
All Utility Bills and Notices (Per Sheet)
Price is per physical page.
Includes processing of your
unique data, CASS address
validation,
presorting,
printing, and mail insertion.
Finished mail pieces are
delivered to the USPS
within one (1) business
day. If samples (proofs) are
requested then the mailing
will be completed within one
day of sample approval. File
upload deadline for next-day
mailing is 3:00PM local time
at the production facility
designated for your account.
If samples are required then
they must be approved by
5:30PM for the file to be
mailed by the next business
day.
Excludes materials, sales
tax (where applicable), and
postage.
A postage deposit will be
required prior to go live.
For the quoted prices to
apply lnfoSend must have
the right to combine data
files
sent
by
your
organization with other files
you
have sent,
when
possible.
Higher pricing
applies if files must be
printed separately.

Est. Volume 1,400 documents/month
Est. 2 Batches/month
The number 1 means black or grey.
All sheets are billed at the same rate; the price for the sheet
w'ith the highest number of colors is the applicable fee.
4 equals CMl'K (full color).

1/0 or 111 Printing
2/1 or 2/2 Printing
3/1, 3/2 or 3/3 Printing
4/0 or 411 Printing
4/4 Printing

$0.25
$0.25
$0.255

$0.26
$0.265

Pricing assumes the use of materials options listed in the
materials section.
lnllne Inserts (Per Sheet)
Price for inserts printed on demand as additional pages.
Overages not necessary for lnline Insert printing.
Material pricing on following page.

Subtract
$0.10 from
color tier
above.

Pricing depends on color setup for printing as outlined
above.
Multiple Page Mail Piece Surcharge- Handwork
This surcharge is assessed per mail piece {not per page}.
This surcharge only applies to multiple page bills that have
too many pages to be inserted into the #1 0 envelope by
machine. This surcharge covers the necessary manual labor
required to process these mail pieces.

$0.35

Postage {for all job types)
You will be invoiced for the exact postage used. You must
use one of the two USPS approved Move Update methods
to qualify for presort discounts.

Pass
Through

Electronic Address Updates - NCOALink or ACS
lnfoSend electronically reports the addresses that have
changed due to customers filing a Change of Address with
the USPS. Cost is per reported update.

$0.35

The information in this proposal is confidential and Is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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Materials
Statement, Invoice, or Letter Paper Stock
All Documents: white paper stock with or without perforation. Paper is

Per Sheet

$0.015

8.5x11" and 241b. Price includes all inventory costs. The larger 8.5x14" format
is supported at a higher material cost and higher printing cost.
All of your content will be digitally printed on the plain white paper in black,
black plus one color, or full color per the printing option from the prior table that
you select before implementation.

.,

lnfoSend Standard Window Envelopes
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Standard Window Envelopes

Per Standard Envelope

These envelopes include security tint printed on
the inside of the paper stock and clear film that
prevent the contents of the envelope from being
viewed. These envelopes also use sustainably
logged paper (SFI).

Options
Below:

#1 0 lnfoSend Standard
Double Window Outgoing Envelope

$0.016

#9 lnfoSend Standard
Single Window Return Envelope

$0.014
!

Other Envelopes
Flat Single Window Envelope - only used for multiple page statements
that do not fit in the #10 envelope.

1

Per Flat
Envelope

$0.16

The information in this proposal is confidential and is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged In evaluating this proposal.
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Pricing: Turnkey Data Processing Print & Mail Service

Optional Services
Inserting Fee- Drop-Shipped Inserts & lnfoSend-Printed Offline Inserts
Clients can print and fold inserts and ship them to lnfoSend to be mailed with the
statements. If folding is required add $0.01 to the fee. lnfoSend-printed inserts are
quoted upon request. There is no additional service cost to use selective inserting
that selectively includes inserts with certain bill types as long as a minimum of
3,000 customers are targeted (set-up costs can apply in some situations for
advanced selective inserting criteria). Cost includes all inventory costs.

Per Insert

$0.02

Print Messages on the Outside of the Standard Envelope Custom messages
and images can be printed onto the standard lnfoSend #1 0 double window
envelope. This type of printing is referred to as "sniping" and usually used to print
temporary content on one or two months' worth of envelope stock. It is more cost
effective to digitally inkjet print this content onto pre-manufactured envelopes than
to order truly custom stock that was manufactured specifically for you. Price
depends on the artwork you'd like to print- number of colors and whether it prints
on one or both sides of the envelope. Price is quoted upon request.

Per
Envelope

TBD

Print Image Archive
Each bill is stored as a PDF and indexed in a database where you may search by
account number or other key fields. You are charged one up-front fee per
document to process, index, and store it for a set number of months. The PDFs
are accessed by using a browser-based application and logging in to the lnfoSend
website. Third party applications can also access the PDFs via a lightweight API
with no cost increase to the unit fees. Setup fees may apply depending on your
configuration needs.

Per PDF
(No Setup Fee)

$0.02- For
12 Months
of
Retention
$0.03- For
24 Months
of
Retention

This serilice includes outbound mail trac[fing at np additional cost. You can
view USPS-provided mail tra~ing data from the same il)terface that YO.U use tc;>
view PDFs of the printed bills. ' 'Only available with int~il sent using First-Cfass
Postage.

$0.04- For
36 Months
of
Retention

Electronic Inserts
PDF copies of your physical inserts can be included in the Print Image Archive at
an additional cost. This will let your team see exactly which inserts were delivered
with each mail piece. This will also allow you to include the inserts in the eBill PDFs
that are presented and/or emailed to customers if you use an lnfoSend eBusiness
service that delivers eBills to your customers or if you use a third party application
that pulls the PDFs from lnfoSend's Print Image Archive API to present to your
customers.

Per Insert
(No Setup Fee)

Professional Services
Per hour and performed only upon request. For customizations made to document
processing program or document format after go-live. Work is only started after
receiving your approval of a formal quote.

Per Hour

$0.02

$175.00

The Information in this proposal is confidential and is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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eBusiness Products
Advanced Security Features Common to all Products
All of the following products use an advanced platform architecture that maximizes security. lnfoSend's
eBusiness products use a three-tier architecture and all data passed to and from the system is encrypted
using HTTPS. All credit card, debit card, and ACH account numbers are encrypted, and most importantly
these products are all PCI Level 1 compliant. Minimize or eliminate your PCIIiability by outsourcing
your electronic payment applications to lnfoSend. If your organization stores, transmits, or processes
credit card numbers you must follow PCI rules. If you have not already reviewed these rules please see
http://www.pcisecuritvstandards.org for the latest rules and regulations.
Online BiiiPay (EBPP}
•
Full featured EBPP service (Electronic Bill Presentment and Payment).
•
lnfoSend's flagship eBusiness service gives your customers the ultimate flexibility over how to view and pay
their bills.
• Optimized for smartphone and tablet viewing without requiring customers to download a specific app
• Customers self-enroll for the service and create a username and password to securely access their eBills and
make payments.
• Multiple payment options include checking/savings account (ACH), and crediVdebit cards .
• Payment accounts are stored as a Payment Profile for easy repetitive use.
• Enrolled users can view their eBills and view the account balance before making a payment.
• User-activated AutoPay, email delivery settings, and other features .
• Go Green! Eliminate paper bills and reduce the fuel used to deliver them with paperless billing .
QuickPay (Non-enrolled one-time Pay}
•
This service can be used in conjunction with Online BiiiPay or as a stand-alone offering.
•
One-time payment portal that customers can use to make crediVdebit card or ACH payments, depending on
preferences.
•
It is not necessary for customers to enroll to use this service. Customers input their account number plus service
address as validation. QuickPay displays the associated outstanding balance for payment
All payments are initiated immediately. There are no saved payment profiles or scheduled payments.
Customers receive an emailed receipt confirming payment.
CSRPay
•
CSRPay provides for the ability of customer service representatives to take live payments over the phone or in
person.
• This option can be purchased as an addition to each of the above products.
Email eBilling
•
Email-only service that sends eBills to customers via email (no portal to view prior eBills).
•
This is a partial solution that is typically utilized by clients that already have an online payment system but do
not have the capability of emailing bills/documents to customers.
•
Emails will be sent based off of a client-generated list. Additionally, via our Premium offering, a portal can be
provided to manage Email eBilling enrollment and customer-specific delivery preferences.
•
Service includes a styled HTML email template featuring your chosen banner image. Bill particulars such as
Account Number, Due Date, and Amount due are contained in the email body.
•
Includes a PDF of the document attached to an email. If lnfoSend is your Print and Mail provider then paperless
billing can be provided to your customers.

The information in this proposal is confidential and Is notto be used or disclosed exceptto the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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eBusiness Standard Offering
Detailed List of Features
No Hardware or IT Costs
lnfoSend's Software as a Service (SaaS) model provides cloud hosting for data processing and
eBusiness portals. Realize cost savings on Day 1 by not having to invest in equipment or
infrastructure.
Secure Communications and Infrastructure
Utilizing industry best 3-tier architecture and HTTPS encryption for all web traffic, ensuring the @
highest level of protection.
PCI-DSS Level1 Certified
PCI DSS Level 1 Compliant (the strongest designation possible) platform and environment,
taking your systems and personnel out of PCI scope.

lilt

File Data Processing
lnfoSend will process your data output to parse accounts and amounts due for customer access
online.

~

~

"

Paperless Billing
lnfoSend's eBusiness solutions provide customers the ability to choose paperless billing, helping
lnfoSend clients realize major savings. If lnfoSend is your print and mail vendor, the documents ~
deemed as paperless are excluded automatically from your print file. Otherwise, paperless
status reports are shared on a daily basis.

0 iii

0

0

"Push" eBill
Ability to send bills via email to enrolled customers.
Customer Service Portal (CSR Portal)
A portal designed to assist with administering your application and providing customer support.
Branded Portal
lnfoSend will add your logo, colors, and select text for a "branded" look and feel.
Customer Self-Enrollment
Proven efficient customer self-enrollment process. No tricky pin numbers or login identifiers to
remember.

~

0

Daily Account Status Reports
lnfoSend will process a daily export of account lists and balances (if biller system capable),
allowing enrolled customers to log in to see their most recent account balance prior to initiating
payment.
One-time Payments
Customers have the option of choosing one-time or recurring payments. Major credit cards and
ACH payment methods are accepted.

C

Payment Reporting and Transfer
lnfoSend standard delimited file designed for importing payment details into your billing system. '-'
Payment reports are transferred securely by desired method: secure FTP or secure portal
download. Custom file format incurs additional charges.
Archived Payment History
Archived payment history stored for a standard 18 months.
available.

Additional retention periods 0

ACH Return Report
Receive notification as soon as an ACH return is reported, allowing lnfoSend clients to monitor C
potential delinquencies.

e
"

~

0

Customer Service Payments
Ability for CSR reps to initiate payments from the Customer Service Portal.
The information in this proposal is confidential and is notto be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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eBusiness Standard Offering

Detailed List of Features
Usemame & Password
Customers pick a username and password to log in and pay one or many accounts. Complete
self-administration with "forgot use rna me or password" functionality. No pin numbers or pre-set
user IDs required .

~

Email Notifications
Ability for customer to receive system generated emails for certain events: payment confirmation, Q
payment failure (ACH return), and more.

Presentment of PDFs
lnfoSend will process your monthly output and present documents in a secure portal for enrolled
customers.

Statement History
Customers will have access to a standard 18 calendar months of statement history, starting from
enrollment date forward. Additional retention periods available.

_,

Customer-stored Payment Profiles
Ability for customer to store payment account on file for automatic or quick, 3-click one-time
payments.

AutoPay Recurring Payments
Ability for customer to self-enroll for scheduled automatic payments from chosen payment
account each billing cycle.

User "Subscription" Report
A daily, weekly, or monthly report that provides full demographic data on your customers: email
address, paperless preference, AutoPay setting, payment details, etc.

Two-way Secure Customer Service Communication Tool
Ability for customers to submit requests securely via the user portal. Ability for the Agency's
representative to reply securely, and "close" the request when resolved. Communications are
archived in perpetuity in the CSR portal.

The information in this proposal Is confidential and Is not to be used or disclosed except to the recipient's employees, officers
and agents engaged in evaluating this proposal.
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Production Facilities Information

Corporate Headquarters & Western US Production Facility
4240 E. La Palma Ave
Anaheim CA 92807
Ph: 714.993.2690 Fax: 714.993.1306
lnfoSend owns and operates its 102,000 sq. ft. headquarters and
Western US production facility. This facility sits on a 4.3-acre lot
and is one of the premier bill processing centers in California. This
facility has a 600KW backup generator that can power the entire
facility if the electricity goes out. The Anaheim production facility
provides disaster recovery to our additional operation centers in
Illinois and Texas. This facility is designated as a USPS Detached
Mail Unit (DMU) with USPS representatives on-site.

Mjdwest & Northeastern US production
1406 Centre Circle
Downers Grove, IL 60515

Facjljt~

lnfoSend's 25,000 sq. ft. Midwest production and disaster
recovery facility is located just West of Chicago, Illinois. This
facility is used to process mail for clients located in the Midwest or
Northeast. The Midwest facility also serves as an out-of-state
disaster recovery facility for lnfoSend's California and Texas
facilities. lnfoSend Midwest is also a USPS DMU with USPS
representatives on-site. As with the Anaheim facility this property
is owned by lnfoSend's principals.

Texas & Southeastern US Production Facilil:v
1624 W Crosby Road #128
Carrollton, TX 75006
lnfoSend's 10,000 sq. ft. Texas Production facility is located near
Dallas and is the main production center for clients in the South
and the Southeast. This facility also provides out-of-state disaster
recovery for lnfoSend's California and Illinois facilities.

The information In this proposal is confidential and Is not to be u sed or disclosed except to the recipient's employees , officers
and agents engaged In evaluating this proposal.
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Commercial R evitalization Committee
Divider

James Kucera, Chairman
Jamie Zaura
Patricia Rocco

Villa~e

Board A2enda Memo

Date:

June 4, 2018

To:

Village Board of Trustees

From:

Julia Cedillo, Village Manager

RE:

1015/1017 E. 31st Street- Reinstatement of Redevelopment Agreement

PURPOSE; To reaffirm the Village's approval of the reinstatement of a Redevelopment
Agreement for the redevelopment of 1015 and 1017 E. 31st Street.
GENERAL BACKGROUND
At the May 26, 2018 Board Meeting, the Village Board approved an ordinance approving the
reinstatement agreement of a redevelopment agreement for the redevelopment of 1015 and
1017 E. 31st Street. The agreement has been signed by both parties and is in effect.

Village Staff and the Village Attorney recommend that we reaffirm this action at the June
Work Session as a precautionary measure due to the light attendance at the May Board
Meeting.
MOTION /ACTION REQUESTED
This item is for action.

Motion: To Adopt An Ordinance of the Village of La Grange Park, Cook County, Illinois,
Approving the Reinstatement of a Redevelopment Agreement for the Redevelopment of
1015 and 1017 E. 31st Street.

l JPage

Village P resident Divider

Village Board Agenda Memo
Date:

June 5, 2018

To:

Board of Trustees

From: James Discipio, Village President
RE:

Commission Appointments- 2018- Correction to TS&E Committee

Purpose:
To rescind the appointment of Brian Lisek to the Traffic Safety and Engineering Committee because the
appointment was made in error and instead reappoint Matt Huffman to the Traffic Safety and
Engineering Committee as he was appointed in 2016 to fill the vacancy left by Brian Lisek

Background:
At the May 8, 2018 Work Session Meeting, the Memo entitled Commission Appointments 2018 was
presented to the Board of Trustees. The Memo contained an error under Traffic Safety and Engineering
Committee [fS&E). Brian Lisek was listed as a Re-Appointment where Matt Huffman's name should
have been presented. Matt Huffman was appointed in July 2016 to fill the vacancy left by Brian Lisek
who declined reappointment to the committee. Thus, the appointment was made in error and the chart
below illustrates the correction to be made.
Traffic Safety and Engineering Committee (TS&E)
Appoint New (or
TSE Committee
Term Expires
re<yU)oint) to
Steve May, Chmn.
5_1_1L2018
5/1/2020
Paul Graham
5/1/2018
5/1/2020
RyanVokac

5/1/2018

5/1/2020

8FiaR biseiE

1:..1..1 i-ill~

~

Matt Huffman
Keith Krysa
Eric Johnson
BrianSok

5/1/ 2018
5/1/2018
5/1/2018
5/1/2018

5/l / 2020
5/1/2020
5)1/2020
5/1/2020

H

J"ln"Jn

ACTION/MOTION
Motion to resdnd the May 8 2018 appointment of Brian Lisek to the Traffic, Safety and
Engineering Committee {as it was made in error) and to appoint Matt Huffman to same for
a term to expire in May 2020.
1

H:\ViHage Board & Committees\Vilage Board Meetings VM Memos\2018\June 2018 Wor1<
Session\2018 Appointments- memo Discipio Exec - Corrected.doc

Items of Interest Divider

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK
La Grange Park Village Hall, 447 N. Catherine Ave., La Grange Park, Illinois

Annual Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates for 2018
June 12, 2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

June 26, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

July 10, 2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

July 24, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

August 14, 2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

August 28, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

September 11, 2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

September 25, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

October 9, 2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

October 23, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

November 13,2018

Work Session Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

November 27, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

December 11, 2018

Village Board Meeting

7:30p.m.

Village Hall

